
Board of Trustees
September 28, 2016

Committee Meetings 
& 

Board Packet
1



 
 
 
 
 
TO: Saundra M. Foster, President and all other Board Members 
 
FROM: Richard M. Enty, Executive Director/Secretary-Treasurer 
 
DATE: September 22, 2016 
 
RE: MONTHLY UPDATE 
 
 
 

 
 
Cash sales tax receipts for September reflect a healthy rebound from the August dip, up 9.72% over last 
year.   Year-to-date receipts are 5% higher and METRO has taken in over $1.67 million more than last 
year at this time.  Monthly ridership reflects a small positive growth over August 2015; this is only due to 
there being two more weekdays this August versus last August.  Year-to-date (YTD) 2016 ridership is  
2.24% lower than the same period in 2015.  There were just three preventable accidents out of eight 
total accidents for the month.  This compares with three non-preventable accidents out of nine total 
accidents in August 2015.   
 
 
 

2



The following resolutions will be presented at the September Board meetings. 
 
Committee          Resolution Number Authorizing 
 
Finance   2016 – 17   Contract Award for the Purchase of Radio Consoles  
 
Finance   2016 – 18  Amendment of METRO’s Fare Policy (GCRTA Fares) 
 
Planning   2016 – 19  Approval/Acceptance of Service Monitoring Policy 
 
Planning  2016 – 20  Approval and Acceptance of Equity Analysis Policy 
 
Planning  2016 – 21  Adopting and Authorizing Submittal of 2016 Title VI  
      Report 
 
Leadership Team Update 
 
Downtown Circulator - Monday, August 22nd was the first day of service for the new downtown DASH 
circulator, created in partnership with the University of Akron.  For the eight total weekdays of DASH 
operation in August, average daily ridership was 162 trips.   Last month also marked two years since 
METRO and U of A launched the METRO Zip service, where students, faculty and staff began riding 
METRO line service buses by simply swiping their Zip Card.  METRO Zip ridership YTD for August was 
144,388, down 2.84% from 2015 YTD of 148,614.  METRO Zip rides for August 2016 were 18,020 versus 
15,226 in August 2015, just over 16% higher.  We look forward to increasing ridership on these 
university-related services, which are co-funded by University of Akron, GPD Group and Downtown 
Akron Partnership.   
 
Stand Down - On Tuesday, September 13th METRO supported the 11th Annual Veteran’s Service 
Commission Stand Down for Homeless and Displaced Veterans of Summit County, so named in honor of 
Laura Williams Dunlap, a veteran of the U.S. Army Women’s Corp and the Korean War and founder of 
this wonderful event, who passed May 14, 2015.  Over 350 veterans were served and Bambi Miller, 
METRO’s Director of Customer Service, who leads our involvement, reports that this was a very uplifting 
event.  She helped more veterans board our buses this year and witnessed improved living conditions 
for one veteran in particular.  When he attended four years ago he was down and out.  This year he 
returned with a job, better living conditions and a service animal who assisted him in helping other vets 
at the event.  Thank you to all METRO personnel who serve/served our Country in the military.  Thanks 
to all at METRO, especially Bambi, De Havilland and Molly for their leadership and teamwork of their 
respective departments, in publicizing/making the free fares and service deviation into the VFW lot a 
success for our veterans!   
 
Avail Real-Time Bus Arrival Information Project - One of the last milestones for completion of the Avail 
project is the 30-Day Operational Test.  METRO and Avail began the 30 Day Operational Test August 1st 
2016 and it finished on August 31st 2016.  During the test METRO operated the system in normal 
operation and noted any discrepancies.  The 30-Day Operational Test started out with some minor 
issues and then near the middle of the month we had some bigger issues with Avail publishing our data 
for the new Fall Signup.  Because of these issues METRO notified Avail that the 30-Day Operational Test 
did not pass.  During the week of September 19th METRO and Avail were scheduled to discuss the issues 

3



and what steps need to be taken to fix the problems.   Once the problems are resolved METRO and Avail 
will schedule another 30 Day Operational Test. 
 
Meetings - Recent meetings at which METRO was represented included Ohio Public Transit Association 
(OPTA) Board meeting/September 8th , American Public Transportation Association Annual 
Meeting/September 21st -23rd , Health Transit Pool/September 19th, and Ohio Transit Risk Pool (OTRP) 
Board of Trustees meeting and annual strategic planning retreat/September 21st – 23rd.  Both the Health 
Pool and Risk Pool are very solvent and continue to effectively and efficiently underwrite and handle our 
claims.  OPTA is currently recruiting for a new executive director.  Persons interested in leading Ohio’s 
40+ member strong transit association may find more details at http://www.ohioneedstransit.org/ 
 
METRO representatives will attend the Ohio Transit Risk Pool Annual Strategic Planning meeting 
September 21 – 23. 
 
The Operations Department reports for August: 
 
Total Training hours: 1540.  Hours consisted of 1352 hours spent with new hires; 64 hours of refresher 
training; 8 hours of sensitivity training; 16 hours of drive time for apprentices who were preparing to get 
their CDL; 8 hours of MCI bus training; 20 hours of Drug and Alcohol training;  72 hours of Ethics, Sexual 
Harassment, Workplace Violence and E.E.O. training.  
 
• August 4 The Director of Operations and Chief Dispatcher had the opportunity to experience 

travel on an MCI CNG (Compressed Natural Gas) Bus. 

• August 6 Operations assisted with a tour of the RKPTC for the Akron Chapter of The Institute of 
Management Accountants.  

• August 8-10 Operations held the Fall Sign Up.  The Fall sign up is August 21, 2016-January 15, 2017. 

• August 11 Operations, along with various departments and members of T.W.U. met to discuss the 
progress of the revised Operator Handbook.  

• August 12    The Board of Education and SSO Sign Up were conducted. 

• August 16    The Operations Department, Troy Webb and Shawn Metcalf assisted the LeBron James 
Family Foundation in the staging/assembly for the transportation by Thomas World Wide 
Transportation of over 1200 family members to Cedar Point in Sandusky, Ohio. 

• August 21    1st day of Fall Sign Up. 

• August 22 The Executive Director, Director of Finance, Director of Operations and Chief Dispatcher 
met with the Akron Board of Education to discuss service for the 2016-2017 school year. 

• August 22    All members of the Leadership Team met with the Executive Board Members of T.W.U. 
to discuss various topics regarding working conditions. A meeting of this nature will take place 
regularly as schedules permit.  

• August 25    The Executive Director along the Director of Operations, Customer Service and 
Maintenance attended COTA’s Annual Luncheon in Columbus, Ohio.  

• August 26    The Executive Director along the Director of Operations, Finance, Chief Dispatcher and 
the Executive Assistant, attended the 91st Annual Akron Urban League Gala. 

4

http://www.ohioneedstransit.org/


• August 31    The Director of Operations and Chief Dispatcher presented Operators Thomas Shelton 
and Sylvester Brown at the August Board Meeting with 25  years safe driving awards. We also took 
part in the grand opening/ribbon cutting ceremony of the CNG Electric Charging Station. 

Guest Speaker Concerns 
 
At the August 31st METRO Board meeting, trustees were addressed by Ms. Becky Deger of Chapel Hill 
Towers and by Messrs. Rick Speelman and Tony Barbitta, President and Vice President, respectively, of 
Transport Workers Union (TWU) of America Local #1.  As you may know, TWU Local 1 is one of two 
unions with which METRO has a collective bargaining agreement (CBA).  The other is International 
Brotherhood of Teamsters Local 348.  Both CBAs are for a three-year term; both will expire July 31, 
2017.  Board members asked that I respond to the concerns that were voiced.  Note:  speaker handouts 
and remarks have been made part of the record as August 31st Board meeting minutes attachments. 

 
Ms. Becky Deger - With her remarks Mrs. Deger provided Board members and staff with copies of 
several communications.  This includes her letter to the METRO Board of Trustees dated August 31, 
2016, her letters to me dated November 20, 2012 and April 20, 2016, and a reply to the April 20th letter 
by former METRO Planning Director Kris Liljeblad dated May 11, 2016.  Planning staff recently identified 
Independence Turnaround (ITA) as having the second highest amount of transfer activity behind Robert 
K. Pfaff Transit Center (RKPTC).  In June ITA averaged 555 boardings per weekday, 318 Saturday, and 
171 Sunday.  These ITA weekday boardings were the second-highest boarding total in the system behind 
RKP (5,915) and ahead of Flight Memorial Drive (207), Rolling Acres Transit Center (184), Cascade Plaza 
(150), and 2nd & Tuscarawas/Barberton (122). 
 
Response - This past Summer I joined METRO’s Director of Maintenance, Facility Manager, Safety 
Manager and Security Supervisor during their regularly scheduled facility walkaround of ITA.  Recalling 
Ms. Deger’s interest in better amenities for waiting passengers we discussed options ranging from 
walling off a portion of the existing building interior, a full-scale renovation to the building, to replacing 
the entire building and grounds with a modern, new facility and bus bays.  As to the provision of public 
restrooms, it is my understanding that the restroom at Rolling Acres Transit Center (TC) has never been 
open to the public but has been for METRO employees only.  The only access to restrooms that METRO 
provides to the public are at RKPTC and 416 Kenmore Blvd.; at 416 Kenmore Blvd., visitors to the lobby
get access to secure areas in order to utilize our first floor employee restrooms. 
 
Note that METRO spent approximately $700,000 to construct Rolling Acres TC and purchased the land 
for $300,000 for the land (2002 numbers). METRO purchased the former Bakers Square Building in 
March 2012 for $410,000.  Improvements made to Rolling Acres TC in the past four years, include new 
landscaping, security camera upgrades, improved lighting and plumbing. The surrounding roadway was 
resurfaced and a Romig Road entranceway was constructed to eliminate access fees charged by the 
adjacent land owner for using the former mall driveway entrance.  Improvements to ITA have included 
installing new fire alarm sprinklers and risers, mold removal, modernizing the restrooms and resurfacing 
the surrounding roadways and replacing drain grates.  These expenditures amounted to approximately 
$500,000.  Additional analysis is needed to determine what level of investment should be made to ITA 
for waiting passengers.  What percentage of ITA passengers are Chapel Hill Mall users or workers?  Will 
Chapel Hill Mall go the way of Rolling Acres Mall?  How has the Mall’s current demise affected ridership?  
While ITA will likely remain important as a transit hub in METRO Driving Forward initiative, we must be 
careful that any additional investment at ITA is commensurate with projected passenger use.    
 

5



As to possible provision of Saturday service to the doors of Chapel Hill Towers and possibly also Leo 
Dugan Apartments, METRO will explore doing this using existing resources.   Making those added stops 
would mean less frequent service and we’d need to determine whether Ms. Deger and others would 
find this acceptable.  
 
As to the provision of public restrooms at ITA or any other major transit hub, METRO would need to 
conduct further research and a cost-benefit analysis, taking into account the added maintenance and 
security/liability implications.  Modern restrooms are provided by some transit systems, including this 
one in Atlanta at rail stations.  http://www.citylab.com/commute/2015/02/a-hands-free-self-cleaning-
bathroom-for-transit-stations/385549/  If METRO’s Board feels strongly that this is a direction METRO 
should go in, staff will launch the necessary study. 
 
Tony Barbitta – Mr. Barbitta provided the attached statement that he read at the August 31st Board 
meeting.  In response to his concerns over the Route 1 no longer going into Summit Mall, I am providing 
a letter that responds to very similar concerns voiced by an official with Tri-County Services for 
Independent Living.  The decision to no longer drive METRO buses onto the Mall property is consistent 
with efforts to make transit more competitive with the automobile.  When METRO first began operating 
onto Summit Mall property over 25 years ago, there were far more customers using METRO to visit the 
Mall.  There was also far less automobile traffic to negotiate.  Since METRO has stopped going onto 
Summit Mall property beginning August 21st, similar to it no longer going onto the Arlington Road 
Walmart property, operations have been safer, more on-time and to my knowledge, no major 
inconvenience to customers.  The City of Fairlawn has at its cost, already installed an ADA-compliant pad 
at our stop on the inbound side of W. Market St. nearest the Mall main entrance.  During the Fall sign-
up, I am told that numerous METRO operators expressed great relief at no longer having to enter 
Summit Mall property.  They know our customers, and had customer safety been a true issue, we would 
not have made this change.  Mr. Barbitta also expressed concern over Driving METRO Forward’s 
proposal to reduce service in outlying areas.   
 
Mr. Speelman - In his remarks, Mr. Speelman voiced concern over what he feels are relationship 
problems between TWU and the Leadership Team, including TWU being disrespected and not taken 
seriously by management.  He felt that Driving Forward information was not being proactively shared 
with TWU leadership and that communication at METRO was not good between management, and 
between management and TWU.    
 
Response - We appreciate TWU leadership voicing its concerns over these matters.  As I have stated to 
Messrs. Speelman and Barbitta, the proposed Driving METRO Forward changes are far from being 
implemented.  Input from the public, METRO Board, TWU leadership, METRO Operator and Leadership 
Team has been taken over the past 9 months.  Additional detailed cost-benefit and Title VI analysis will 
occur before finalizing the proposed changes, or before seeking Board approval.   We are continuing to 
gather comments on the proposal from key stakeholders, including Summit County Executive Ilene 
Shapiro and staff on September 26th. 
 
It is my belief that communication within the Leadership Team and between Leadership Team members 
and TWU has improved greatly in the past several years.  Most important, the level of trust and morale 
at METRO has greatly improved in just the last year.  That being said, are there occasional 
communication breakdowns at METRO?  Yes.  Has it occurred just within the Leadership Team and/or 
between the Leadership Team and TWU?  Of course.  Communication within any organization can 
always stand to be improved; the Leadership Team and TWU will continue to work towards that.   

6

http://www.citylab.com/commute/2015/02/a-hands-free-self-cleaning-bathroom-for-transit-stations/385549/
http://www.citylab.com/commute/2015/02/a-hands-free-self-cleaning-bathroom-for-transit-stations/385549/


As to TWU feeling disrespected, I don’t believe that any disrespect was intended by me or anyone else 
on the Leadership Team.  The Leadership Team and TWU leadership can and should work together more 
effectively.  As we prepare for 2017 contract negotiations, the Leadership Team will do our part to 
improve labor relations at METRO with both TWU and Teamsters. 
 
________________________ 
 
 
The following chart shows electric charging station use at METRO’s Public CNG Fueling and Electric 
Vehicle Charging Station that officially opened to the public on August 31st. 
 
 

  
 
 
 
Reports for the month of August from the Maintenance and Customer Service Departments follow this 
page. 

7



Sum of
Jan_16

Sum of
Feb_16

Sum of
Mar_16

Sum of
Apr_16

Sum of
May_16

Sum of
Jun_16

Sum of
Jul_16

Sum of
Aug_16

35'Gillig Diesel 7 12 13 9 4 8 10 11

40' Gillig CNG 20 36 72 27 32 24 28 33

40' Gillig Diesel 24 14 38 20 22 20 30 21

40' Gillig Hybrid Diesel 1 1 4 2 2 2 1 4

40' New Flyer 5 7 14 3 3 6 5 1

45' Motorcoach Industries 2 2 6 6 3 3 4 3

60' New Flyer CNG 11 3 6 4 3 2 3 6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

2016 Line Bus Road Calls by Fleet Type 

 

September 2016 Update 
 
 Construction work continues on the South Barn Expansion (pictured below) estimated completion -  

November 2016 
 Fleet road call data through August is pictured below 
 1 new Vehicle Servicer, Randy Philips, starts 10/3/2016 
 August 1st/2nd, Along with Teamster Representatives and select Journeyman Mechanics, visited 

maintenance facilities at LEXTran in Lexington, KY and SORTA in Cincinnati for design best practices 
 We have had 4 consistent users of the CNG fueling station and over 35 charging sessions on the EV 

station since opening 
 
 
  

8



September 2016 Board Report - Customer Service and Paratransit activities during August 2016: 

TITLE III AUDIT:  METRO Customer Services/Paratransit Department received a perfect audit from Direction 
Home / Akron Area Agency on Aging as part of their annual Title III Contract audit requirements.  The 
auditor was very impressed with our paratransit software and METRO’s Paratransit Department’s 
dedication to full transparency and sustainability. 

TITLE III CONTRACT:  METRO’s bid was also accepted to continue transporting clients under the Title III 
program throughout Summit County under a contract with Direction Home Akron Canton. 

NEO RIDE:  Representatives from PARTA, SARTA, and Parsons Brinkerhoff met with Dean Harris, Mike Davis, 
and Bambi Miller on two difference occasions to explore paratransit opportunities as part of the NEO Ride 
concept. The comments gathered from Parsons research indicated there maybe a small market of people 
from Portage and Stark Counties that would like to travel within Summit County.   The Executive Board of 
NEO Ride has asked that we explore paratransit opportunities, rather than fixed route service.  On an 
individual basis, the three counties currently collaborate to assist ADA passengers who need to travel 
between our three counties.  This additional service would be available to all passengers, without eligibility 
or residency restrictions.   

AUGUST PARATRANSIT RIDERSHIP RECAP:  In August of 2016, Paratransit services transported 22,962 
persons vs. 21,366 in August of 2015 (a 7% increase) vs 20,378 in August of 2014 (an 11% increase) vs 
19,473 in August of 2013 (a 15% increase).  The passengers transported via our NET contract with The 
Department of Job and Family Services continues to grow, up 10% over last month with 2,698 persons 
transported.  August 2016 Year-To-Date we have transported 20,083 passengers via paratransit under this 
program, up 17% from 2015 levels.  See chart below. 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

JAN FEB MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST

2013

2014

2015

2016

NET Passengers transported via Paratransit YTD 2013 through 2016 

9



EVENTS:  Paratransit management spoke at Summit DD’s training session held at the RKPTC for Goodwill, to 
assist Goodwill employees understanding of the responsibilities of riding public transportation.  Some of 
the August events that members of our team participated in are as follows:  Senior Building events, 
(including Senior Olympics), ASCA (Akron Summit Community Action) Head Start Readiness/Enrollment 
Fairs, COTA Annual Luncheon, monthly Orientation for new refugees at the International Institute, Adult 
Protective Services Committee, Senior Independent Living Coalition, University of Akron Staff training, and 
a variety of University of Akron events held at the Student Union or Quaker Housing to highlight the DASH. 

BAM 

 

10



MONTHLY BOARD COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDAS 
VERNON LANE ODOM BOARD ROOM 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

8:00 A.M. 
 

 

8:00 A.M.  FINANCE COMMITTEE   

1) August 2016 Finance Report 
2) Resolution 2016 – 17  Contract Award for the Purchase of Radio Consoles 
3) Resolution 2016 – 18  Amending METRO’s Fare Policy  
4) Other 

 

8:15 A.M. MARKETING AND SERVICE PLANNING COMMITTEE  

1) August 2016 Performance Report 
2) Driving METRO Forward  Update 
3) Adoption of Resolutions Related to the METRO RTA Title VI Report 

a)    2016-19 – Approval Acceptance of Service Monitoring 
b) 2016-20 – Approval and Acceptance of Equity Analysis 
c) 2016-21 – Adopting and Authorizing Submittal of 2016 Title VI Report 

4) Marketing Update  

8:30 A.M. RAIL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE  

1) Bergmann Associates  Rail Visioning Study Update 
2) Report on other rail activities 

8:35 A.M. SAFETY COMMITTEE  

1) August 2016 Safety & Security Report 
2) Other 

 

8:40 A.M. HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

1) August 2016 Human Resources Report 
2) Other 

 

8:45 A.M.  ADJOURN 

11



MONTHLY BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
VERNON LANE ODOM BOARD ROOM 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 
9:00 A.M. 

 
 
 
 
ITEM 1: CALL TO ORDER: 

 
 
ITEM 2: AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 

 
Any individual or representative of a group may take two (2) minutes to 
address the Board on any topic on the agenda. Anyone desiring more time 
than provided herein, shall notify the Secretary-Treasurer by the 
Wednesday preceding the Board meeting so that he/she may be placed on 
the Agenda for a maximum of five (5) minutes.  METRO’s Board 
Meetings are held the last Wednesday of the month as stated within 
Resolution 2013-46 unless otherwise noted. 

 
 Ms. Becky Deger, Chapel Hill Towers 
 
ITEM 3: RECOGNITION: 

 
Operator Jim Boone – Twenty Years Safe Driving 
Operator Sue LaPointe – Twenty Years Safe Driving 

 
ITEM 4: BOARD MINUTES: 

 
*Approval of Board Meeting Minutes for August 31, 2016 

 
 
 
ITEM 5: COMMITTEE REPORTS & RESOLUTIONS: 

 
Finance Committee 

 
Chair Report 

 
*Resolution 2016-17 Contract Award for the Purchase of Radio 
Consoles. 

 
*Resolution 2016-18  Amending METRO’s Fare Policy. 

12



Marketing & Service Planning Committee 
 

*Resolution 2016-19  Approval Acceptance of Service Monitoring 
 
*Resolution 2016-20  Approval and Acceptance of Equity Analysis 
 
*Resolution 2016-21  Adopting and Authorizing Submittal of 2016 Title VI 
Report 

 
Rail Operations Committee 

 
Chair Report 

 
Safety Committee 

 
Chair Report 

 
Human Resources Committee 

 
Chair Report 

 
ITEM 6: EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
 
 
ITEM 7: OTHER BUSINESS: 

. 
 
ITEM 8: OFFICERS’ REPORT: 

 
- President 
- Executive Director 
 

ITEM 9: CALL FOR ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
 
*Denotes items that need approval of the Board 

 
Next scheduled meeting – October 26, 2016 

13



METRO RTA 
BOARD MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 31, 2016 
 
 

Trustees Present: Saundra Foster, Stephan Kremer, Donald Christian, 
 Chuck Rector, Will Lutz, David Prentice, Renee Greene,  

Robert De Journette, Nicholas Fernandez 
 
Trustees Absent: Scott Meyer, Heather Heslop Licata, Jack Hefner 

 
 
Staff Present: Richard Enty, Dean Harris, Mike Davis, Christine Hoffer,    

Alex Harnocz, De Havilland McCall, Jamie Saylor,  
Phil Richardson, Robin Miller, Dana Gibitz, Jarrod Hampshire, 
John Sutherland, Yvonne Briggs 

 
Guests Present:   Mr. Rick Speelman, President, TWU, Mr. Tony Barbitta, Vice 

President, TWU, and Ms. Becky Deger, Chapel Hill Towers.  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Ms. Foster called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  
 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
  
Mr. Rick Speelman and Mr. David Barbitta addressed the Board detailing some of the 
concerns the Union has with METRO’s Management.   
 
Ms. Deger expressed concerns of passengers from the Chapel Hill Towers.  She 
mentioned promises that were made by our former Executive Director, Mr. Robert Pfaff, 
concerning the Independence Turnaround.  Mr. Enty was asked by the Board to provide 
replies to the concerns presented to the Board. 
 
Ms. Deger distributed copies of communications concerning her issues.  Those handouts, 
along with the statement read by Mr. Barbitta, are attached to these minutes. 
 
RECOGNITION  
 
Operators Thomas Shelton and Sylvester Brown were recognized for twenty-five years of 
safe driving.  Ms. McCall and Mr. Saylor presented them with Service Plaques and each 
received a check for their excellent service to METRO Regional Transit Authority and 
the community. 

14



APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Ms. Foster asked for a motion to approve the June 29, 2016 minutes.  Mr. Kremer made a 
motion for approval, seconded by Ms. Greene.  The minutes were unanimously approved 
by the Board. 
 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE   
 
Mr. Kremer said the Finance Committee did meet and all the financial affairs were in 
order.   
 
Resolution 2016-14 authorizing the award of a contract for the construction of an 
Expansion to the RKPTC to Cavanaugh Building Corp. was presented for approval.  
Mr. Kremer made a motion for approval, seconded by Mr. Lutz.  Resolution 2016-14 was 
approved by the Board with one abstention by Ms. Foster.  
 

Resolution 2016-15 authorizing a change order with C. T. Taylor for repair of South Bus 
Barn columns as part of their Construction Management at Risk contract was presented 
for approval.  Mr. Kremer made a motion for approval, seconded by  
Mr. Lutz.  Resolution 2016-15 was unanimously approved by the Board.  
 

Resolution 2016-16 authorizing the Executive Director/Secretary-Treasurer to enter into 
a new agreement with the Akron Board of Education for the 2016-2017 school year 
was presented for approval.  Mr. Kremer made a motion for approval, seconded by  
Mr. Lutz.  Resolution 2016-16 was unanimously approved by the Board. 
 
 
MARKETING AND SERVICE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
The Marketing and Service Planning Committee did meet. Mr. Lutz said there was no 
further business for discussion at this time. 
 
RAIL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
Mr. Kremer said the Rail Committee met.  No action necessary at this time. 
 
 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Mr. Prentice said the Safety Committee met.   Mr. Prentice said he was pleased that our 
Workers’ Compensation claims are headed in the right direction.  He said no further 
action was necessary. 

15



HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The Human Resources Committee did meet.  Department updates were provided in the 
Board packet and no further action is required at this time. 
    
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
None 
 
OFFICERS’ REPORT 
 
President:  None 
 
Executive Director:  Mr. Enty introduced the new Board member, Mr. Donald Christian, 
to Board members and staff.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no other business to come before the Board, Ms. Foster asked for a motion to 
adjourn.  Mr. Kremer made a motion for adjournment, seconded by Mr. Lutz.  The 
meeting was adjourned at 9:20 a.m. 
 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 
 
Pursuant to Section III, Article 3.2 of the Rules & Regulations of the METRO Regional 
Transit Authority, METRO has complied with the Notice and Notification to the public 
and news media. 
 
 
 
___________________________       _____________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER     RICHARD M. ENTY, EXECUTIVE 
PRESIDENT                   DIRECTOR/SECRETARY-TREASURER 
      

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text
(Included with Ms. Gaugler's letter was this excerptfrom the Executive Director's Report to METRO's Board, dated July 20, 2016.)

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text
u

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text
__IIIIII____

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text

sue.ketelsen
Typewritten Text



28



29



30



Finance Com
m

ittee

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

32



33



34



35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

36



COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT: 
FINANCE 

 
 
RESOLUTION 2016-17 
 
A resolution authorizing the award of a contract for the purchase of radio consoles to 
Motorola Solutions. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Summit County is upgrading their radio system, and 
 
 
WHEREAS, METRO is required to upgrade our equipment to maintain compatibility, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Motorola has a contract with the State of Ohio under which METRO is able 
to purchase the equipment (STS 573077-0-1), and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of METRO 
Regional Transit Authority that: 
 
1. A contract be awarded to Motorola Solutions in the amount of $332,579. 
 
2.   The Executive Director/Secretary-Treasurer is authorized to execute said contract. 
 
3. All formal actions of this Board of Trustees related to this Resolution and all deliberations of 

the Board of Trustees and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in 
meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 
121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
DATE ADOPTED: September 28, 2016 
 
 
 
_______________________________       ____________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER,         RICHARD M. ENTY,  
PRESIDENT      EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ 

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 

37



COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT: 
         FINANCE 
 
RESOLUTION 2016-18 
 
A resolution authorizing and amending METRO Regional Transit Authority’s established 
rate of fares schedule. 
 
WHEREAS, METRO and Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) 
would like to maintain the interconnectivity of our service areas, and 
  
WHEREAS, GCRTA has modified their base cash fare, and 
 
WHEREAS, METRO wants to maintain a consistent one ride fare between GCRTA and 
METRO, and 
 
WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the following fare structure is being 
recommended.  
 
 

CURRENT FARES PROPOSED

$1.25 

$0.50 

Free 

$5.00 
1)  Passenger may be given a $1.25 credit towards the 
Northcoast Express when transferring from line service when 
paying the general ride cash fare or equivalent.

NORTHCOAST EXPRESS SERVICE - GENERAL FARE

3)  Passengers with a valid 31 Day Pass may ride the 
Northcoast Express for $3.75.

4)  Passengers with a valid 31 D&S Day Pass may ride the 
Northcoast Express for $1.50.

2)  Passenger may be given a $1.25 credit towards line service 
fare when transferring from the Northcoast Express when 
paying the general ride cash fare or equivalent.

LINE SERVICE - OLDER ADULTS & PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES

RATE OF FARE

PART I – CASH FARES
LINE SERVICE - GENERAL FARE

LINE SERVICE - TWO (2) CHILDREN UNDER AGE 6 MUST 
BE ACCOMPANIED BY FARE-PAYING PASSENGER

 

38



CURRENT PROPOSED
$2.00 

$4.00 

a. all must be pre-registered

b. identification required (SCAT ID card only)

c. anyone accompanying a SCAT eligible passenger is to 
pay full fare.

$2.50 

a. METRO ADA Complementary Paratransit ID required.

$40.00 
$1.25 LINE SERVICE - ONE RIDE TICKET
$0.50 D&S LINE SERVICE - ONE RIDE TICKET

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT - SCAT SERVICE

1)  Persons with disabilities;

1)  ADA-qualified; identification required;

RATE OF FARE
NORTHCOAST EXPRESS SERVICE - OLDER ADULTS & 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

1)  Identification required; SCAT Discount ID card, 
disability/senior ID card, Medicare card.

CALL A BUS SERVICE

2)  Passenger may be given a $1.25 credit towards line service 
fare when transferring from the "Call a Bus" when paying the 
general ride cash fare.

$2.00 SCAT SERVICE

3)  Passenger will be issued a credit of $0.50 toward their line 
service fare when transferring from SCAT to Line Service.

4)  Passenger will  be issued a credit of $0.50 when  
transferring from Line Service to SCAT service.

1)  Passenger may be given a $1.25 credit towards the "Call a 
Bus" general cash fare when transferring from line service 
when paying the general ride cash fare or equivalent.

2)  Older adults, non-disabled;

3)  Passengers with a valid 31 Day Pass, 31 Day D&S Pass, 7 
Day Pass or a One Day pass may receive a $1.25 credit toward 
the general cash fare.

2)  Other transit systems ADA ID accepted;
3)  Personal care attendants to ride free.

PART II - TICKETS
NORTHCOAST EXPRESS SERVICE - TEN RIDE TICKET

1) May be sold at outlets, METRO’s Customer Service Center, 
& vending machines;

2) Not replaced if lost or stolen.
 

39



CURRENT PROPOSED
$20.00 

Free 

a. picture pass,

b. line service only.

Free 

a. picture pass,

b. line service only,

c. TWU & Non-union staff’s dependent children.

Free 

a. picture pass;

b. line service only.

c. Includes spouse of deceased retiree

Free 

 a. line service only.

Free 

 a. line service only.

Free 

RATE OF FARE

1)  Identification required;

PART III – SPECIAL PASSES
ACTIVE TRUSTEE & FORMER TRUSTEE

SCAT PUNCH TICKET

1)  Must be punch ticket; each punch worth $2.00;

2)  Can be used on SCAT;

3)  Not replaced if lost or stolen;

4)  Must be registered with SCAT or ADA to utilize this ticket.

ACTIVE EMPLOYEE, SPOUSE AND DEPENDENT 
CHILDREN

1)  Identification required;

RETIREE & SPOUSE

1)  Upon request - identification required;

RECIPROCITY FOR RETIREES OF OTHER OHIO TRANSIT 
PROPERTIES

1)  Identification required;

TRAVEL TRAINERS

1)  Identification required;

POLICE & FIRE PERSONNEL

1) In uniform only.

 

40



CURRENT PROPOSED

$50.00

$15.00

$2.50 

$30.00 

a.  SCAT discount ID card;

b.  disability/senior ID card;

c.  MEDICARE card;

PART IV – MULTI RIDE PASSES
THIRTY-ONE (31) DAY PASS

SEVEN (7)  DAY PASS

RATE OF FARE

ALL DAY PASS

1) Unlimited rides on regularly scheduled line service for 
bearer only;

2) Not replaced if lost or stolen;

3) Void if mutilated or changed in any manner;

4) Subject to examination upon request;

5) Continuous riding prohibited; 

6) May be sold at outlets, METRO’s Customer Service Center, 
and vending machines.

THIRTY-ONE (31) DAY PASS - OLDER ADULTS & PERSONS 
WITH DISABILITIES (D&S PASS)

1) Unlimited rides on regularly scheduled line service, for 
bearer only.

3) Identification required:

4) Subject to examination upon request;

5) Continuous riding prohibited;

2) Not replaced if lost or stolen;

6) May be sold at outlets, METRO’s Customer Service Center, 
and vending machines;
7) Not valid on SCAT.

 
 
  

41



PART VI – PRIOR LEGISLATION

SUPERSEDES: Resolution No.'s 1977-58; 1987-24; 1979-37; 1980-32; 1981-04; 1981-48; 1982-
36; 1984-09; 1984-17; 1984-37; 1985-16; 1985-44; 1989-23; 1990-65; 1992-13; 1992-19; 1992-56; 
1993-30; 1993-46; 1995-29; 1995-42; 1997-29; 1998-17; 1999-48; 2000-26; 2001-24; 2001-46; 
2002-44; 2005-12, 2006-01, 2006-35, 2009-17, 2009-31, 2013-29 and 2014-01.

PART V – INTER AGENCY AGREEMENTS

* Fare Credit equal to the base cash fare of GCRTA will be given with a valid GCRTA transfer.

PARTA, SARTA, GCRTA, Laketran, Medina County, Lorain County and Brunswick all have 
entered into an agreement to honor each agency’s transfers from where the two agency’s routes 
connect.

GCRTA and METRO have entered into an agreement to honor GCRTA's transfers from where the 
two agency’s routes connect with METRO’s Northcoast Express service:

* Fare Credit equal to the cash fare of a D&S fare will be given with a valid GCRTA transfer. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of METRO 
Regional Transit Authority that: 

 
1. Fares become effective on October 3, 2016. 
2. The Executive Director/Secretary-Treasurer is authorized to implement the 

amended fare/rate structure.  
3. All formal actions of this Board of Trustees related to this Resolution and all 

deliberations of the Board of Trustees and any of its committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code 
 

DATE ADOPTED:   September 28, 2016 
 
 
 
_______________________________       ____________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER,         RICHARD M. ENTY,  
PRESIDENT      EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/ 

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 
 

42



M
arketing &

 
Service Planning Com

m
ittee

43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

44



August 2016
Performance Reports

Combined Service

2016 2015
Percentage 
Changed 2016 2015

Percentage 
Changed

Service Day Data
23 21 9.52% Weekdays Operated 171 171 0.00%

4 5 -20.00% Saturdays Operated 35 34 2.94%
4 5 -20.00% Sundays Operated 35 35 0.00%

Passenger Data
473,876 463,637 2.21% Total Passengers 3,413,165 3,488,222 -2.15%

18,149 18,566 -2.24% Average Weekday Passengers 17,257 17,585 -1.86%
8,216 8,800 -6.64% Average Saturday Passengers 7,721 8,289 -6.85%
4,544 4,697 -3.26% Average Sunday Passengers 4,105 4,345 -5.53%

Service Level Data
581,561 546,591 6.40% Total Vehicle Miles 4,416,758 4,365,921 1.16%
488,616 484,449 0.86% Total Vehicle Revenue Miles 3,754,789 3,908,427 -3.93%

0.97 0.96 1.34%
Average Passengers per Vehicle 

Revenue Mile 0.91 0.89 1.85%
40,587 37,164 9.21% Total Vehicle Hours 303,158 302,973 0.06%
37,942 35,456 7.01% Total Vehicle Revenue Hours 287,241 287,196 0.02%

12.49 13.08 -4.49%
Average Passengers per Vehicle 

Revenue Hour 11.88 12.15 -2.17%

Financial Data
$179,013 $201,125 -10.99% Cash Fares $1,548,642 $1,712,982 -9.59%
$135,161 $128,154 5.47% Ticket and Pass Revenue $1,123,317 $1,081,372 3.88%
$103,080 $47,659 116.29% Other Fare Related Revenue $659,393 $490,671 34.39%

11.1% 9.2% 21.43% Percentage Total Farebox Recovery 10.9% 11.4% -3.97%

$7.67 $8.48 -9.61%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue 

Mile $8.13 $7.40 9.92%

$98.75 $115.91 -14.81%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue 

Hour $106.33 $100.70 5.58%
$7.91 $8.86 -10.81% Average Cost per Passenger $8.95 $8.29 7.92%

Safety Data
3 3 0.00% Preventable Accidents 36 32 12.50%
5 6 -16.67% Nonpreventable Accidents 38 50 -24.00%
8 9 -11.11% Total Accidents 74 82 -9.76%

Current Month Year to Date

45



August 2016
Performance Reports

SCAT/ADA Paratransit Service

2016 2015
Percentage 
Changed 2016 2015

Percentage 
Changed

Service Day Data
23 21 9.52% Weekdays Operated 171 171 0.00%
4 5 -20.00% Saturdays Operated 35 34 2.94%
4 5 -20.00% Sundays Operated 35 35 0.00%

Passenger Data
22,962 21,366 7.47% Total Passengers 179,975 177,736 1.26%

741 689 7.47% Average Passengers per Day 747 741 0.84%
84.0 83.8 0.24% Average Saturday ADA Passengers 77.3 80.1 -3.50%
47.0 39.6 18.69% Average Sunday ADA Passengers 36.0 30.7 17.19%
61.6 57.4 7.48% Average Total ADA Passengers 57.8 57.4 0.62%

6,054 4,362 38.79% Total Purchased Transportation Pass. 47,519 33,707 40.98%

Service Level Data
122,487 128,603 -4.76% Total METRO Vehicle Miles 969,007 1,108,203 -12.56%
38,281 27,349 39.97% Total Purchased Trans. Vehicle Miles 304,406 208,369 46.09%

160,768 155,952 3.09% Total Vehicle Miles 1,273,413 1,316,572 -3.28%
132,062 130,191 1.44% Total Revenue Miles 1,067,076 1,114,824 -4.28%

0.17 0.16 5.95% Average Pass. per Revenue Vehicle Mile 0.17 0.16 5.79%
12,585 11,327 11.11% Total Vehicle Hours 95,312 94,622 0.73%
10,338 9,245 11.82% Total Vehicle Revenue Hours 78,815 78,335 0.61%

2.2 2.3 -3.89% Average Pass. per Vehicle Revenue Hour 2.3 2.3 0.64%
95% 95% 0.00% On-time Performance - METRO 94% 93% 0.94%

93% 93% 0.00%
On-time Performance - Purchased 

Transportation 93% 92% 1.77%

Financial Data
$45,489 $41,234 10.32% Cash Fares $374,267 $352,196 6.27%
$5,303 $6,193 -14.36% Ticket and Pass Revenue $43,083 $35,342 21.90%

$99,343 $44,000 125.78% Other Fare Related Revenue $513,293 $342,903 49.69%
20.1% 11.3% 78.41% Percentage Total Farebox Recovery 15.9% 13.8% 15.74%

$6.67 $6.92 -3.58%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue Mile - 

METRO $6.19 $5.02 23.31%

$3.13 $3.60 -13.00%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue Mile - 

Purchased Transportation $3.66 $3.60 1.68%

$81.91 $96.55 -15.16%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue Hour - 

METRO $82.26 $71.95 14.33%

$44.37 $52.45 -15.40%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue Hour - 

Purchased Transportation $52.11 $49.88 4.49%
$36.99 $41.83 -11.57% Average Cost per Passenger - METRO $35.96 $31.62 13.74%

$19.81 $22.57 -12.26%
Average Cost per Passenger - Purchased 

Transportation $23.45 $22.25 5.36%
2.8 2.0 40.00% Average Small Bus Age 2.7 2.0 35.00%

Safety Data
1 2 -50.00% Preventable Accidents 9 9 0.00%
2 2 0.00% Nonpreventable Accidents 11 9 22.22%
3 4 -25.00% Total Accidents 20 18 9.76%

Current Month Year to Date

46



August 2016
Performance Reports

Line Service

2016 2015
Percentage 
Changed 2016 2015

Percentage 
Changed

Service Day Data
23 21 9.52% Weekdays Operated 171 171 0.00%
4 5 -20.00% Saturdays Operated 35 34 2.94%
4 5 -20.00% Sundays Operated 35 35 0.00%

Passenger Data
450,914 442,271 1.95% Total Passengers 3,233,190 3,310,486 -2.33%
17,409 17,876 -2.62% Average Weekday Passengers 16,510 16,844 -1.98%
8,132 8,716 -6.70% Average Saturday Passengers 7,644 8,209 -6.88%
4,497 4,657 -3.45% Average Sunday Passengers 4,069 4,315 -5.70%

Service Level Data
420,793 390,639 7.72% Total Vehicle Miles 3,143,345 3,049,349 3.08%
356,554 354,258 0.65% Total Vehicle Revenue Miles 2,687,713 2,793,603 -3.79%

356,946 354,790 0.61%
Total Scheduled Vehicle Revenue 

Miles 2,689,806 2,811,550 -4.33%

1.26 1.25 1.30%
Average Passenger per Revenue 

Vehicle Mile 1.20 1.19 1.51%
28,002 25,837 8.38% Total Vehicle Hours 207,846 208,351 -0.24%
27,604 26,211 5.32% Total Vehicle Revenue Hours 208,426 208,861 -0.21%

27,635 27,913 -1.00%
Total Scheduled Vehicle Revenue 

Hours 208,541 222,570 -6.30%

16.3 16.9 -3.19%
Average Passenger per Vehicle 

Revenue Hour 15.5 15.9 -2.13%
78% 86% -8.81% On-time Performance 88% 88% 0.18%

Financial Data
$133,524 $159,892 -16.49% Cash Fares $1,174,376 $1,360,786 -13.70%
$129,857 $121,962 6.47% Ticket and Pass Revenue $1,080,235 $1,046,031 3.27%

$3,737 $3,659 - Other Fare Related Revenue $146,099 $147,768 -1.13%

8.9% 8.7% 2.87% Percentage Total FareBox Recovery 9.7% 10.8% -10.15%

$8.42 $9.32 -9.64%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue 

Mile $9.19 $8.45 8.71%

$108.72 $125.90 -13.64%
Average Cost per Vehicle Revenue 

Hour $118.52 $113.08 4.81%
$6.66 $7.46 -10.80% Average Cost per Passenger $7.64 $7.75 -1.36%

4.8 4.3 11.63% Average Big Bus Age 4.7 4.3 10.17%

Safety Data
2 1 100.00% Preventable Accidents 27 23 17.39%
3 4 -25.00% Nonpreventable Accidents 27 41 -34.15%
5 5 0.00% Total Accidents 54 64 -15.63%

Current Month Year to Date

47



August 2016
Line Service Categories

2016 2015
Percentage 
Changed URBAN (1 - 34) 2016 2015

Percentage 
Changed

409,711 406,138 0.88% Total Monthly Passengers 2,944,934 3,026,610 -2.70%
31 31 0.00% Service Days 242 240 0.83%

13,216.5 13,101.2 0.88% Average Daily Passengers 12,169.1 12,610.9 -3.50%
21.1 21.0 0.88% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 18.8 19.4 -2.78%
1.9 1.8 0.88% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 1.6 1.7 -1.82%

5.16 5.39 -4.31% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 5.82 5.12 13.56%
SUBURBAN (101-104, 110)

14,122 14,617 -3.39% Total Monthly Passengers 98,774 105,618 -6.48%
23 21 9.52% Service Days 172 171 0.58%

614.0 696.0 -11.78% Average Daily Passengers 574.3 617.6 -7.01%
5.26 5.45 -3.39% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 4.93 4.88 1.11%
0.23 0.23 -3.39% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 0.20 0.21 -3.86%

22.14 24.74 -10.51% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 26.32 24.76 6.32%
EXPRESS (60 & 61)

9,290 9,325 -0.38% Total Monthly Passengers 68,450 73,078 -6.33%
23 21 9.52% Service Days 172 171 0.58%

403.9 444.0 -9.03% Average Daily Passengers 398.0 427.4 -6.88%
10.3 10.3 -0.38% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 9.2 10.0 -7.63%
0.4 0.4 -0.38% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 0.4 0.4 -7.77%

14.53 14.85 -2.12% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 16.15 14.08 14.65%
CIRCULATOR (50, 51, 53, & 59)

7,967 8,400 -5.15% Total Monthly Passengers 57,198 66,752 -14.31%
31 31 0.00% Service Days 242 240 0.83%

257.0 271.0 -5.17% Average Daily Passengers 236.4 278.1 -14.99%
4.8 5.1 -5.15% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 4.1 4.0 2.98%
0.3 0.3 -5.15% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 0.3 0.3 11.21%

30.58 31.21 -1.99% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 29.86 26.03 14.72%
DASH (54)

1,293 N/A N/A Total Monthly Passengers 1,293 N/A N/A
8 N/A N/A Service Days 8 N/A N/A

161.6 N/A N/A Average Daily Passengers 161.6 N/A N/A
2.7 N/A N/A Passengers per Vehicle Hour 2.7 N/A N/A
0.5 N/A N/A Passengers per Vehicle Mile 0.5 N/A N/A

42.04 N/A N/A Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 42.04 N/A N/A
GROCERY (91 - 95)

1,893 1,751 8.11% Total Monthly Passengers 14,182 14,591 -2.80%
23 21 9.52% Service Days 172 171 0.58%

82.3 83.4 -1.32% Average Daily Passengers 82.5 85.3 -3.28%
7.3 6.8 8.11% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 3.0 7.2 -58.17%
1.7 1.6 8.11% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 1.2 1.7 -26.88%

45.81 53.02 -13.60% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 48.24 50.61 -4.69%
Sunday Line Service

17,987 23,286 -22.76% Total Monthly Passengers 142,408 151,008 -5.70%
4 5 -20.00% Service Days 36 35 2.86%

4,496.8 4,657.2 -3.44% Average Daily Passengers 3,955.8 4,314.5 -8.31%
11.0 14.2 -22.76% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 12.7 13.1 -3.16%
0.9 1.2 -22.76% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 1.1 1.1 4.17%

4.35 8.37 -48.07% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 7.20 7.88 -8.68%
Saturday Line Service

32,526 43,579 -25.36% Total Monthly Passengers 267,535 279,103 -4.14%
4 5 -20.00% Service Days 34 34 0.00%

8,131.5 8,715.8 -6.70% Average Daily Passengers 7,868.7 8,208.9 -4.14%
13.7 18.4 -25.36% Passengers per Vehicle Hour 17.3 17.3 -0.51%
1.1 1.5 -25.36% Passengers per Vehicle Mile 1.5 1.4 4.11%

4.69 6.43 -27.18% Total Operating Cost Per Passenger 5.46 5.98 -8.61%
Call-A-Bus

101 120 -15.83% Total Monthly Passengers 1137 2104 -45.96%
U of A ZipCard

18020 15526 16.06% Total Monthly Passengers 144388 148614 -2.84%

Current Month Year to Date

48



   
M

ET
R

O
 R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
TR

A
N

SI
T 

A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y
9/

19
/2

01
6

   
   

 M
O

N
TH

LY
 R

EP
O

R
T 

O
F 

O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
S

A
ug

us
t 2

01
6

T
O

T
A

L

PA
SS

EN
-

R
EV

R
EV

PE
AK

FA
R

EB
O

X 
R

EV
EN

U
E

G
EN

ER
AL

 
FA

R
E

TO
T 

FA
R

EB
O

X
PE

R
 R

EV
 

H
O

U
R

PE
R

 R
EV

 M
IL

E
Al

lo
ca

tio
n 

m
od

el
G

ER
S

H
O

U
R

S
M

IL
ES

VE
H

IC
LE

S
R

EV
 H

O
U

R
R

EV
 M

IL
E

R
EV

 H
O

U
R

R
EV

 M
IL

E
Al

lo
ca

tio
n 

M
od

el
(P

er
 H

ou
r)

(P
er

 M
ile

)
Al

lo
ca

tio
n 

M
od

el

 1
W

es
t M

ar
ke

t
18

,3
94

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,4
95

$ 
   

  
33

,8
90

$ 
   

  
20

3,
06

2
$ 

   
  

17
5,

56
8

$ 
   

   
 

17
8,

90
9

$ 
   

   
53

,2
09

   
  

1,
86

8
20

,8
51

6
28

.5
   

   
   

 
2.

55
   

   
  

3.
18

$ 
   

   
2.

66
$ 

   
   

   
2.

73
$ 

   
   

   
16

.7
%

19
.3

%
18

.9
%

2
A

rli
ng

to
n

18
,0

70
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,8

08
$ 

   
  

31
,8

78
$ 

   
  

17
8,

86
8

$ 
   

  
16

1,
85

3
$ 

   
   

 
16

2,
59

6
$ 

   
   

47
,4

16
   

  
1,

64
5

19
,2

22
6

28
.8

   
   

   
 

2.
47

   
   

  
3.

10
$ 

   
   

2.
74

$ 
   

   
   

2.
76

$ 
   

   
   

17
.8

%
19

.7
%

19
.6

%
3

C
op

le
y/

H
aw

ki
ns

10
,3

60
$ 

   
   

   
  

7,
55

0
$ 

   
   

 
17

,9
10

$ 
   

  
12

5,
99

6
$ 

   
  

99
,1

26
$ 

   
   

   
11

5,
80

2
$ 

   
   

25
,9

26
   

  
1,

15
9

11
,7

73
5

22
.4

   
   

   
 

2.
20

   
   

  
4.

17
$ 

   
   

3.
13

$ 
   

   
   

3.
78

$ 
   

   
   

14
.2

%
18

.1
%

15
.5

%
4

D
el

ia
/N

 H
aw

ki
ns

4,
72

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

86
9

$ 
   

   
 

7,
59

5
$ 

   
   

 
59

,7
65

$ 
   

   
 

53
,6

93
$ 

   
   

   
64

,5
46

$ 
   

   
  

9,
85

2
   

   
 

55
0

6,
37

7
4

17
.9

   
   

   
 

1.
54

   
   

  
5.

30
$ 

   
   

4.
68

$ 
   

   
   

5.
78

$ 
   

   
   

12
.7

%
14

.1
%

11
.8

%
5

Ea
st

 M
ar

ke
t/E

lle
t

2,
93

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

97
6

$ 
   

   
 

4,
91

0
$ 

   
   

 
69

,3
45

$ 
   

   
 

78
,0

19
$ 

   
   

   
69

,3
03

$ 
   

   
  

6,
78

7
   

   
 

63
8

9,
26

6
3

10
.6

   
   

   
 

0.
73

   
   

  
9.

49
$ 

   
   

10
.7

7
$ 

   
   

 
9.

49
$ 

   
   

   
7.

1%
6.

3%
7.

1%
6

E.
 M

ar
ke

t/L
ak

em
or

e
6,

25
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

5,
83

1
$ 

   
   

 
12

,0
82

$ 
   

  
11

2,
17

9
$ 

   
  

11
7,

66
1

$ 
   

   
 

11
1,

30
5

$ 
   

   
20

,0
22

   
  

1,
03

2
13

,9
74

5
19

.4
   

   
   

 
1.

43
   

   
  

5.
00

$ 
   

   
5.

27
$ 

   
   

   
4.

96
$ 

   
   

   
10

.8
%

10
.3

%
10

.9
%

7
C

uy
ah

og
a 

Fa
lls

 A
ve

4,
63

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

63
3

$ 
   

   
 

9,
27

0
$ 

   
   

 
91

,7
22

$ 
   

   
 

73
,6

84
$ 

   
   

   
86

,4
36

$ 
   

   
  

15
,9

08
   

  
84

4
8,

75
1

4
18

.9
   

   
   

 
1.

82
   

   
  

5.
18

$ 
   

   
4.

05
$ 

   
   

   
4.

85
$ 

   
   

   
10

.1
%

12
.6

%
10

.7
%

8
K

en
m

or
e/

B
ar

be
rt

on
10

,3
63

$ 
   

   
   

  
7,

36
0

$ 
   

   
 

17
,7

22
$ 

   
  

11
4,

47
3

$ 
   

  
10

9,
38

1
$ 

   
   

 
10

5,
94

4
$ 

   
   

25
,2

72
   

  
1,

05
3

12
,9

91
4

24
.0

   
   

   
 

1.
95

   
   

  
3.

83
$ 

   
   

3.
63

$ 
   

   
   

3.
49

$ 
   

   
   

15
.5

%
16

.2
%

16
.7

%
9

W
oo

st
er

/E
as

t A
ve

6,
01

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

17
5

$ 
   

   
 

10
,1

88
$ 

   
  

78
,5

94
$ 

   
   

 
69

,4
18

$ 
   

   
   

73
,0

08
$ 

   
   

  
14

,3
37

   
  

72
3

8,
24

4
3

19
.8

   
   

   
 

1.
74

   
   

  
4.

77
$ 

   
   

4.
13

$ 
   

   
   

4.
38

$ 
   

   
   

13
.0

%
14

.7
%

14
.0

%
10

H
ow

ar
d/

Po
rt

ag
e 

Tr
8,

92
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
59

8
$ 

   
   

 
16

,5
20

$ 
   

  
12

1,
01

8
$ 

   
  

11
6,

31
5

$ 
   

   
 

11
0,

94
7

$ 
   

   
26

,0
91

   
  

1,
11

3
13

,8
14

4
23

.4
   

   
   

 
1.

89
   

   
  

4.
01

$ 
   

   
3.

82
$ 

   
   

   
3.

62
$ 

   
   

   
13

.7
%

14
.2

%
14

.9
%

11
So

ut
h 

A
kr

on
98

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

68
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

67
0

$ 
   

   
 

27
,8

81
$ 

   
   

 
23

,6
85

$ 
   

   
   

25
,3

96
$ 

   
   

  
2,

35
7

   
   

 
25

6
2,

81
3

1
9.

2
   

   
   

   
0.

84
   

   
  

11
.1

2
$ 

   
 

9.
34

$ 
   

   
   

10
.0

7
$ 

   
   

 
6.

0%
7.

0%
6.

6%
12

Ta
llm

ad
ge

 H
ill

4,
23

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

84
6

$ 
   

   
 

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

 
10

5,
82

8
$ 

   
  

78
,0

35
$ 

   
   

   
10

0,
43

8
$ 

   
   

16
,6

42
   

  
97

3
9,

26
8

5
17

.1
   

   
   

 
1.

80
   

   
  

5.
81

$ 
   

   
4.

14
$ 

   
   

   
5.

49
$ 

   
   

   
8.

6%
11

.6
%

9.
0%

13
G

ra
nt

/F
ire

st
on

e
5,

31
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
71

2
$ 

   
   

 
10

,0
22

$ 
   

  
88

,5
43

$ 
   

   
 

65
,5

19
$ 

   
   

   
83

,1
30

$ 
   

   
  

16
,1

80
   

  
81

4
7,

78
1

4
19

.9
   

   
   

 
2.

08
   

   
  

4.
85

$ 
   

   
3.

43
$ 

   
   

   
4.

52
$ 

   
   

   
11

.3
%

15
.3

%
12

.1
%

14
Eu

cl
id

/B
ar

be
rt

on
9,

76
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
23

5
$ 

   
   

 
17

,0
01

$ 
   

  
18

0,
68

2
$ 

   
  

16
4,

02
1

$ 
   

   
 

15
8,

87
1

$ 
   

   
24

,8
44

   
  

1,
66

2
19

,4
80

5
14

.9
   

   
   

 
1.

28
   

   
  

6.
59

$ 
   

   
5.

92
$ 

   
   

   
5.

71
$ 

   
   

   
9.

4%
10

.4
%

10
.7

%
17

B
ro

w
n/

In
m

an
7,

51
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

5,
29

3
$ 

   
   

 
12

,8
08

$ 
   

  
10

2,
32

0
$ 

   
  

87
,4

16
$ 

   
   

   
10

0,
15

1
$ 

   
   

18
,1

74
   

  
94

1
10

,3
82

5
19

.3
   

   
   

 
1.

75
   

   
  

4.
93

$ 
   

   
4.

11
$ 

   
   

   
4.

81
$ 

   
   

   
12

.5
%

14
.7

%
12

.8
%

18
Th

or
nt

on
/M

an
ch

es
te

r
6,

69
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
80

9
$ 

   
   

 
11

,4
99

$ 
   

  
87

,6
70

$ 
   

   
 

89
,0

61
$ 

   
   

   
81

,7
78

$ 
   

   
  

16
,5

12
   

  
80

6
10

,5
77

3
20

.5
   

   
   

 
1.

56
   

   
  

4.
61

$ 
   

   
4.

70
$ 

   
   

   
4.

26
$ 

   
   

   
13

.1
%

12
.9

%
14

.1
%

19
Ea

st
la

nd
6,

41
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

5,
28

5
$ 

   
   

 
11

,7
01

$ 
   

  
94

,6
70

$ 
   

   
 

72
,0

28
$ 

   
   

   
82

,6
59

$ 
   

   
  

18
,1

48
   

  
87

1
8,

55
4

3
20

.8
   

   
   

 
2.

12
   

   
  

4.
57

$ 
   

   
3.

32
$ 

   
   

   
3.

91
$ 

   
   

   
12

.4
%

16
.2

%
14

.2
%

21
So

ut
h 

M
ai

n
51

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

46
0

$ 
   

   
 

22
,9

22
$ 

   
   

 
17

,0
23

$ 
   

   
   

21
,3

49
$ 

   
   

  
3,

23
6

   
   

 
21

1
2,

02
2

1
15

.3
   

   
   

 
1.

60
   

   
  

6.
63

$ 
   

   
4.

81
$ 

   
   

   
6.

15
$ 

   
   

   
6.

4%
8.

6%
6.

8%
24

La
ke

sh
or

e
1,

61
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
41

8
$ 

   
   

 
3,

03
3

$ 
   

   
 

32
,3

22
$ 

   
   

 
20

,7
33

$ 
   

   
   

32
,5

48
$ 

   
   

  
4,

87
0

   
   

 
29

7
2,

46
2

2
16

.4
   

   
   

 
1.

98
   

   
  

6.
01

$ 
   

   
3.

63
$ 

   
   

   
6.

06
$ 

   
   

   
9.

4%
14

.6
%

9.
3%

26
Ex

ch
an

ge
/W

hi
te

po
nd

2,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

98
9

$ 
   

   
 

4,
10

9
$ 

   
   

 
60

,2
24

$ 
   

   
 

53
,5

30
$ 

   
   

   
54

,4
65

$ 
   

   
  

6,
82

9
   

   
 

55
4

6,
35

8
2

12
.3

   
   

   
 

1.
07

   
   

  
8.

22
$ 

   
   

7.
24

$ 
   

   
   

7.
37

$ 
   

   
   

6.
8%

7.
7%

7.
5%

28
M

er
rim

an
 V

al
le

y
1,

13
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
11

7
$ 

   
   

 
2,

24
8

$ 
   

   
 

43
,1

76
$ 

   
   

 
39

,3
71

$ 
   

   
   

47
,3

05
$ 

   
   

  
3,

83
5

   
   

 
39

7
4,

67
6

3
9.

7
   

   
   

   
0.

82
   

   
  

10
.6

7
$ 

   
 

9.
68

$ 
   

   
   

11
.7

5
$ 

   
   

 
5.

2%
5.

7%
4.

8%
30

G
oo

dy
ea

r/D
ar

ro
w

4,
15

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

10
1

$ 
   

   
 

7,
25

6
$ 

   
   

 
81

,6
18

$ 
   

   
 

74
,9

93
$ 

   
   

   
75

,7
53

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

50
   

  
75

1
8,

90
7

3
14

.2
   

   
   

 
1.

20
   

   
  

6.
98

$ 
   

   
6.

36
$ 

   
   

   
6.

43
$ 

   
   

   
8.

9%
9.

7%
9.

6%
33

St
at

e 
R

d/
W

yo
ga

 L
ak

e
2,

10
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
64

7
$ 

   
   

 
3,

74
8

$ 
   

   
 

43
,0

95
$ 

   
   

 
45

,9
02

$ 
   

   
   

43
,2

96
$ 

   
   

  
5,

65
7

   
   

 
39

6
5,

45
2

2
14

.3
   

   
   

 
1.

04
   

   
  

6.
96

$ 
   

   
7.

45
$ 

   
   

   
6.

99
$ 

   
   

   
8.

7%
8.

2%
8.

7%
34

C
as

ca
de

 V
ill

ag
e/

U
hl

er
6,

58
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
93

8
$ 

   
   

 
11

,5
24

$ 
   

  
12

1,
51

6
$ 

   
  

10
1,

29
4

$ 
   

   
 

10
8,

48
6

$ 
   

   
16

,9
57

   
  

1,
11

8
12

,0
30

4
15

.2
   

   
   

 
1.

41
   

   
  

6.
49

$ 
   

   
5.

29
$ 

   
   

   
5.

72
$ 

   
   

   
9.

5%
11

.4
%

10
.6

%
50

M
on

tr
os

e 
C

irc
ul

at
or

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
73

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
29

4
$ 

   
   

 
58

,4
59

$ 
   

   
 

51
,2

68
$ 

   
   

   
58

,2
01

$ 
   

   
  

2,
52

4
   

   
 

53
8

6,
08

9
3

4.
7

   
   

   
   

0.
41

   
   

  
22

.6
5

$ 
   

 
19

.8
0

$ 
   

   
 

22
.5

5
$ 

   
   

 
2.

2%
2.

5%
2.

2%
51

St
ow

 C
irc

ul
at

or
53

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
96

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

55
,5

83
$ 

   
   

 
70

,1
50

$ 
   

   
   

54
,8

54
$ 

   
   

  
1,

46
5

   
   

 
51

1
8,

33
1

2
2.

9
   

   
   

   
0.

18
   

   
  

37
.2

8
$ 

   
 

47
.2

3
$ 

   
   

 
36

.7
9

$ 
   

   
 

1.
7%

1.
4%

1.
8%

53
Po

rt
ag

e/
G

ra
ha

m
1,

11
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

71
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

82
9

$ 
   

   
 

50
,2

61
$ 

   
   

 
55

,2
12

$ 
   

   
   

54
,2

44
$ 

   
   

  
2,

46
0

   
   

 
46

2
6,

55
7

3
5.

3
   

   
   

   
0.

38
   

   
  

19
.6

9
$ 

   
 

21
.7

0
$ 

   
   

 
21

.3
1

$ 
   

   
 

3.
6%

3.
3%

3.
4%

54
D

A
SH

 D
ow

nt
ow

n
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
52

,0
38

$ 
   

   
 

22
,0

60
$ 

   
   

   
54

,3
55

$ 
   

   
  

1,
29

3
   

   
 

47
9

2,
62

0
4

2.
7

   
   

   
   

0.
49

   
   

  
40

.2
5

$ 
   

 
17

.0
6

$ 
   

   
 

42
.0

4
$ 

   
   

 
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
59

C
ha

pe
l H

ill
 C

irc
ul

at
or

56
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

3
$ 

   
   

 
34

,8
83

$ 
   

   
 

27
,5

58
$ 

   
   

   
35

,2
57

$ 
   

   
  

1,
51

8
   

   
 

32
1

3,
27

3
2

4.
7

   
   

   
   

0.
46

   
   

  
22

.3
2

$ 
   

 
17

.4
9

$ 
   

   
 

22
.5

6
$ 

   
   

 
2.

9%
3.

6%
2.

8%
60

N
C

 E
xp

re
ss

 C
ha

pe
l H

ill
1,

15
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

64
8

$ 
   

   
 

18
,7

96
$ 

   
   

 
40

,2
43

$ 
   

   
   

28
,3

95
$ 

   
   

  
1,

68
1

   
   

 
17

3
4,

77
9

2
9.

7
   

   
   

   
0.

35
   

   
  

10
.2

0
$ 

   
 

22
.9

6
$ 

   
   

 
15

.9
1

$ 
   

   
 

8.
8%

4.
1%

5.
8%

61
N

C
 E

xp
re

ss
 M

on
tr

os
e

11
,3

26
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
21

6
$ 

   
   

 
13

,5
41

$ 
   

  
88

,7
28

$ 
   

   
 

16
8,

09
7

$ 
   

   
 

10
7,

14
1

$ 
   

   
7,

60
9

   
   

 
81

6
19

,9
64

5
9.

3
   

   
   

   
0.

38
   

   
  

9.
88

$ 
   

   
20

.3
1

$ 
   

   
 

12
.3

0
$ 

   
   

 
15

.3
%

8.
1%

12
.6

%
10

1
R

ic
hf

ie
ld

/B
at

h
12

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
58

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

35
,3

83
$ 

   
   

 
63

,7
72

$ 
   

   
   

42
,1

61
$ 

   
   

  
1,

57
5

   
   

 
32

5
7,

57
4

2
4.

8
   

   
   

   
0.

21
   

   
  

22
.0

9
$ 

   
 

40
.1

2
$ 

   
   

 
26

.4
0

$ 
   

   
 

1.
7%

0.
9%

1.
4%

10
2

N
or

th
fie

ld
 E

xp
re

ss
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

06
3

$ 
   

   
 

1,
15

5
$ 

   
   

 
85

,4
36

$ 
   

   
 

18
3,

68
7

$ 
   

   
 

92
,6

42
$ 

   
   

  
3,

65
1

   
   

 
78

6
21

,8
16

2
4.

6
   

   
   

   
0.

17
   

   
  

23
.0

8
$ 

   
 

49
.9

9
$ 

   
   

 
25

.0
6

$ 
   

   
 

1.
4%

0.
6%

1.
2%

10
3

St
ow

/H
ud

so
n

13
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
76

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

89
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
51

,7
20

$ 
   

   
 

10
1,

09
1

$ 
   

   
 

58
,3

05
$ 

   
   

  
2,

62
9

   
   

 
47

6
12

,0
06

2
5.

5
   

   
   

   
0.

22
   

   
  

19
.3

3
$ 

   
 

38
.1

1
$ 

   
   

 
21

.8
4

$ 
   

   
 

1.
7%

0.
9%

1.
5%

10
4

Tw
in

sb
ur

g 
C

re
ek

si
de

21
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
96

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
18

3
$ 

   
   

 
76

,4
34

$ 
   

   
 

14
3,

96
7

$ 
   

   
 

85
,4

02
$ 

   
   

  
3,

31
4

   
   

 
70

3
17

,0
98

3
4.

7
   

   
   

   
0.

19
   

   
  

22
.7

1
$ 

   
 

43
.0

9
$ 

   
   

 
25

.4
1

$ 
   

   
 

1.
5%

0.
8%

1.
4%

11
0

G
re

en
/S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

86
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
86

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

42
,3

01
$ 

   
   

 
58

,0
21

$ 
   

   
   

45
,0

58
$ 

   
   

  
2,

95
3

   
   

 
38

9
6,

89
1

2
7.

6
   

   
   

   
0.

43
   

   
  

14
.0

3
$ 

   
 

19
.3

6
$ 

   
   

 
14

.9
7

$ 
   

   
 

2.
0%

1.
5%

1.
9%

91
M

on
da

y 
G

ro
ce

ry
54

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

64
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

51
6

$ 
   

   
   

3,
14

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,7

49
$ 

   
   

  
33

8
   

   
   

 
78

37
4

2
4.

3
   

   
   

   
0.

90
   

   
  

23
.2

9
$ 

   
 

7.
41

$ 
   

   
   

44
.6

9
$ 

   
   

 
7.

6%
20

.5
%

4.
1%

92
Tu

es
da

y 
G

ro
ce

ry
1,

13
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

76
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
21

4
$ 

   
   

 
5,

15
5

$ 
   

   
   

2,
92

6
$ 

   
   

   
  

13
,7

90
$ 

   
   

  
26

2
   

   
   

 
47

34
8

2
5.

5
   

   
   

   
0.

75
   

   
  

15
.0

4
$ 

   
 

6.
53

$ 
   

   
   

48
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
23

.6
%

41
.5

%
8.

8%
93

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 G

ro
ce

ry
79

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
93

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
76

8
$ 

   
   

   
7,

25
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,5
01

$ 
   

   
  

47
2

   
   

   
 

62
86

2
2

7.
6

   
   

   
   

0.
55

   
   

  
12

.3
6

$ 
   

 
13

.3
9

$ 
   

   
 

30
.8

6
$ 

   
   

 
13

.8
%

12
.9

%
6.

0%
94

Th
ur

sd
ay

 G
ro

ce
ry

1,
01

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
15

1
$ 

   
   

 
9,

25
0

$ 
   

   
   

2,
85

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
,2

70
$ 

   
   

  
45

1
   

   
   

 
85

33
9

3
5.

3
   

   
   

   
1.

33
   

   
  

17
.9

6
$ 

   
 

3.
78

$ 
   

   
   

44
.6

1
$ 

   
   

 
12

.4
%

40
.3

%
5.

4%
95

Fr
id

ay
 G

ro
ce

ry
1,

21
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

32
5

$ 
   

   
 

5,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
2,

15
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,8
97

$ 
   

   
  

37
0

   
   

   
 

51
25

6
2

7.
2

   
   

   
   

1.
45

   
   

  
11

.5
3

$ 
   

 
2.

23
$ 

   
   

   
33

.9
8

$ 
   

   
 

23
.7

%
61

.6
%

9.
5%

B
oE

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

36
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
-

-
12

2
   

   
   

 
-

-
-

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

-
-

JA
R

C
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

22
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

83
5

$ 
   

   
   

8,
11

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
,1

26
$ 

   
   

  
78

8
   

   
   

 
54

96
4

2
14

.7
   

   
   

 
0.

82
   

   
  

7.
11

$ 
   

   
10

.0
1

$ 
   

   
 

18
.9

0
$ 

   
   

 
3.

9%
2.

8%
1.

5%
ZO

N
E

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
21

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

40
,3

42
$ 

   
   

 
79

,7
45

$ 
   

   
  

73
1

   
   

   
 

37
1

11
2.

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
 

54
.9

0
$ 

   
 

10
8.

80
$ 

   
  

0.
5%

0.
3%

Lo
op

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,9

39
$ 

   
   

 
12

,2
07

$ 
   

   
   

17
,6

25
$ 

   
   

  
54

2
   

   
   

 
16

5
1,

45
0

1
3.

3
   

   
   

   
0.

37
   

   
  

33
.1

0
$ 

   
 

22
.5

2
$ 

   
   

 
32

.5
2

$ 
   

   
 

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

SC
A

T
45

,4
89

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
45

,4
89

$ 
   

  
83

0,
18

6
$ 

   
  

78
9,

63
6

$ 
   

   
 

72
3,

79
8

$ 
   

   
16

,9
08

   
  

7,
63

6
93

,7
81

34
2.

2
   

   
   

   
0.

18
   

   
  

46
.4

1
$ 

   
 

44
.0

1
$ 

   
   

 
40

.1
2

$ 
   

   
 

5.
5%

5.
8%

6.
3%

TO
TA

LS
:

Li
ne

 S
er

vi
ce

17
0,

35
3

$ 
   

   
   

12
9,

48
1

$ 
   

29
9,

83
4

$ 
   

2,
97

8,
96

7
$ 

  
2,

99
8,

90
2

$ 
   

 
2,

98
5,

51
2

$ 
   

44
5,

91
7

27
,4

00
35

6,
16

4
14

3
16

.3
   

   
   

 
1.

25
   

   
  

6.
01

$ 
   

   
7.

52
$ 

   
   

   
6.

02
$ 

   
   

   
10

.1
%

10
.0

%
10

.0
%

TO
TA

LS
:

SC
A

T
45

,4
89

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
45

,4
89

$ 
   

  
84

8,
12

5
$ 

   
  

80
1,

84
3

$ 
   

   
 

74
1,

42
3

$ 
   

   
17

,4
50

7,
80

1
95

,2
31

34
5.

5
   

   
   

   
0.

55
   

   
  

46
.0

0
$ 

   
 

43
.3

4
$ 

   
   

 
39

.8
8

$ 
   

   
 

5.
4%

5.
7%

6.
1%

FA
R

EB
O

X

PA
SS

EN
G

ER
:

R
EC

O
VE

R
Y

PE
R

:

R
O

U
T

E
 #

 / 
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N

P
A

SS
E

N
G

E
R

S

EX
PE

N
SE

 

 N
E

T
 C

O
ST

 P
E

R
 

49



20
16

 M
O

N
TH

LY
 R

ID
ER

SH
IP

 B
Y 

R
O

U
TE

R
ou

te
 #

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
A

PR
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

L
A

U
G

%
 C

ha
ng

e
A

ug
-1

5
SE

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

1
W

es
t M

ar
ke

t
43

,3
38

45
,1

50
47

,3
83

47
,3

28
47

,9
31

47
,0

59
47

,5
08

53
,1

59
0.

0%
53

,1
69

   
   

 

2
A

rl
in

gt
on

40
,1

86
41

,6
92

43
,7

64
41

,8
71

40
,5

22
41

,2
40

42
,1

48
47

,4
02

-5
.8

%
50

,3
19

   
   

 

3
C

op
le

y 
R

d/
H

aw
ki

ns
22

,4
35

22
,4

95
24

,2
57

24
,2

67
23

,4
74

22
,6

52
23

,8
27

25
,5

21
-4

.2
%

26
,6

44
   

   
 

4
D

el
ia

/N
 H

aw
ki

ns
9,

60
3

10
,6

09
11

,0
26

10
,6

34
10

,4
74

8,
70

6
8,

78
4

9,
85

2
-3

.9
%

10
,2

56
   

   
 

5
E

as
t M

ar
ke

t/
E

lle
t

6,
40

5
6,

94
9

7,
04

1
6,

90
0

6,
69

3
6,

32
2

5,
41

8
6,

78
7

-1
.3

%
6,

87
6

   
   

   

6
E

as
t M

ar
ke

t/
L

ak
em

or
e

16
,0

42
17

,5
58

18
,0

74
17

,3
90

18
,6

32
17

,3
95

17
,4

75
19

,7
35

2.
8%

19
,1

99
   

   
 

7
C

uy
ah

og
a 

Fa
lls

 A
ve

12
,8

64
13

,5
14

15
,2

12
14

,4
92

14
,4

05
14

,0
37

13
,6

51
15

,9
08

-4
.5

%
16

,6
54

   
   

 

8
K

en
m

or
e/

B
ar

be
rt

on
19

,6
89

21
,1

20
22

,7
61

22
,5

78
22

,0
44

22
,1

82
21

,6
21

25
,2

72
-1

.5
%

25
,6

63
   

   
 

9
W

oo
st

er
/E

as
t A

ve
12

,4
85

12
,9

64
12

,9
74

12
,6

90
12

,8
30

12
,1

88
12

,7
49

14
,3

17
1.

1%
14

,1
57

   
   

 

10
H

ow
ar

d/
Po

rt
ag

e 
T

ra
il

19
,4

72
20

,7
50

21
,5

30
21

,9
10

21
,8

77
23

,1
40

22
,8

28
25

,9
10

3.
8%

24
,9

50
   

   
 

11
So

ut
h 

A
kr

on
1,

91
4

1,
96

4
2,

41
7

2,
02

0
2,

14
1

1,
99

6
2,

01
6

2,
33

5
-8

.8
%

2,
56

1
   

   
   

12
T

al
lm

ad
ge

 H
ill

14
,0

25
13

,9
57

14
,2

26
14

,6
61

15
,3

69
14

,3
43

13
,7

15
16

,5
19

-9
.6

%
18

,2
66

   
   

 

13
G

ra
nt

/F
ir

es
to

ne
 P

ar
k

15
,8

21
15

,2
57

15
,1

64
14

,8
26

14
,8

24
14

,4
74

14
,3

68
16

,0
83

-1
3.

5%
18

,5
87

   
   

 

14
E

uc
lid

/B
ar

be
rt

on
 X

P
19

,3
11

20
,5

19
22

,2
02

21
,9

53
22

,3
29

22
,1

53
21

,8
69

24
,8

44
-6

.2
%

26
,4

73
   

   
 

17
B

ro
w

n/
In

m
an

15
,7

45
17

,5
88

18
,3

40
18

,4
55

17
,2

21
16

,4
30

15
,5

55
18

,1
74

7.
6%

16
,8

97
   

   
 

18
T

ho
rn

to
n/

M
an

ch
es

te
r

14
,9

43
15

,3
60

16
,0

87
16

,1
27

15
,1

38
14

,3
28

14
,4

17
16

,5
12

-1
2.

6%
18

,8
84

   
   

 

19
E

as
tl

an
d

14
,7

45
14

,8
53

16
,6

96
16

,3
33

15
,6

03
15

,5
74

15
,6

28
17

,9
75

-0
.7

%
18

,1
04

   
   

 

21
So

ut
h 

M
ai

n
30

3
1,

25
0

2,
37

4
2,

56
6

2,
32

8
2,

71
2

3,
00

6
3,

23
6

N
/A

-

24
L

ak
es

ho
re

 
4,

15
3

4,
32

1
4,

02
3

4,
38

0
3,

99
5

3,
98

5
4,

15
3

4,
86

5
8.

0%
4,

50
6

   
   

   

26
W

 E
xc

ha
ng

e/
W

hi
te

 P
on

d
6,

38
7

6,
54

5
6,

86
3

6,
45

6
6,

42
7

6,
66

3
6,

12
3

6,
82

9
-1

7.
1%

8,
23

4
   

   
   

28
M

er
ri

m
an

 V
al

le
y

3,
41

0
3,

62
6

3,
51

4
3,

53
7

3,
51

4
2,

71
0

2,
49

5
3,

80
1

7.
6%

3,
53

3
   

   
   

30
G

oo
dy

ea
r/

D
ar

ro
w

9,
94

2
9,

94
6

10
,6

95
10

,7
43

10
,5

03
9,

45
7

9,
26

6
10

,6
50

-1
0.

2%
11

,8
61

   
   

 

33
St

at
e 

R
d/

W
yo

ga
 L

ak
e

4,
48

0
4,

41
2

5,
03

5
4,

94
4

4,
92

1
4,

90
9

4,
61

8
5,

65
7

-2
.7

%
5,

81
4

   
   

   

34
C

as
ca

de
 V

ill
ag

e/
U

hl
er

14
,2

10
14

,5
78

15
,9

81
15

,2
62

14
,8

19
15

,0
98

14
,9

98
16

,9
41

-1
.6

%
17

,2
19

   
   

 

50
M

on
tr

os
e 

C
ir

cu
la

to
r

1,
90

6
2,

05
1

1,
95

6
2,

00
7

2,
50

3
2,

68
0

2,
51

8
2,

51
9

4.
1%

2,
42

0
   

   
   

51
St

ow
 C

ir
cu

la
to

r
1,

08
8

1,
49

3
1,

43
4

1,
31

4
1,

47
8

1,
47

5
1,

23
6

1,
46

5
-7

.6
%

1,
58

5
   

   
   

53
Po

rt
ag

e/
G

ra
ha

m
1,

74
8

2,
08

7
2,

30
7

2,
03

2
2,

06
4

2,
22

5
2,

20
1

2,
44

6
-1

.0
%

2,
47

1
   

   
   

54
D

A
SH

 C
ir

cu
la

to
r

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
1,

29
3*

N
/A

-
*8

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
ay

s
59

C
ha

pe
l H

ill
 C

ir
cu

la
to

r
1,

07
7

1,
35

3
1,

46
8

1,
40

9
1,

43
1

1,
39

8
1,

28
8

1,
51

8
-4

.3
%

1,
58

6
   

   
   

60
N

C
X

 C
ha

pe
l H

ill
/C

le
ve

la
nd

1,
63

2
1,

83
0

1,
80

3
1,

80
0

1,
70

8
1,

66
3

1,
20

7
1,

68
1

21
.2

%
1,

38
7

   
   

   

61
N

C
X

 M
on

tr
os

e/
C

le
ve

la
nd

6,
42

3
6,

92
7

7,
61

7
7,

00
0

6,
56

4
7,

58
4

5,
40

2
7,

60
9

14
.1

%
6,

66
7

   
   

   

10
1

R
ic

hf
ie

ld
/B

at
h

1,
25

5
1,

55
2

1,
72

9
1,

60
5

1,
51

5
1,

66
4

1,
45

5
1,

57
5

29
.1

%
1,

22
0

   
   

   

10
2

N
or

th
fi

el
d 

E
xp

re
ss

2,
57

9
3,

02
8

3,
38

5
3,

03
5

3,
03

6
3,

59
7

2,
93

5
3,

61
2

3.
6%

3,
48

5
   

   
   

10
3

St
ow

/H
ud

so
n

1,
84

1
2,

68
5

3,
13

2
2,

73
2

2,
32

4
2,

37
0

1,
93

6
2,

62
9

-4
.7

%
2,

75
8

   
   

   

10
4

T
w

in
sb

ur
g 

C
re

ek
si

de
2,

69
7

2,
57

3
2,

72
0

2,
26

7
2,

35
4

2,
74

5
2,

95
9

3,
31

4
9.

2%
3,

03
6

   
   

   

11
0

G
re

en
/S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
2,

20
8

2,
34

2
2,

52
4

2,
36

1
2,

37
0

2,
55

1
2,

52
0

2,
95

3
22

.3
%

2,
41

4
   

   
   

TO
TA

L:
36

6,
36

2
38

4,
89

8
40

7,
71

4
39

9,
88

5
39

5,
36

1
38

9,
70

5
38

3,
89

3
43

9,
60

5
-1

.8
%

44
7,

85
5

50



 

 

 
Date: September 28, 2016 
To: Saundra M. Foster, President and Other Board Members 
From: Alex Harnocz, Interim Planning & Development Director 
RE: August Performance Report and Planning Update 
 
August is a month of transition at METRO. We transition into our Fall Schedule with the return of Akron 
Public Schools. In the Performance Report you will notice the return of BOE ridership statistics, as well as 
the new DASH Circulator. The month of August was also a period of transition for our Planning 
Department. Kris Liljeblad departed for retirement and distributed his many tasks and ongoing projects 
among the staff. We have been working hard to incorporate those pieces of work into our pre-existing 
workflow and we have been working hard to keep up strong teamwork and collaboration within the 
Planning Department.  
 
I am very appreciative of the opportunity to serve as the Interim Planning & Development Director. I 
hope to carry on the strong projects that we have in the works and to expand our commitment to data-
driven decision making. We are in a great position with more information available to us than ever 
before, and METRO has a staff that is eager to make that information useful.  
 
Overall, ridership continues its slight decline. The total ridership number shows a slight uptick from 
August 2015, but we were helped by two additional weekdays. In my eyes, average weekday ridership is 
the key indicator for the entire performance report. It is down 2.24% month over month and 1.86% year 
to date. To me, average weekday ridership represents how well we do the basics. I believe that 
improving the fundamentals of our service—frequency and reliability—are the keys to reversing the 
downward trend in that indicator and many of the other we measure ourselves.  
 
In addition to the Performance Report, you will see three resolutions from the Planning Department 
related to the Title VI Report for 2013 – 2016. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act guarantees non-
discrimination in the provision of transit service. In practice, this means a lot of detailed analysis and 
study of the operation of our system and proposed service changes. FTA requires a Board resolution 
adopting the report as a whole, but also additional resolutions focused on Service Monitoring (how well 
we measure up to our own stated standards) and Equity Analysis (how we evaluated major service 
changes to ensure non-discrimination).  

 
 
 

51



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

52



 

 

Title VI 

Program Report 
For 

The Federal Transit Administration 

US Department of Transportation 

By 

METRO Regional Transit Authority 

Akron, OH 

 

 
Richard M. Enty, 

Executive Director/  
Secretary-Treasurer 

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
416 Kenmore Boulevard 

Akron, OH 44301 
 

September 2016 
 

53



INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) with documentation of 
METRO Regional Transit Authority’s (METRO) compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, dated October 3, 2012. METRO is reporting its compliance as a public 
transit provider serving an urbanized area with a population exceeding 200,000 people. 
 
1.)  GENERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.1)  Title VI Notice to the Public 
 
A notice is printed and posted on all buses and at METRO facilities including 416 Kenmore Boulevard, 
Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center, and Rolling Acres Transit Center to read as follows:  “METRO operates 
programs without regard to race, color, and national origin.  If you feel that you have been discriminated 
against due to race, color or national origin, please go to our web-site www.akronmetro.org or call 330-
762-0341.”  In addition, all public notices and all public documents contain a non-discrimination clause.  
A copy of the public notice posted on buses is included in Attachment B.  
 

1.2)  Title VI Complaint Procedures 
 

METRO has developed procedures for investigating and tracking Title VI complaints filed against them 
and has made these procedures for filing a complaint available to members of the public upon request. 
Complaints may be made by mail, by phone through METRO’s Customer Service Department, in person, 
or online. The Title VI Complaint Form is available at http://www.akronmetro.org/metro-title-vi-
concerns.aspx  
 

1.3)  Title VI Complaint Form 
 

A copy of the Title VI Complaint Form is included as Attachment C.  
 

1.4)  List of Transit-Related Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits 
 

METRO RTA currently has no outstanding investigations or lawsuits related to Title VI complaints from 
the period May 2013 to July 2016. A summary of all civil rights compliance review activities from this 
time period is included as Attachment D.  
 

1.5   Public Participation Plan 
 
METRO seeks out and considers the viewpoints of minority, low-income, and Limited English Proficient 
(LEP) populations in the course of conducting public outreach and involvement activities.  METRO’s 
public participation strategy offers early and continuous opportunities for LEP persons to be involved in 
the identification of social, economic, and environmental impacts of proposed transportation decisions. 
 
In order to ensure meaningful involvement in service design for all minority and low-income people in 
the service area, METRO maintains an extensive mailing list and notifies over 450 community 
organizations, elected officials, and stakeholders of all service modifications and public meetings.  Legal 
notices of service modifications and all public meetings are published in the Akron Beacon Journal and 
the Reporter, a newspaper serving the minority community.   

54

http://www.akronmetro.org/
http://www.akronmetro.org/metro-title-vi-concerns.aspx
http://www.akronmetro.org/metro-title-vi-concerns.aspx


 
Please see Attachment E for a copy of the Public Participation Policy of METRO RTA.  It is a policy of 
METRO to conduct at least one (1) session of all public meeting rounds at the Robert K Pfaff Transit 
Center to provide direct bus access for minority and low-income riders.  In addition, public meetings 
around the county include sessions at public housing meeting rooms, libraries, community centers, 
grocery stores, or other meeting halls which are both ADA accessible and have bus transportation 
available.  
 
 1.5.a Public Hearings for Service Changes  
 
In the period July 2013 through July 2016, METRO RTA held several public meetings.  The subjects of 
these public meetings were as follows: 
 
  1.5.b  October 2013 
 
A series of four (4) public meetings was held in October of 2013 to receive public comment on route and 
schedule changes which were proposed for the #18, #26, #31 to take effect in the Winter of 2014. Public 
meetings were held in four (4) locations throughout the METRO service area: the Robert K. Pfaff Transit 
Center, Kiwanis Towers, Center Towers, and Stow City Hall. All of these meeting locations are accessible 
by METRO bus, and meetings were scheduled at times when transit service is available. Meetings were 
scheduled for locations particularly affected by the proposed service change.  
 
A presentation was given on all of the proposed service changes with special emphasis on changes in the 
geographic area of the meeting. Members of the public were given the opportunity to voice their 
comments or to submit them in writing.  
 
  1.5.c December 2013 
 
A public meeting was held in December 2013 to receive public comment on bus service availability in 
the City of Green. This meeting was held at Green City Hall. METRO proposed changes to Routes 110 and 
111 that were discussed related to planning for the Winter 2014 schedule change. The citizens in 
attendance pressed for continuation of current service as well as more route coverage, increased 
frequencies on existing routes, a longer service day, and a 7-day a week schedule. There was also 
interest in more door-to-door service, and continuation of service for ADA populations that are currently 
served. City representatives have previously expressed a desire for bus circulator service focused on the 
Green vicinity. 
 
  1.5.d April / May 2014 
 
A series of nine (9) public meetings was held in April and May of 2014 to receive public comment on 
route and schedule changes which were proposed for the #1, #8, #31, #50, #60, #61, #101, and #111 to 
take effect in Fall 2014.  Public meetings were held in eight (8) locations throughout the METRO service 
area: the Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center (twice), Green City Hall, Fairlawn-Bath Library, Stautzenberger 
College, Coventry Town Hall, New Franklin City Hall, the Quality Inn Conference Center in Springfield 
Township and the Fairlawn-Montrose ACME Meeting Room. All of these meeting locations are 
accessible by METRO bus, and meetings were scheduled at times when transit service is available. 
 

55



A presentation was given on all of the proposed service changes with special emphasis on changes in the 
geographic area of the meeting. Members of the public were given the opportunity to voice their 
comments or to submit them in writing.  
 
In addition to the public meetings, the route and schedule change presentation was available on 
METRO’s website and comments were received by phone and email.  
 
  1.5.e April / May 2015 
 
A series of three (3) public meetings was held in April and May of 2015 to receive public comment on 
proposed route and schedule changes for Fall 2015 including: #1 and #50 at the Montrose Layover, Call-
A-Bus Service in Green, and changes to the weekend routing of the #12.  Public meetings were held at 
the Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center (twice), and Fairlawn-Bath Library. These meeting locations are 
accessible by METRO bus, and meetings were scheduled at times when transit service is available. 
 
In addition to the public meetings, the route and schedule change presentation was available on 
METRO’s website and comments were received by phone and email.  
 
  1.5.f May 2015 
 
A public meeting was held on May 20, 2015 in conjunction with the East Akron Neighborhood 
Development Corporation (EANDC). This meeting was to discuss the Arlington Corridor Health in 
Transportation Study and the accompanying recommendations for stop consolidation on METRO’s #2 
route. The meeting was held at South Arlington Methodist Church, which is accessible by bus. 
Comments were received related to the stop consolidation project, service on the #2, and METRO 
service in general. 
 
  1.5.g October 2015 
 
A series of five (5) public meetings was held in October 2015 to receive public comment on proposed 
route and schedule changes for Winter 2106 including: new service to South Akron, extension of the #5 
to ASW Global, and new bus stop signs.  Public meetings were held at the Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center 
(twice), and the Main Library in Downtown Akron, Firestone Park Library, and Ellet Library. These 
meeting locations are accessible by METRO bus, and meetings were scheduled at times when transit 
service is available. 
 
In addition to the public meetings, the route and schedule change presentation was available on 
METRO’s website and comments were received by phone and email.  
 
  1.5.h April 2016 
 
A series of twelve (12) public meetings was held in April of 2016 to introduce the Driving METRO 
Forward project and receive public comment on its guiding principles. Meeting locations included: 
Barberton Library, Cuyahoga Falls Library (x2), Ellet Branch Library, North Hill Branch Library, Kenmore 
Branch Library, Maple Valley Branch Library, Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center, Highland Square Library (x2) , 
Firestone Branch Library, and V. Odom Branch Library.  

56



Driving METRO Forward is an 18 month initiative to study METRO’s fixed route bus system using new 
data sources and revise the system as a whole. At each meeting, the same presentation was used to 
describe the project and to stimulate discussion with attendees. 
 
These Guiding Principles were the focus of the Round 1 outreach process:  
 1. Match Service to Modern Travel Patterns  
 2. Strengthen Network Structure  
 3. Simplify the Routes  
 4. Foster a Transit-First Lifestyle  
 5. Build Financial Stability  
 
In addition to the public meetings, the presentation was available on METRO’s website and comments 
were received by phone and email. Taking the public input on these goals into consideration, METRO 
staff then moved into the creation of a draft system map.  
 
  1.5.i June 2016 
In June 2016, six (6) public meetings were held to collect public comment on the initial system design 
map for the Driving METRO Forward project. Meetings were held at the sites of the most well-attended 
meetings from the April 2016 round. Meeting locations included: Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center (x2), 
Main Library in Downtown Akron, Cuyahoga Falls Library, Highland Square Branch Library, and Ellet 
Branch Library.  
 
No concrete service or fare changes were presented at this meeting. Rather, a conceptual map was 
presented. These meetings were intended to provide an update to METRO’s customers and 
stakeholders prior to the development of a preferred alternative. 
 
 1.6  Language Assistance Plan 
 
On April 13, 2007 guidance was published to provide technical assistance to help public transportation 
providers receiving Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding implement the U.S. Department of 
Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient 
(LEP) Persons (DOT LEP Guidance, Federal Register, vol. 70, no. 239, pp. 74087–74100, December 14, 
2005). 
 
Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” 
reprinted at 65 FR 50121 (August 16, 2000), directs each Federal agency to examine the services it 
provides and develop and implement a system by which LEP persons can meaningfully access those 
services. Federal agencies were instructed to publish guidance for their respective recipients in order to 
assist them with their obligations to LEP persons under Title VI. The Executive Order states that 
recipients must take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by 
LEP persons.  
 
The DOT LEP Guidance states that certain FTA recipients or sub recipients, such as those serving very 
few LEP persons or those with very limited resources may choose not to develop a written LEP plan.  
However, the absence of a written LEP plan does not obviate the underlying obligation to ensure 
meaningful access by LEP persons to a recipient’s program or activities. 
 

57



  1.6.a   Developing a Language Implementation Plan.   
 
Using the 2007 guidance, METRO completed a four factor analysis to determine the need for a Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) plan.  As a part of the four factor analysis, METRO reviewed 2010 Census data 
and 2015 Census estimates, and surveyed staff to determine the extent to which contact is made with 
LEP persons.  The review of the Census data showed that less than 2% of Summit County’s population 
speaks English “less than well.”   
 
In addition, front line employees such as customer service representatives and bus operators were 
surveyed.  Ninety-five (95) bus operators (36%) returned completed surveys. 56 of the 95 operators 
(59%) responded that they had interactions with non-English speaking customers during the Fall Sign-Up 
Period. 24 Customer Service staff members (90%) returned completed surveys. 17 of the 24 (71%) 
indicated that they had interactions with non-English speakers during the Fall Sign-Up period. 
Unfortunately, this survey may have been too general in nature and was not designed to ascertain an 
accurate percentage of total passengers were thought to be LEP nor did it ask if they were ultimately 
able to assist the passenger.  
 
Using the guidance provided by federal agencies, METRO has developed a Language Implementation 
Plan which is included as Attachment F. 
 
 1.7  Board Membership 
 
The Board of Trustees for METRO RTA has 12 members. METRO’s board has four (4) individuals who are 
members of a minority population.  The Executive Director, who is a member of a minority population, 
serves as Secretary/Treasurer to the Board, but is not a Board Member. Please see Attachment G for 
more detail. 
 
 1.8 Sub-Recipients 
 
METRO RTA does not have any sub-recipients.  
 
 1.9  Facility Construction 
 
METRO will integrate into environmental analyses, considerations expressed in the DOT Order on 
Environmental Justice by incorporating an environmental justice analysis into their National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) documentation of construction projects.  Such analyses will include a 
description of the low-income and minority populations with the study area, a discussion of the adverse 
effects, and the positive effects of the project, a description of all environmental mitigation and 
enhancement actions, a discussion of remaining effects after mitigation, and a comparison of mitigation 
and enhancement actions in predominantly low-income and minority areas with such actions taken in 
predominantly non-minority and non-low-income areas.   
 
METRO construction projects, including the RKP Park & Ride and South Bus Barn Expansion, were carried 
out at existing METRO facilities and therefore did not require an equity analysis.  
 
  

58



2.)  Requirements for Fixed-Route Transit Providers 
 
METRO RTA is a fixed-route transit provider which operates more than 50 fixed route vehicles in peak 
service. METRO serves a UZA of more than 200,000 people. The following section demonstrates 
compliance with the requirements for a transit authority of this size.  
 
 2.1 Service Standards 
 
Transit System Evaluation Procedures for METRO RTA (August, 1999) are attached as Attachment H.  
METRO has service standards and policies for the required indicators – vehicle load, vehicle assignment, 
vehicle headway, transit amenities and transit access. Further information on METRO service policy is 
provided for the following indicators: 
  
  2.1.a Vehicle Load Factor 
 
METRO’s policy is a load factor of no greater than 125% of the seated capacity of a transit vehicle.  It is 
METRO’s policy that when a vehicle exceeds this load factor, a “chaser” bus is assigned by dispatch to 
complement the assigned bus service.  Attachment I shows the results of a load factor analysis of all 
METRO fixed routes based on data from April 2016.  
 
After grouping the routes into “Minority” and “Non-Minority” status we analyzed how often the 
maximum onboard count exceeded the number of seats on the bus and how often it exceeded the 
maximum capacity (130% of seated capacity).  
 
27,148 of the total 35,642 (76%) of the total trips were performed on Minority routes. In total, Minority 
routes exceeded the seated capacity of the bus on 1.59% of trips and exceeded total capacity on 0.28% 
of trips. Non-Minority routes exceeded seated capacity on 0.6% of trips and total capacity on 0.06% of 
trips. It is more likely that a bus will be overcrowded on a Minority route, but overcrowding overall is a 
very occasional problem. Attachment I includes a more in-depth discussion of methodology and analysis 
of Vehicle Load Factor.  
 
  2.1.b Vehicle Headway 
 
METRO’s Frequency of Service Standard states:  

A.) Service frequency (headways) should be established to provide a sufficient number of 
vehicles operating past the maximum load point(s) on a route to accommodate the passenger 
volume.  
B.) Headways on all regular-route services should correspond with clockface values to the 
maximum extent possible when frequencies exceed ten (10) minutes. 
C.) In instances where passenger loads are so light as to require excessive time intervals 
(headways) between vehicles to conform to loading standards, a “policy headway” (or minimum 
service level) should be used. Policy headways are only needed for regular-route services. Other 
services are special in nature because they are generally operated to serve a specific market; 
such as, headways should be determined by demand. Policy headways are defined as:  
 
 
 

  

59



Type of Service Peak Off-Peak Evening / Saturday 
Main Route (above average 
Passengers / Revenue Mile) 

10 – 20 minutes 30 – 60 minutes 45 – 70 minutes 

Secondary (below average 
(Px/Rev. Mile) 

30 – 45 minutes 45 – 80 minutes 60 – 90 minutes 

Express Route Demand Based Demand Based Demand Based 
 
 D.) Additional policies related to new services are available in Attachment H. 
 
Methodology and analysis of METRO’s headways is included as Attachment J. Generally, METRO routes 
do not meet or exceed their policy headway. During the daytime, two minority routes meet their policy 
headway and two do not. During the evening, two minority routes and four non-minority routes meet or 
exceed their policy headway. On Saturday, one minority route and two non-minority routes meet or 
exceed their policy headway. On Sunday, six minority routes and two non-minority routes meet or 
exceed their policy headway. 
 
  2.1.c On-Time Performance 
 
METRO buses are “On Time” if they depart a timepoint not ahead of schedule or not more than 4 
minutes behind schedule. The service standards state that 75% of the trips should be operated “On 
Time.” “On Time” status has traditionally been determined via spot checks by road supervisors and 
reported at the system level.  
 
In April 2016, METRO’s Operations Department reported that line service buses were “On Time” 91% of 
the time. This figure is based on 591 recorded observations by road supervisors during the month of 
April.  
 
In December 2014, METRO began installing an Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) system. By summer of 
2015, AVL units had been installed on 100% of the fleet. Final shakedown and full implementation of the 
system has not yet been completed at the time of this report; however, we believe that the Schedule 
Adherence Report for April 2015 is worth reporting, since it gives the schedule adherence values by 
route and uses over 100,000 samples for the month of April. 
 
Overall, the AVL system reports that METRO line service is “On Time 81.4% of the time. Several routes 
individually fall below the 75% threshold. Additional study of both On-Time performance and the 
performance of the Avail system is required for these routes to determine if “false early” or “false late” 
readings are being recorded or if a true schedule adherence problem is present.  
 
The route-by-route analysis of On-Time Performance is available in Attachment K. 
 
  2.1.d Service Availability 
 
METRO strives to provide equitable transit services throughout its service area. In order to quantify the 
measure of the distance a person must travel to access transit services, Attachment N is provided. 
Specifically, this Attachment measures the number of persons within 1,000 feet of a METRO stop within 
the urban corridor (defined as population density greater than 4,000 persons or three dwelling units per 
square mile), and within 2,000 feet within suburban corridors (defined as population density of 2,000 to 
4,000 persons per square mile).  

60



 
Overall, METRO service is available to approximately 24.7% of Summit County residents, including 63% 
of minority residents and 76.2% of low-income residents, based on 2014 Census estimates. Further 
detail is available in Attachment N.  
 
  2.1.e  Transit Amenities 
 
METRO’s policies for bus stop placement is covered in the Transit System Evaluation Procedures dated 
August, 1999 which state that METRO will “Provide shelters and benches for passengers at major 
boarding points.” Traditionally, METRO has defined “major boarding points” as stop locations where 
more than 30 boardings per day occur. When a stop exceeds this threshold, METRO begins planning the 
installation of a shelter at METRO’s expense. When a shelter is requested at a particular location, but 
the location does not meet the 30 boardings per day threshold, METRO will work with the requesting 
employer or organization if they are willing to contribute a portion of the cost of shelter installation. 
 
A map and table of all bus shelters in the METRO service area is provided as Attachment L. Of METRO’s 
112 bus passenger waiting shelters, seventy-four (74) are located in minority census blocks.  
 
  2.1.f Vehicle Assignment  
 
METRO’s fixed-route bus fleet is all dispatched from one facility. The majority of the fleet consists of 40-
foot transit buses. These buses are assigned on a mostly interchangeable basis. In April 2016 the average 
age of the METRO line service fleet was 4.8 years. 
 
There are two exceptions to the interchangeability of the fleet. METRO operates six (6) high-capacity 
articulated buses, which are only assigned to Routes 1 and 2 these buses were built in 2013. METRO 
operates eight (8) over-the-road style coaches for its North Coast Express commuter service. These 
buses are assigned only to Routes 60 and 61. Six (6) of these buses were built in 2009, two (2) were built 
in 2001 and rehabbed in 2015.  
 
Eight of the eleven non-minority routes had an average bus age older than 4.8. 13 of 22 minority routes 
had an average bus age older than 4.8 years. Looking at the issue using a different metric, there were 10 
routes where more than 60% of the rides occurred on buses five years or older. Four of these were 
minority routes and six were non-minority routes. Methodology and tables detailing the Vehicle 
Assignment analysis are available in Attachment M. 
 
It is more likely that a customer would ride on an older bus on a non-minority route than a minority 
route. Largely, this is because METRO’s older or smaller buses are often assigned to suburban routes 
which perform fewer trips per day.  
 
 2.2 Demographic and Service Profile Maps and Charts 
 
Demographic and Service Profile Maps and Charts are included as Attachment N.  
 
 2.3 Demographic Ridership and Travel Patterns Collected by Survey 
 
METRO RTA completed an On-Board Passenger Survey in November 2013. The final summary report is 
included as Attachment O. 

61



 
 2.4  Results of Monitoring Program 
 
In addition to monitoring route-by-route performance for the required categories discussed above, 
METRO also monitors and reports system performance through its monthly Performance Report. The 
Performance Report is provided to the Board of Trustees and entered into the minutes at every regular 
meeting. The Performance Report details a wide array of performance measures for both line service 
buses and paratransit. Key line service metrics which are also identified in the Service Policy Standards 
(Attachment H) include Passengers per Revenue Mile, Passengers per Revenue Hour, and Cost per 
Passenger. These metrics are discussed in Attachment Q, and a route-by-route summary is provided at 
the end of that attachment. All information is drawn from the April 2016 Performance Report, because 
April is considered a representative month for METRO service.  
 
 2.5 Public Engagement Process for Setting Policies 
 
  2.5.a Major Service Change Policy 
 
Major Service Change Policy was adopted as Resolution 2013-17. METRO recognizes that this policy 
requires additional refinement and additional public engagement. We plan to revise the Major Service 
Change Policy prior to the Title VI analysis of the Driving METRO Forward project.  
 
  2.5.b Disparate Impact Policy 
 
METRO’s Disparate Impact Policy was first included in the 2013 Title VI Report. The Disparate Impact 
and Disproportionate Burden policies were drafted to comply with the updated guidance issued on 
October 1, 2012. These policies remain unchanged at the time of this report. The policies are enclosed 
as Attachment R. 
 
There is no record of a specific public hearing related to the acceptance of these policies. However, this 
policy was discussed, voted on, and accepted at the May 2013 meeting of METRO’s Board of Trustees. 
The Disparate Impact /Disproportionate Burden Policy was adopted as Resolution 2013-17. Board 
Meetings are, by definition, public meetings and are open to members of the public who wish to 
comment on agenda items. There were two guest speakers at the May 2013 meeting, but neither 
commented on the Disparate Impact or Disproportionate Burden Policy.  
 
METRO recognizes that this policy requires additional refinement and additional public engagement. We 
plan to revise the Disparate Impact Policy prior to the Title VI analysis of the Driving METRO Forward 
project.  
 
  2.5.c Disproportionate Burden Policy 
 
See Section 2.5.b. 
 
  2.5.d Service & Fare Equity Analysis Policy 

METRO’s Service and Fare Equity Analysis Policy was included in the 2013 Title VI Report and remains 
unchanged at the time of this report. The policy is enclosed as Attachment  S. 
 

62



There is no record of a specific public hearing related to the acceptance of this policy. However, this 
policy was discussed, voted on, and accepted at the May 2013 meeting of METRO’s Board of Trustees. 
The Service & Fare Equity Analysis Policy was adopted as Resolution 2013-18. Board Meetings are, by 
definition, public meetings and are open to members of the public who wish to comment on agenda 
items. There were two guest speakers at the May 2013 meeting, but neither commented on the Service 
& Fare Equity Analysis Policy.  
 
METRO recognizes that this policy requires additional refinement and additional public engagement. We 
plan to revise the Service and Fare Equity Analysis prior to the Title VI analysis of the Driving METRO 
Forward project.  
 
  2.5.e Public Engagement Policy 
 
METRO’s Public Engagement Policy was included in the 2013 Title VI Report and remains unchanged at 
the time of this report. The policy is enclosed as Attachment  E. 
 
There is no record of a specific public hearing related to the acceptance of this policy. However, this 
policy was discussed, voted on, and accepted at the May 2013 meeting of METRO’s Board of Trustees. 
The Public Engagement Policy was approved as Resolution 2013-19. Board Meetings are, by definition, 
public meetings and are open to members of the public who wish to comment on agenda items. There 
were two guest speakers at the May 2013 meeting, but neither commented on the Public Engagement 
Policy.  
 
 2.6 Results of Service Fare & Equity Analyses 
 
  2.6.a Determination of Minority Routes 
 
As of the 2010 census, the Summit County population was 19.4% minority. Census block groups with a 
higher percentage of minority residents were identified as minority block groups. Attachment P details 
the minority block groups and the transit routes which serve them. Route mileage was examined and 
routes which have more than 1/3 of their mileage in minority block groups were identified.  
 
The 2013 On-Board survey was cross-tabulated to get a breakdown of rider characteristics by route. 
Overall, METRO’s ridership is 62.5% minority. The minority ridership share by route is listed in the table 
below. Generally, routes serving minority block groups had above-average minority ridership. A 
combination of these factors was considered when designating a route a “minority route” for this Title 
VI Analysis. Please see the table below for greater detail.  
  

63



Minority Route Determination 
Route Minority Census Block Groups Served: 

(Summit County population 19.4% minority) 
> 1/3 Route Miles 

in Minority Census 
Tracts? 

Minority Ridership – 
2013 On-Board Survey 

(METRO Average 
62.5%) 

Minority Route 
for Title VI 
Analysis? 

#1 – West Market 506100-2, 506100-6, 506400-1, 506600-1, 
506800-1, 507101-2, 507102-2, 507400-1, 
508301-1, 508301-2, 533501-3 

Yes 62.5% Yes 

#2 – S. Arlington 503100-1, 503100-2, 503200-1, 503200-3, 
503300-1, 503300-2, 503300-4, 503300-5, 
503300-6, 503300-7, 503400-1, 503500-4, 
503500-5, 503500-3, 503800-2, 503800-3, 
504100-1, 506800-1, 508301-1, 508900-1, 
508900-2, 508900-3,  

Yes 71.2% Yes 

#3 – Copley Road 506200-1, 506200-2, 506200-4, 506200-5, 
506500-1, 506500-2, 506500-3, 506800-1, 
506800-2, 508301-1, 508301-2, 508399-1, 
508399-4, 508600-1, 508600-2, 508600-3, 
508800-3, 508800-4, 508800-5, 508800-6,  

Yes 83.5% Yes 

#4 – Exchange / Delia 506100-1, 506100-5, 506100-6, 506200-1, 
506200-4, 506200-5, 506400-4, 506400-5, 
506500-1, 506500-2, 506500-3, 506600-3, 
506800-1, 506800-2, 507101-1, 507101-2, 
507201-1, 508301-1, 508301-2,  

Yes 85.2% Yes 

#5 – Joy Park / Gilchrist 502500-1, 503100-1, 503100-2, 503200-1, 
503200-3, 503400-1, 503500-1, 503500-2, 
506800-1, 508301-1, 508900-1, 508900-2, 
508900-4, 509000-1 

Yes 66% Yes 

#6 – East Market 502500-1, 502500-2, 503400-1, 506800-1, 
508301-1, 508900-1, 508900-2, 508900-4, 
509000-1, 502500-1, 502500-2, 503400-1,  

Yes 41.5% Yes 

#7 – C. Falls Avenue 501100-1, 502101-1, 502101-2, 502102-1, 
502102-2, 502200-1, 502200-3, 502200-5, 
506800-1, 507500-2, 507600-3, 508301-1, 
530901-1 

Yes 52.1% Yes 

#8 – Kenmore/ Barberton 501900-1, 501900-2, 505300-1, 505300-2, 
505300-3, 505600-1, 505600-2, 505700-1, 
506800-1,  

No 44.4% No 

#9 – East Avenue 501800-1, 505200-1, 505400-2, 506700-1, 
506700-2, 506800-1, 506800-2, 508301-1, 
508399-1, 508399-2, 508399-4,  

Yes 76.4% Yes 

#10 – Howard / Portage 501100-1, 502101-1, 502101-2, 502102-1, 
502102-2, 502200-1, 506800-1, 507400-1, 
507500-3, 507500-4, 507500-1, 507500-2, 
507500-3, 508300-1 

Yes 45.4% Yes 

#11 – South Akron 501900-2, 504100-1, 504200-2, 504200-3, 
504400-2, 504500-1, 504500-2, 504600-1, 
504600-2, 504600-4, 504700-1, 504700-2, 
504700-4, 504700-6, 504800-3, 506800-1,  

Yes 55.0% Yes 

#12 – Tallmadge Avenue 501100-1, 502101-2, 502102-1, 502102-2, 
502102-3, 502200-1, 502200-3, 502200-4, 
502200-5, 506800-1, 508301-1,  

Yes 65.1% Yes 

#13 – Grant Street 501700-2, 504200-2, 504200-3, 504400-2, 
504500-1, 504700-2, 504700-4, 504700-6, 
504800-3, 506800-1, 508301-1, 508900-2, 
508900-3 

Yes 57.1% Yes 

64



Route Minority Census Block Groups Served: 
(Summit County population 19.4% minority) 

> 1/3 Route Miles 
in Minority Census 

Tracts? 

Minority Ridership – 
2013 On-Board Survey 

(METRO Average 
62.5%) 

Minority Route 
for Title VI 
Analysis? 

#14 – Euclid / Barberton 501800-1, 501900-1, 501900-2, 505200-1, 
506800-1, 506800-2, 508301-1 

Yes 63.3% Yes 

#17 – Brown / Inman 501700-1, 503100-2, 503200-1, 503200-2, 
503300-5, 503300-6, 503300-7, 503800-2, 
503800-3, 504100-1, 506800-1, 508301-1, 
508900-2, 508900-3,  

Yes 65.7% Yes 

#18 – Manchester 501800-1, 501900-1, 501900-2, 505600-1, 
506800-1,  

Yes 60.4% Yes 

#19 – Eastland 502102-1, 502102-2, 502200-5, 502500-1, 
502500-2, 503400-1, 506800-1, 508301-1, 
508900-1, 508900-2, 508900-4, 509000-1, 
509000-2, 509000-3,  

Yes 64.0% Yes 

#21 – South Main 501900-1, 501900-2, 505300-1, 505300-2, 
505600-1, 506800-1,  

Yes Not in 2013 Survey Yes 

#24 – Lakeshore 501900-1, 501900-2, 505300-1, 505300-3, 
506800-1, 505600-1,  

Yes 68.3% Yes 

#26 – W. Exchange 506100-1, 506100-2, 506100-6, 506400-1, 
506400-4, 506400-5, 506500-1, 506600-3, 
506800-1, 506800-2, 507101-2, 507102-2, 
507400-1, 508301-1, 508301-2, 533400-4 

Yes 71.7% Yes 

#28 – Merriman Valley 506600-1, 506600-2, 506800-1, 507201-1, 
507203-1, 507203-2, 507203-4, 507400-1, 
508301-1, 508301-2,  

Yes 69.2% Yes 

#30 – Goodyear Heights 502500-1, 502500-2, 502600-1, 502600-3, 
502700-3, 502700-4, 502800-3, 506800-1, 
508301-1, 508900-1, 508900-2, 508900-4, 
509000-1,   

Yes 55.1% Yes 

#33 – State / Wyoga Lake 501100-1, 502101-1, 502200-1, 502200-3, 
506800-1, 507500-1, 507500-2, 507600-3, 
507600-4, 508301-1, 532902-3 

No 68.4% No 

#34 – Cascade / Uhler 501100-1, 502101-1, 502101-2, 502102-1, 
502102-2, 502102-3, 502200-1, 502200-3, 
502200-4, 502200-5, 506800-1, 507400-1, 
507500-1, 507500-2, 507500-3, 507500-4, 
507500-5, 507500-6, 508301-1,  

Yes 76.8% Yes 

#50 – Montrose Circulator 5033501-3, 533501-2 No 83.3% No 
#51 – Stow Circulator 502102-1, 502102-2,  No 66.6% No 
#53 – Portage / Graham 502101-2, 502102-1, 502102-2, 507203-1, 

507500-1, 508000-1, 508000-2,  
No 47.4% No 

#59 – Chapel Hill Circulator 502102-1, 502102-2, 502200-5, 530901-1 No 50% No 
#60 – NCX via C. Falls 530103-2 No 22.7% No 
#61 – NCX via 
Akron/Montrose 

506100-6, 506600-2, 506800-1, 508301-1, 
508301-2,  

No 42.5% No 

#101 – Richfield / Bath 506800-1 No 53.8% No 
#102 – Northfield 506800-1, 508301-1, 530103-2 No 61.3% No 
#103 – Stow / Hudson 506800-1, 501900-2 No 52.3% No 
#104 – Twinsburg / Creekside 506800-1, 501900-2, 530103-2 No Not in 2013 Survey No 
#110 - Green 506800-1, 502500-1, 502500-2, 503100-1, 

503100-2, 503200-1, 503400-1, 503500-1, 
503500-2, 503800-2, 503800-3, 508900-1, 
508900-2, 508900-3 

No 50% No 

65



  2.6.b Short Turn of #31 Stow Express 
 
Route & Location: In January of 2014, the routing of the #31 Stow Express was shortened and this route 
was rebranded as the #51 Stow Circulator. As the #31, this route provided service to the City of Stow, 
and then followed the Route 8 freeway to the Robert K. Pfaff (RKP) Transit Center in Downtown Akron. 
The route performed poorly, drawing only 3.9 passengers per revenue hour and 0.23 passengers per 
revenue mile in April 2013. The route was originally designed as a commuter route, but ridership was 
primarily local.  
 
For this reason, in Fall of 2013 METRO proposed to eliminate the freeway segment of the route and 
provide transfer opportunities at our Independence Turnaround hub. The existing route length was 16.0 
miles and the proposed route was approximately 9.5 miles long. However, service hours and mileage 
were not projected to change dramatically, since existing service would be re-allocated to the shorter 
route. 
 
Vehicle Type & Load: Given that low ridership was the driving factor for this change, load factors and 
vehicle types were not considered. Both before and after the change, the #51 is served by METRO’s 
standard fleet and loads generally do not exceed capacity.  
 
Headway & Span: 
Prior to the change, the #31 offered 12 outbound trips per day. The service span was from 6:37AM to 
6:56PM with an average headway of 55 minutes. There was an additional inbound trip ending at 
11:00PM  
 
After the change, in April 2014, the #31 offered 18 outbound trips per day. The service span was from 
6:10AM to 6:38PM with an average headway of 36 minutes. There is an additional inbound trip ending 
at 11:00PM. 
 
Cost:  
Prior to the change, in April 2013, the #31 had a total monthly operating cost of $56,019 with a farebox 
recovery ratio of 3.6%. In April of 2014, after the change, the #51 had a total monthly operating cost of 
$50,502 with a farebox recovery ratio of 3.3% 
 
Analysis & Mitigation:  
This service change was presented at a series of public meetings during Fall of 2013, including one at the 
Stow City Hall on November 1st 2013. Customers and public officials observed that with the proposed 
change, riders on Route 31 will no longer have a one-seat ride to Downtown Akron and will have to 
transfer at Chapel Hill Mall to get there. 
 
Given that the #31 (now #51) is not a “minority route,” and reduced route length was exchanged for 
greater service frequency, no mitigation was required for this service change.  
 
  

66



AKRON

HUDSON

STOW
CUYAHOGA FALLS

TALLMADGE

MUNROE FALLS

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

I76

SR
8

I7
7

ST
AT

E 
R

D

SR
8/

SR
59

NEWTON ST

BARLOW RD

E MARKET ST

HUDSO
N D

R

TEREX RD

D
AR

R
O

W
 R

D

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D

ST
OW

 R
D

GRAHAM RD

NORTON RD

EAST AVE

FISHCREEK RD

KENT RD

E HOWE RD

C
U

YAH
O

G
A ST

CALL RD

NORTHEAST AVE

SOUTHEAST AVE

H
O

M
E 

AV
E

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

YO
U

N
G

 R
D

GILCHRIST RD

S 
M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

MOGADORE RD

SEASONS RD

E ARCHWOOD AVE

S M
A

IN
 S

T

I77/I76

ALBRECHT AVE

KE
LL

Y 
AV

E

N
 H

O
W

A
R

D
 S

T

AL
LE

N
 R

D

EASTWOOD AVE

SR59

E TALLMADGE AVE
Q

UICK RD

RAVENNA ST

C
AN

TO
N

 R
D

N
O

R
TH

 A
VE

W
Y

O
G

A 
LA

K
E

 R
D

COLE AVE

W STREETSBORO RD

TRIPLETT BLVD

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

E STREETSBORO RD

WEST AVE

E NORTH ST

HOWE AVE

AK
RO

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

RD

FR
ONT

 S
T

N
 M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

E EXCHANGE ST

H
IL

B
IS

H
 A

V
E

MUNROE FALLS AVE

PORTAGE TRL W

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

BAILEY RD

NORTHW
EST AVE

W BATH RD

SO
U

TH
 A

V
E

RAVENNA RD

M
A

S
SI

LL
O

N
 R

D

PERKINS ST

QUAYLE DR

E BATH RD

O
LD EIG

HT RD

BROAD BLVD
TALLM

ADGE RD

N
EW

C
O

M
ER

 R
D

EASTLA
ND AVE

HOWE RD

SE
IB

E
R

LI
N

G
 S

T

E CUYAHOGA FALLS AVE

PORTAGE TRAIL 
EXT

N
O

R
TH

AM
P

TO
N

 R
D

N
 A

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

JO
HNSTON ST

UHLER AVE

G
O

R
G

E 
BL

VD

W MARKET ST

N
 C

LE
V

E
LAN

D
 AV

E

E THORNTON ST

E GLENWOOD AVE

W HOWE RD

SOUTHWEST AVE

E MILL ST

NORTHMORELAND AVE

E BUCHTEL AVE

SK
EL

TO
N 

RD

PORTAGE TRL E

Route 31 Before

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Before changes were made in the city of Stow.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes Stow

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 1 20.5
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Transfer to PARTA

Independence
Turnaround

67



AKRON

HUDSON

STOW
CUYAHOGA FALLS

TALLMADGE

MUNROE FALLS

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

I76

SR
8

I7
7

ST
AT

E 
R

D

SR
8/

SR
59

NEWTON ST

BARLOW RD

E MARKET ST

HUDSO
N D

R

TEREX RD

D
AR

R
O

W
 R

D

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D

ST
OW

 R
D

GRAHAM RD

NORTON RD

EAST AVE

FISHCREEK RD

KENT RD

E HOWE RD

C
U

YAH
O

G
A ST

CALL RD

NORTHEAST AVE

SOUTHEAST AVE

H
O

M
E 

AV
E

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

YO
U

N
G

 R
D

GILCHRIST RD

S 
M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

MOGADORE RD

SEASONS RD

E ARCHWOOD AVE

S M
A

IN
 S

T

I77/I76

ALBRECHT AVE

KE
LL

Y 
AV

E

N
 H

O
W

A
R

D
 S

T

AL
LE

N
 R

D

EASTWOOD AVE

SR59

E TALLMADGE AVE
Q

UICK RD

RAVENNA ST

C
AN

TO
N

 R
D

N
O

R
TH

 A
VE

W
Y

O
G

A 
LA

K
E

 R
D

COLE AVE

W STREETSBORO RD

TRIPLETT BLVD

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

E STREETSBORO RD

WEST AVE

E NORTH ST

HOWE AVE

AK
RO

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

RD

FR
ONT

 S
T

N
 M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

E EXCHANGE ST

H
IL

B
IS

H
 A

V
E

MUNROE FALLS AVE

PORTAGE TRL W

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

BAILEY RD

NORTHW
EST AVE

W BATH RD

SO
U

TH
 A

V
E

RAVENNA RD

M
A

S
SI

LL
O

N
 R

D

PERKINS ST

QUAYLE DR

E BATH RD

O
LD EIG

HT RD

BROAD BLVD
TALLM

ADGE RD

N
EW

C
O

M
ER

 R
D

EASTLA
ND AVE

HOWE RD

SE
IB

E
R

LI
N

G
 S

T

E CUYAHOGA FALLS AVE

PORTAGE TRAIL 
EXT

N
O

R
TH

AM
P

TO
N

 R
D

N
 A

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

JO
HNSTON ST

UHLER AVE

G
O

R
G

E 
BL

VD

W MARKET ST

N
 C

LE
V

E
LA

N
D

 A
V

E

E THORNTON ST

E GLENWOOD AVE

W HOWE RD

SOUTHWEST AVE

E MILL ST

NORTHMORELAND AVE

E BUCHTEL AVE

SK
EL

TO
N 

RD

PORTAGE TRL E

Route 51 After

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

After changes were made in the city of Stow.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes Stow

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 1 20.5
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Transfer to PARTA

Independence
Turnaround

68



   
 2.6.c  Short Turn of #18 Manchester 
 
Route & Location: In January of 2014, the routing of the #18 Manchester was shortened. Prior to this 
change, the #18 traveled south to service Kiwanis Towers in the Portage Lakes area. South of the 
commercial strip near Manchester Road and Robinson Avenue ridership was very low. The existing route 
was 10.5 miles in length. Revised route is 7.6 miles in length.  
 
Vehicle Type & Load: Given that low ridership was the driving factor for this change, load factors and 
vehicle types were not considered. Both before and after the change, the #18 is served by METRO’s 
standard fleet and loads generally do not exceed capacity.  
 
Headway & Span: Prior to the change, the #18 offered 27 outbound trips per weekday with a 38 minute 
average headway and a service span from 6:15AM to 11:00PM. After the change, the #18 offered 26 
trips per weekday with an average 40 minute headway and a service span from 6:15AM to 11:00PM 
 
 Weekday 

Rev.Miles 
Saturday 
Rev.Miles 

Sunday 
Rev.Miles 

Weekday 
Rev.Hours 

Saturday 
Rev.Hours 

Sunday 
Rev.Hours 

Route 
Rev.Miles 

Old 469 236 147 32 17 11 10.5 
New 403 211 148 29.5 16 11 7.6 
Change -14% -10% - -7% -6% - -27% 
 
Cost: Prior to the change, in April of 2013, total operating cost of the #18 was $86,615, with a farebox 
recovery ratio of 20.4%. After the change, in April of 2014, the total operating cost of the #18 was 
$73,059 with a farebox recovery ratio of 20.8%. 
  
Analysis & Mitigation: The #18 is considered a “minority route.” However, the proposed service cuts did 
not affect minority census blocks. Reductions in service on the #18 do not have the potential for 
disproportionately high impact on minority riders.  
 
The main equity concern related to this change was a loss of access for low-income seniors at Kiwanis 
Towers. To mitigate the negative impact of loss of line service, and potential disparate impact additional 
grocery bus service was added for Kiwanis Towers residents. Access to transit remained relatively 
unchanged for the remaining portion of the route. 
  

69



I77I76I77/I76
SR

59

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

EA
ST

 A
VE

US224

S I277/E US224 N I277/W US224

KILLIAN RD

E MARKET ST

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

M
A

N
C

H
E

S
TE

R
 R

D

SWARTZ RD

E ARCHWOOD AVE

COLE AVE

E WILBETH RD

COPLEY RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

DIAGONAL R
D

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

E 
I7

6/
N

 I2
77

E EXCHANGE ST

KENMORE B
LV

D

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

E WATERLOO RD

E STATE ST

PORTAGE LAKES DR

W WATERLOO RD

W CEDAR ST

W THORNTON ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

N
 T

U
R

K
EY

FO
O

T 
R

D

E SOUTH ST

W
 I7

6/
S 

I2
77

ROBINSON AVE

W EXCHANGE ST

S MAPLE ST

STATE MILL RD

C
O

R
M

AN
Y 

R
D

W WILBETH RD

E THORNTON ST

STATE RD

E MILL ST

IRA AVE

SR
93

LOCKWOOD RD

VERNON ODOM BLVD

W WARNER RD

SR
93 R

D

W STATE ST

CEDAR ST

FI
R

ES
TO

N
E

 P
K

Y

S 
U

N
IO

N
 S

T

E CEDAR ST

Route 18 Before

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Before changes were made to the
the Manchester area route. 

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Manchester

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.55 1.10.275
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Kiwanis Towers

Manchester ACME

70



I77I76I77/I76
SR

59

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

EA
ST

 A
VE

US224

S I277/E US224 N I277/W US224

KILLIAN RD

E MARKET ST

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

M
A

N
C

H
E

S
TE

R
 R

D

SWARTZ RD

E ARCHWOOD AVE

COLE AVE

E WILBETH RD

COPLEY RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

DIAGONAL R
D

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

E 
I7

6/
N

 I2
77

E EXCHANGE ST

KENMORE B
LV

D

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

E WATERLOO RD

E STATE ST

PORTAGE LAKES DR

W WATERLOO RD

W CEDAR ST

W THORNTON ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

N
 T

U
R

K
EY

FO
O

T 
R

D

E SOUTH ST

W
 I7

6/
S 

I2
77

ROBINSON AVE

W EXCHANGE ST

S MAPLE ST

STATE MILL RD

C
O

R
M

AN
Y 

R
D

W WILBETH RD

E THORNTON ST

STATE RD

E MILL ST

IRA AVE

SR
93

LOCKWOOD RD

VERNON ODOM BLVD

W WARNER RD

SR
93 R

D

W STATE ST

CEDAR ST

FI
R

ES
TO

N
E

 P
K

Y

S 
U

N
IO

N
 S

T

E CEDAR ST

Route 18 After

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

After changes were made to the
the Manchester area route. 

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Manchester

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.55 1.10.275
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Kiwanis Towers

Manchester ACME

71



  2.6.d North County Routes  
 
Route & Location Changes: 
In January 2014, METRO re-organized service to the northern portion of Summit County by introducing a 
new route and revising the travel pattern for the two existing routes. Changes were planned to maintain 
route coverage and scheduling in support of existing ridership, while improving directness of service and 
reducing travel time. 
 
The #102 Northfield, #103 Stow/Hudson, and #104 Twinsburg/Creekside are primarily reverse-commute 
routes which bring employees from Akron to suburban employment sites. Census data has little value in 
evaluating these routes, since many passengers transfer from neighborhood routes to reach these 
commuter routes (33% of respondents to the 2013 Onboard Survey indicated that they transferred from 
other routes onto the #102 or #103).  
 
Headway & Span: Prior to the change, in Fall 2013, the #102 offered 9 outbound trips per day with an 
average headway of 108 minutes and a span from 5:30AM to 9:50PM. After the change, in Winter 2014, 
the #102 offered 18 trips per day with an average headway of 57 minutes and a span from 5:30AM to 
9:50PM 
 
Prior to the change, in Fall 2013 the #103 offered 9 outbound trips per day with an average headway of 
122 minutes and a span from 5:30AM to 9:50PM. After the change, in Winter 2014, the #103 offered 10 
outbound trips per day with an average headway of 111 minutes and a span from 5:30AM to 9:50PM.  
 

 Rev. Miles Rev. Hours 
#102 Old 712.7 32.6 
          New 977.8 33.9 
          Change +37% +4% 
#103 Old 439.9 22.6 
          New 492.2 21.3 
          Change +12% -5.7% 
#104 Old  -   -  
          New 592.6 21.6  
          Change  -   -  
North County Total Old 1152.6 55.2 
                         New 2062.6 76.8 
                         Change   +79% +39% 

 
Vehicle Type & Load: Given that low ridership was the driving factor for this change, load factors and 
vehicle types were not considered. Both before and after the change, the North County Routes are 
served by METRO’s standard fleet and loads generally do not exceed capacity. 
 
Cost: Prior to the service change in April 2013, monthly operating expense for the #102 was $83,650 
with a farebox ratio of 2.4%. Monthly operating expense for the #103 was $61,009 with a farebox ratio 
of 1.9%. Overall, North County service had an operating cost of $144,659 with a farebox ratio of 2.1%. 
 
After the service change in April 2014, monthly operating expense for the #102 was $81,675 with a 
farebox ratio of 2.9%. Monthly operating expense for the #103 was $50,444 with a farebox ratio of 3.8%. 

72



Monthly operating expense for the #104 was $54,578 with a farebox ratio of 3.2%. Overall, North 
County service had an operating cost of $186,697 for a farebox ratio of 3.2%. 
 
Analysis & Mitigation: An On-Board survey was conducted in August 2013 to gain more detailed 
information about the trip characteristics of riders. 51 surveys were returned on the #102 (27% of 
average daily riders) and 24 surveys were returned on the #103 (18% of average daily riders). Both 
routes were primarily used for work trips. 75% of the trips on the #102 and 81% of the trips on the #103 
were work trips.  
 
Overall, dramatic service additions were made to the North County area. We believe that benefits will 
accrue primarily to reverse-commuters, but also to the residents of the north county area, since the 
more direct routing and additional trips make transit more attractive to suburban choice riders. 
  

73



AKRON

HUDSON

STOW

BOSTON

CUYAHOGA FALLS

TWINSBURG

TALLMADGE

MACEDONIA

SAGAMORE HILLS

TWINSBURG

BOSTON HEIGHTS
PENINSULA

NORTHFIELD CENTER

MUNROE FALLS

REMINDERVILLE

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

NORTHFIELD

I80 SR
8

I76

I480

I2
71

ST
O

W
 R

D

I77

D
AR

R
O

W
 R

D

RAVENNA RD

KENT RD

SR
8/

SR
59

I77/I76

NEWTON ST

SR
59

R
IV

ER
VI

EW
 R

D

BARLOW RD

ST
AT

E 
R

D

E MARKET ST

TEREX RD

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D

E AURORA RD

GRAHAM RD

NORTON RD

EA
ST

 A
VE

HUDSO
N D

R

O
LD EIG

HT RD

MIDDLETON RD

Q
UICK RD

S 
H

AW
K

IN
S 

AV
E

E HOWE RD

C
U

YA
H

O
G

A 
S

T

CALL RD

VALLEY VIEW
 RD

NORTHEAST AVE

SOUTHEAST AVE

OLD MILL RD

E HINES HILL RD

H
O

M
E 

AV
E

M
ER

R
IM

AN
 R

D

LI
B

E
R

TY
 R

D

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

OLDE EIGHT RD

AK
RON P

EN
IN

SU
LA

 R
D

C
H

AM
B

ER
LI

N
 R

D

YO
U

N
G

 R
D

FISHCREEK RD

W BATH RD

GILCHRIST RD

COPLEY RD

N
 B

E
D

FO
R

D
 R

D

SEASONS RD

N
 P

O
R

TA
G

E
 PATH

GLENWOOD DR

N
 H

O
W

A
R

D
 S

T

AL
LE

N
 R

D

EASTWOOD AVE

MAIN ST

DIA
GONAL R

D

RAVENNA ST

HIGHLAND RD

N
O

R
TH

 A
VE

W
Y

O
G

A LA
K

E
 R

D

SH
E

PA
R

D
 R

D

COLE AVE

W STREETSBORO RD

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

W AURORA RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

BOSTON MILLS RD

W MARKET ST
WEST AVE

S 
B

O
Y

D
EN

 R
D

E NORTH ST

SAND RUN PKY

HOWE AVE

W HINES HILL RD

AK
RO

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

RD
FR

O
NT

 S
T

N
 M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

BR
A

N
D

Y
W

IN
E

 R
D

W EXCHANGE ST

E EXCHANGE ST

PORTAGE TRAIL EXT

TRUXELL RD

MULL AVE

PORTAGE TRL W

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

BAILEY RD

NORTHWEST AVE

SO
U

TH
 A

V
E

FR
E

EW
AY

 R
D

HUDSON AURORA R
D

STANFORD RD

CANNON RD

KE
LL

Y 
AV

E

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

GARMAN RD

PERKINS ST

C
AN

TO
N

 R
D

E BATH RD

D
U

N
H

AM
 R

D

BROAD BLVD

HIGHLAND RD E

TALLM
ADGE RD

N
EW

C
O

M
ER

 R
D

G
O

R
G

E 
BL

VD

TWINSBURG RD

W STEELS CORNERS RD

TWINSBURG RD E

N
O

R
TH

AM
P

TO
N

 R
D

N
 C

LE
V

E
LAN

D
 AV

E

W TWINSBURG RD

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

D

S M
ARTHA AVE

SOUTHWEST AVE

HI
NE

S 
HI

LL
 R

D

IRA AVE

NORTHMORELAND AVE

Route 102 Before

Route 103 Before

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Before changes were made to the northern
county routes.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - North County Routes

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 1.5 30.75
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Little Tykes

Creekside
Park & Ride

Pinewood Gardens
AMHA

Rocksino
Turnaround

Clarion Inn
Turnaround

ODOT
Park & Ride

74



AKRON

HUDSON

STOW

BOSTON

CUYAHOGA FALLS

TWINSBURG

TALLMADGE

MACEDONIA
SAGAMORE HILLS

TWINSBURG

BOSTON HEIGHTS
PENINSULA

NORTHFIELD CENTER

MUNROE FALLS

REMINDERVILLE

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

NORTHFIELD

I80 SR
8

I76

I480

I2
71

ST
O

W
 R

D

I77

D
AR

R
O

W
 R

D

RAVENNA RD

KENT RD

SR
8/

SR
59

I77/I76

NEWTON ST

SR
59

R
IV

ER
VI

EW
 R

D

BARLOW RD

ST
AT

E 
R

D

E MARKET ST

TEREX RD

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D

E AURORA RD

GRAHAM RD

NORTON RD

EA
ST

 A
VE

HUDSO
N D

R

O
LD EIG

HT RD

MIDDLETON RD

Q
UICK RD

S 
H

AW
K

IN
S 

AV
E

E HOWE RD

C
U

YA
H

O
G

A 
S

T

CALL RD

VALLEY VIEW
 RD

NORTHEAST AVE

SOUTHEAST AVE

OLD MILL RD

E HINES HILL RD

H
O

M
E 

AV
E

M
ER

R
IM

AN
 R

D

LI
B

E
R

TY
 R

D

N
 M

A
IN

 S
T

OLDE EIGHT RD

AK
RON P

EN
IN

SU
LA

 R
D

C
H

AM
B

ER
LI

N
 R

D

YO
U

N
G

 R
D

FISHCREEK RD

W BATH RD

GILCHRIST RD

COPLEY RD

N
 B

E
D

FO
R

D
 R

D

SEASONS RD

N
 P

O
R

TA
G

E
 PATH

GLENWOOD DR

N
 H

O
W

A
R

D
 S

T

AL
LE

N
 R

D

EASTWOOD AVE

MAIN ST

DIA
GONAL R

D

RAVENNA ST

HIGHLAND RD

N
O

R
TH

 A
VE

W
Y

O
G

A LA
K

E
 R

D

SH
E

PA
R

D
 R

D

COLE AVE

W STREETSBORO RD

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

W AURORA RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

BOSTON MILLS RD

W MARKET ST
WEST AVE

S 
B

O
Y

D
EN

 R
D

E NORTH ST

SAND RUN PKY

HOWE AVE

W HINES HILL RD

AK
RO

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

RD
FR

O
NT

 S
T

N
 M

U
N

R
O

E
 R

D

BR
A

N
D

Y
W

IN
E

 R
D

W EXCHANGE ST

E EXCHANGE ST

PORTAGE TRAIL EXT

TRUXELL RD

MULL AVE

PORTAGE TRL W

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

BAILEY RD

NORTHWEST AVE

SO
U

TH
 A

V
E

HUDSON AURORA R
D

STANFORD RD

CANNON RD

KE
LL

Y 
AV

E

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

GARMAN RD

PERKINS ST

N
 BO

YD
EN

 R
D

C
AN

TO
N

 R
D

E BATH RD

D
U

N
H

AM
 R

D

BROAD BLVD

HIGHLAND RD E

FR
EE

W
AY

 D
R

TALLM
ADGE RD

N
EW

C
O

M
ER

 R
D

G
O

R
G

E 
BL

VD

TWINSBURG RD

W STEELS CORNERS RD

TWINSBURG RD E

N
O

R
TH

AM
P

TO
N

 R
D

N
 C

LE
V

E
LAN

D
 AV

E

W TWINSBURG RD

N
O

R
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

D

S M
ARTHA AVE

SOUTHWEST AVE

HI
NE

S 
HI

LL
 R

D

IRA AVE

NORTHMORELAND AVE

Route 104 After

Route 102 After

Route 103 After

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

After changes were made to the northern
county routes.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - North County Routes

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 1.5 30.75
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Little Tykes

Creekside
Park & Ride

Pinewood Gardens
AMHA

Rocksino
Turnaround

Clarion Inn
Turnaround

ODOT
Park & Ride

75



  2.6.e #111 S. Main Short Turn 
 
Route & Location 
The #111 South Main / New Franklin served South Akron neighborhoods, the VA Clinic, and the Interval 
Brotherhood Home before proceeding to a rural portion of Summit County in the City of New Franklin 
where it performed a one-way  coverage loop. This one-way loop had very low ridership. As a result, 
METRO proposed the elimination the route segment beyond the Interval Brotherhood home, including 
the one-way loop beginning in the Fall of 2014. Two low-ridership trips were also proposed for 
elimination. 
 
Headway & Span 
Prior to the change, in Summer 2014, the #111 offered 10 outbound trips per day with an average 
headway of 70 minutes and a span from 7:20AM to 5:50PM. After the change, in Fall 2014, the #111 
offered 8 outbound trips per day with an average headway of 77 minutes and a span from 7:20AM to 
4:20PM. 
 
The portion of the route which was eliminated was only performed twice a day in the outbound 
direction and three times a day in the inbound direction. Daily revenue mileage on the eliminated route 
segment was approximately 36 miles. In Spring 2013, the #111 performed 193 revenue miles per day. In 
addition to the elimination of this route segment, two low-ridership trips were eliminated beginning 
with the Fall 2014 schedule. Total revenue miles on the route were reduced to 114 per weekday.  
 
Vehicle & Load 
Given that low ridership was the driving factor for this change, load factors and vehicle types were not 
considered. Both before and after the change, the #111 was served by METRO’s standard fleet and loads 
generally do not exceed capacity. 
 
Cost  
In April of 2014, prior to the change, the #111 had a total monthly operating cost of $33,240 with a 
farebox recovery ratio of 8.5%. In April of 2015, after the change, the #111 had a total monthly 
operating cost of $23,183 with a farebox recovery ratio of 7.7% 
 
Analysis: 
The #111 (now #11) is not classified as a “minority route.” The service cuts proposed in 2014 did not 
affect minority census blocks. Overall, minority ridership is below the METRO system average on this 
route. Reductions in service on the #111 do not have the potential for disproportionately high impact on 
minority riders.  
 
  

76



I77

I76

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

M
AN

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

D
I77/I76

SR
8

EA
ST

 A
VE

US224

E MARKET ST

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

S I277/E US224

KILLIAN RD

N I277/W US224
BR

O
W

N
 S

T

E TURKEYFOOT LAKE RD

CENTER RD

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 R

D

SR
59

E ARCHWOOD AVE

SWARTZ RD

W NIMISILA RD

E CASTON RD

COLE AVE

STATE RD

E WILBETH RD

E STATE ST

C
O

TT
AG

E 
G

R
O

V
E 

R
D

E 
I7

6/
N

 I2
77

BOETTLER RD

KENMORE B
LV

D

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T
W WATERLOO RD

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

R
EN

N
IN

G
E

R
 R

D

E EXCHANGE ST

C
H

R
IS

TM
A

N
 R

D

E WATERLOO RD

S 
H

AW
K

IN
S 

AV
E

PORTAGE LAKES DR

JARVIS RD

DIAGONAL RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

MOORE RD
W TURKEYFOOT LAKE RD

GREENSBURG RD

W CASTON RD

W THORNTON ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

N
 T

U
R

K
EY

FO
O

T 
R

D

E SOUTH ST

W WILBETH RD

ROBINSON AVE

W
 I76/S I277

SW
IG

A
R

T 
R

D

E NIMISILA RD

STATE MILL RD

C
O

R
M

AN
Y 

R
D

JO
HNSTON ST

E THORNTON ST

LOCKWOOD RD

VERNON ODOM BLVD

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

IRA AVE
SR

93

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

 N
W

S TU
R

KE
Y

FO
O

T R
D

SR
93

 R
D

VANDERHOOF RD

Route 11 Before

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Before changes were made to Main Street.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Main Street

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.85 1.70.425
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Interval
Brotherhood
Home

VA Clinic

77



NEW FRANKLIN

I77

I76

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

M
AN

C
H

ES
TE

R
 R

D
I77/I76

SR
8

EA
ST

 A
VE

US224

E MARKET ST

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

S I277/E US224

KILLIAN RD

N I277/W US224
BR

O
W

N
 S

T

E TURKEYFOOT LAKE RD

CENTER RD

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 R

D

SR
59

E ARCHWOOD AVE

SWARTZ RD

W NIMISILA RD

E CASTON RD

COLE AVE

STATE RD

E WILBETH RD

E STATE ST

C
O

TT
AG

E 
G

R
O

V
E 

R
D

E 
I7

6/
N

 I2
77

BOETTLER RD

KENMORE B
LV

D

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T
W WATERLOO RD

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

R
EN

N
IN

G
E

R
 R

D

E EXCHANGE ST

C
H

R
IS

TM
A

N
 R

D

E WATERLOO RD

S 
H

AW
K

IN
S 

AV
E

PORTAGE LAKES DR

JARVIS RD

DIAGONAL RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

MOORE RD
W TURKEYFOOT LAKE RD

GREENSBURG RD

W CASTON RD

W THORNTON ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

N
 T

U
R

K
EY

FO
O

T 
R

D

E SOUTH ST

W WILBETH RD

ROBINSON AVE

W
 I76/S I277

SW
IG

A
R

T 
R

D

E NIMISILA RD

STATE MILL RD

C
O

R
M

AN
Y 

R
D

JO
HNSTON ST

E THORNTON ST

LOCKWOOD RD

VERNON ODOM BLVD

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

IRA AVE
SR

93

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

 N
W

S TU
R

KE
Y

FO
O

T R
D

SR
93

 R
D

VANDERHOOF RD

Route 11 After

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

After changes were made to Main Street.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Main Street

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.85 1.70.425
Miles

RKP Transit Center

Interval
Brotherhood
Home

VA Clinic

78



  2.6.f New Route - #21 S. Main 
 
Route & Location 
In 2015, Summit County announced its plan to move the Department of Job and Family Services (DJFS) 
facility from downtown Akron where it was served directly by several METRO routes to an outlying 
location approximately ¼ mile from the nearest METRO stop on the #13. The DJFS provides many critical 
services to Summit County, especially for low income residents, disabled residents, and recently arrived 
refugees. These populations are of special concern to METRO, and given that they are particularly 
sensitive to walk distance, METRO’s leadership identified four goals for a service change in South Akron: 
establish a bus stop and S. Main and Stanton Avenue to serve DJFS directly, provide service to this stop 
during DJFS operating hours, improve existing service to South Akron neighborhoods, stay within budget 
of one additional peak-hour bus.  
 
Throughout 2015, METRO’s Planning Department studied alternatives for providing service to this site. 
These alternatives included re-routing the #13, re-routing the #111, re-routing all South Akron service 
including the #13, #17, and #111 (now #11), and adding direct service to DJFS. Ultimately, it was decided 
that the least disruptive and most customer-responsive solution would be to add additional service on 
South Main Street providing direct service between the downtown Transit Center, DJFS, and VA Clinic.  
 
Headway & Span 
In January 2016, METRO began service on the #21, South Main Street. The #21 provides 7:05 revenue 
hours and 88 revenue miles of service over 14 round trips. The service span is from 8:00AM to 5:10PM, 
which covers the operating hours of the DJFS facility as nearly as practical.  
 
Vehicle & Load 
The #21 is served by METRO’s standard fleet and loads generally do not exceed capacity. Given the 
relatively low ridership volume, the #21 is often assigned a 35 foot bus.  
 
Cost  
As of July 2016, the #21 carried 16.4 passengers per revenue hour and 1.71 passengers per revenue 
mile. Total operating cost was $20,944 for July 2016 with a farebox ratio of 5.8%. A bus shelter was 
constructed at S. Main & Stanton Avenue, serving the nearest inbound bus stop to the DJFS facility.  
 
Analysis 
The preferred alternative developed by the Service Planning Committee was presented at a series of 
public meetings throughout October and November, 2015. Public reaction to the addition of direct 
service to DJFS and the VA Clinic was positive. Customers dependent on other South Akron routes were 
appreciative that their current route, schedule, and routine were not going to be disrupted.  
 
 
 

79



I7
7

SR
8

I76

US224

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

E MARKET ST

E ARCHWOOD AVE

I77/I76

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

COLE AVE

E WILBETH RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

E EXCHANGE ST

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

N I277/W US224

E WATERLOO RD

SR59

S I277/E US224

E SOUTH ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

JOHNSTON ST

E THORNTON ST

E MILL ST

N
 A

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

N FORGE ST

W CEDAR ST

E BUCHTEL AVE

W STATE ST

W EXCHANGE ST

WATERLOO RD

S FORGE ST

S 
U

N
IO

N
 S

T

E CEDAR ST

FIR
ESTO

N
E PLZ

W THORNTON ST

Before Changes
Route 11

Route 13

Route 17

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Before changes were made to Southside routes.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Southside Routes

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.35 0.70.175
Miles

RKP Transit
Center

VA Clinic

Giant Eagle
Waterloo

Goodwill
Industries

South Arlington
Plaza

New DJFS

80



I7
7

SR
8

I76

US224

S 
AR

LI
N

G
TO

N
 S

T

BR
O

W
N

 S
T

E MARKET ST

E ARCHWOOD AVE

I77/I76

S 
M

A
IN

 S
T

COLE AVE

E WILBETH RD

S 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

 S
T

E EXCHANGE ST

S 
HI

G
H 

ST

G
R

A
N

T 
S

T

N I277/W US224

E WATERLOO RD

SR59

S I277/E US224

E SOUTH ST

G
LE

N
M

O
U

N
T 

AV
E

JOHNSTON ST

E THORNTON ST

E MILL ST

N
 A

R
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

N FORGE ST

W CEDAR ST

E BUCHTEL AVE

W STATE ST

W EXCHANGE ST

WATERLOO RD

S FORGE ST

S 
U

N
IO

N
 S

T

E CEDAR ST

FIR
ESTO

N
E PLZ

W THORNTON ST

After changes were made to
Southside routes.

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Changes - Southside Routes

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K

0 0.35 0.70.175
Miles

RKP Transit
Center

VA Clinic

Giant Eagle
Waterloo

New Bus Stop
Shelter

Goodwill
Industries

South Arlington
Plaza

New DJFS

After Changes
Route 21

Route 13

Route 17

New Route 21

Political Subdivisions

Streets

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

81



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

82



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A  - Civil Rights Assurance 
Attachment B  - Title VI Public Notice 
Attachment C  - Procedure for Tracking Title VI Complaints 
Attachment D  - Summary of Title VI Complaints and Investigations 
Attachment E - Public Participation Policy 
Attachment F  - Language Assistance Plan 
Attachment G  - Board Representation 
Attachment H  - Transit System Evaluation Procedures 
Attachment I  - Load Factor Analysis 
Attachment J - Headway Analysis 
Attachment K - On-Time Performance Analysis 
Attachment L  - Transit Amenities Analysis 
Attachment M  - Vehicle Assignment Analysis 
Attachment N - Demographic / Service Profile 
Attachment O  - 2013 On-Board Survey Summary Report 
Attachment P  - Service Provided by Census Block Group 
Attachment Q  - Service Monitoring Summary 
Attachment R  - Disproportionate Burden Policy / Disparate Impact Policy 
Attachment S  - Service and Fare Equity Policy 
Attachment T  - Board Resolutions 
  

83



 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Civil Rights Assurance 

  

84



FTA Urban Mass Transportation Civil Rights Assurance 

The METRO Regional Transit Authority hereby certifies that, as a condition of receiving Federal financial 
assistance under the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, it will ensure that:  

1.) No person on the basis of race, color, or national origin will be subjected to discrimination in the level 
and quality of transportation services and transit-related benefits.  

2.) The METRO Regional Transit Authority will compile, maintain, and submit in a timely manner Title VI 
information required by FTA Circular 4702.1 and in compliance with the Department of Transportation’s 
Title VI regulation, 49 CFR Part 21.9.  

3.) The METRO Regional Transit Authority will make it known to the public that any person or persons 
alleging discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin as it relates to the provision of 
transportation services and transit-related benefits may file a complaint with the Federal Transit 
Administration and/or the U.S. Department of Transportation.  

The person or persons whose signature appears below are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of 
the grant applicant or recipient.  

RICHARD M. ENTY, Executive Director, 
Secretary-Treasurer________________    Date: ___________________ 
(Name and Title of Authorized Officer) 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Officer) 
  

85



Department of Transportation Title VI Assurance 

The METRO Regional Transit Authority hereinafter referred to as the Recipient) HEREBY AGREES THAT, as a 
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the Department of Transportation it will comply 
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter 
referred to as the Act), and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in 
Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations) and other pertinent directives, to the end that in 
accordance with the Act, Regulations, and other pertinent directives, no person in the United States shall, 
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be subjected to discrimination under any program or 
activity for which the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance from the Department of Transportation, 
including the Federal Transit Administration, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will promptly take any 
measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by subsection 21.7(a) of the 
Regulations. 

More specifically and without limiting the above general assurance, the Recipient hereby gives the following 
specific assurances with respect to its operating, new start, and/or capital programs: 

1. That the Recipient agrees that each program and each facility as defined in subsections 21.23(b) 
and 21.23(e) of the Regulations, will be (with regard to a program) conducted, or will be (with 
regard to a facility) operated in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, the 
Regulations. 

2. That the Recipient shall insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids for work or 
material subject to the Regulations and made in connection with all operating, new start, and/or 
capital programs, in adapted form in all proposals for negotiated agreements: 

 The METRO Regional Transit Authority, in accordance with the Act and the Regulations issued 
pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, minority business enterprise will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on 
the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award. 

3. That the Recipient shall insert the clauses of Attachment A of this assurance in every contract 
subject to the Act and the Regulations. 

4. That the Recipient shall insert the clauses of Attachment B of this assurance, as a covenant running 
with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting a transfer of real property, structures, or 
improvements thereon, or interest therein. 

 

86



5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a 
facility, the assurance shall extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection 
therewith. 

6. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the acquisition of 
real property or an interest in real property, the assurance shall extend to rights to space on, over, 
or under such property. 

7. That the Recipient shall include the appropriate clauses set forth in Attachment C of this assurance, 
as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, permits, licenses, and similar 
agreements enter into by the Recipient with other parties: (a) for the subsequent transfer of real 
property acquired or improved under operating, new start and/or capital programs; and (b) for the 
construction or use of or access to space on, over, or under real property acquired, or improved 
under operating, new start and/or capital programs. 

8. That this assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance 
is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the 
form of, personal property, or real property or interest therein or structures or improvements 
thereon, in which case the assurance obligates the Recipient or any transferee for the longer of the 
following periods: (a) the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the 
Federal financial assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar 
services or benefits; or (b) the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of 
the property. 

9. The Recipient shall provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the 
Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific authority to give 
reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, subgrantees, contractors, subcontractors, 
transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of Federal financial assistance under such 
program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to the Act, the Regulations and this 
assurance. 

10. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to 
any matter arising under the Act, the Regulations and this assurance. 

87



THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, 
loans, contracts, property, discounts or other Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to 
the Recipient by the Department of Transportation under the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended, and is binding on it, other recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, transferees, 
successors in interest and other participants in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964. The person or 
persons whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Recipient. 

 

DATED:                                                     

 

METRO REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BY: RICHARD M. ENTY, Executive Director, Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

(SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL) 

 

88



 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Title VI Public Notice 

  

89



 

 

 

 

 

Placeholder for Public Notice  

(Communications) 

 

  

90



 

 

 

 

Attachment C 

Procedure for Tracking Title VI Complaints 

  

91



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

92



 
 

Title VI Complaint Form 
 
 
Instructions: 
If you wish to submit a Title VI complaint to METRO Regional Transit 
Authority, please fill out the form below and send it to: METRO RTA, 
Attn:  EEO Officer, 416 Kenmore Blvd., Akron, OH 44301. You can also 
fax the form to 330-762-0854, Attn: EEO officer. For a full copy of 
METRO’s Title VI procedures,  or for questions about this process please 
visit www.akronmetro.org or call 330-762-0341 and ask to speak with 
the EEO Officer. 
 
1. Name (complainant): 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Phone:  
 
( _____ ) ________________________ 
 
3. Home Address (Street #, City, ST, Zip): 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. If applicable, name and title of person(s) who allegedly discriminated 
against you: 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. Location where the alleged incident took place: 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6.  Date of alleged incident (or date range if activity took place on more 
than one date): 
 
__________________________________ 
 
7. Is this activity still on-going? 

 Yes   No 
 
 

93



8. Discrimination was based on: 
 Race/Color Sex (includes sexual harassment)  
Vietnam Era Veteran   National Origin   Sexual Orientation  
Disabled Veteran  Creed/Religion  Disability  Age 
Retaliation 

 
9. In your own words, describe the alleged discrimination. Be sure to 
include how you believe you were treated differently. If more space is 
needed please feel free to use the back of this form. 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
10. Please list below any person(s) we may contact for additional 
information to support or clarify your complaint: 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
11. Have you filed this complaint with any other federal, state or local 
agency, or with any federal or state court?   Yes No 
 
If yes, check all that apply: 

 Federal Agency Federal Court State Agency State Court 
Local Agency 

 
Please provide the name and phone number of the contact person at the 
agency/court where the complaint was filed: 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
12. Please sign below. You may attach any written or other information 
that you think is relevant to your complaint. 
 
 
___________________________________________ ____________________ 
Signature:       Date: 

94



 

 

 

 

Attachment D 

Summary of Title VI Complaints & Investigations 

  

95



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

96



Attachment D 
EEO Case Summary, May 2013 – July 2016 

 
Date Alleged Type / 

Basis 
Action Finding / Outcome Status 

5/16/2013 Applicant for 
discounted bus 
fare submitted 
complaint to OCRC 
regarding alleged 
race discrimination 
 

Received Notice 5/22/13 No Probable Cause Finding Closed 

6/25/2013 
 

Current employee 
filed complaint 
alleging unfair 
hiring practices by 
subordinate  
 

Forwarded to outside legal 
counsel due to conflict of 
interest 
 

No probable cause finding 
 

Closed 

9/3/2013 
 

Director alleging 
discrimination 
(basis: race, 
retaliation, sex) 
against another 
Director 
 

In-house preliminary 
investigation started 
 

No probable cause finding 
 

Closed 
 

12/18/2013 
 

Current employee 
alleging 
discrimination by a 
Director (basis: 
race) 
 

In-house preliminary 
investigation started 
 

Employee decided not to 
file complaint at this time 
 

Closed 
 

7/23/2014 
 

Applicant alleging 
race and age 
discrimination 
 

EEOC Complaint filed  
 

Pending - answer submitted 
to EEOC 9/28/2014 after 
request for extension to 
submit answer was 
approved. No probable 
cause finding, per EEOC. 
 

Closed 
 

7/28/2015 
 

Passenger 
complaint of 
Discrimination by 
Operator (basis: 
race) 
 

In house investigation - not 
filed with OCRC 
 

No Probable Cause 
 

Closed 
 

  

97



Date Alleged Type / 
Basis 

Action Finding / Outcome Status 

10/7/2015 
 

Passenger 
complaint of 
Discrimination by 
Eligibility Admin 
(basis: race) 
 

In house investigation - not 
filed with OCRC 
 

No Probable Cause 
 

Closed 
 

10/14/2015 
 

Passenger 
complaint of 
Discrimination 
/Harassment by 
Operator (basis: 
race) 
 

In house investigation - not 
filed with OCRC 
 

No Probable Cause 
 

Closed 
 

3/23/2016 
 

Passenger 
complaint of Race 
Discrimination by 
an employee 
 

In house investigation - not 
filed with OCRC 
 

No Probable Cause - 
complainant never 
responded to phone calls 
 

Closed 
 

 

98



 

 

 

 

Attachment E 

Public Participation Policy 

  

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

100



Attachment E 
Public Engagement Policy 

Effective September 1, 1994 (Resolution 1994-34) 
 

Fare and Service Changes – Public Notification Process 
 
1.) Purpose / Scope 
 1.1 To provide guidance for the proper notification to the public of any and all proposed 
 fare increases or service changes.  
 
2.) Guidance / Authority 
 2.1  306.35 Ohio Revised Code – Powers and Duties of a Regional Transit Authority 
 2.2 FTA Notice Requirements – C 9030-1A 
 2.3 Federal Register, April 17, 1980 DOT Public Hearing Requirements for Service Changes  
  and Fare Changes 
 
3.) Fare Change Policy 
 3.1 It is the Policy of the METRO Regional Transit Authority to not make any permanent  
  change in fares without first giving public notification of such change and allowing the  
  public the opportunity to give comments regarding such change.  
 3.2 Furthermore, the Board of Trustees shall not approve any permanent fare change  
  without first giving consideration to any and all comments received at the public hearing 
  for such purpose.  
 3.3 Temporary, seasonal and charter rates of fare are not subject to Sections 3.1 and 3.2 of  
  this section.  
 3.4 Section 5(i)(3) defines fare changes as an increase or decrease in rate of fare.  
 
4.) Service Change Policy 
 4.1 It is the policy of METRO Regional Transit Authority not to make any significant change  
  in service without first giving public notification of such change, and allowing the public  
  the opportunity to give comments regarding such service changes.  
 4.2 Furthermore, the Board of Trustees shall not approve any significant service change  
  without first giving consideration to any and all comments received at a public hearing  
  held for such purpose.  
 4.3 A significant service change is any permanent change that would effect 25% or more of  
  the transit route miles, transit revenue miles, or ridership of a transit route.  
 4.4 Temporary service changes, detours, and seasonal changes such as Board of Education  
  (BOE) service are not subject to this policy.  
 
5.0 Public Hearing 
 5.1 The METRO Regional Transit Authority shall publish in a newspaper of general   
  circulation within the County of Summit, and at least one newspaper of minority  

101



  representation,  notification of a public hearing concerning any permanent fare changes  
  or significant service changes.  
 5.2 Said notice to be published once at least 30 calendar days prior to the date the public  
  hearing is to take place, and said notice to contain a detailed description of current fares 
  compared to proposed fares, and route service to be revised to current service levels.  
 
6.0 Public Hearing 
 6.1 A detailed transcript of the public hearing must be made by the Secretary-Treasurer.  
 6.2 Such detailed transcript must further be furnished to all Board of Trustees members at  
  least 10 calendar days prior to the Board considering any action to revise permanent  
  fares or approve significant service changes.  
 6.3 The Board of Trustees shall give consideration to the comments received at the public  
  hearing prior to any action approving said changes.  
 
7.0 Documentation 
 7.1 It shall be the responsibility of the Secretary-Treasurer to maintain all documentation  
  relating to any permanent fare changes or significant service changes.  

102



 
 
 
 
 

Attachment F 
 

Language Assistance Plan 
  

103



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

104



Implementation Plan for Language Assistance 
 

Task 1: Identifying LEP Individuals Who Need Language Assistance  
METRO has developed working relationships with the IIA, various medical providers, social 
service agencies, housing providers, and educational institutions throughout the METRO service 
area. A partial list of these agencies includes Direction Home (formerly known as the Area 
Agency on Aging), ASIA, Inc., Summit County Department of Job and Family Services (DJFS); 
Akron Metropolitan Housing Agency (AMHA), Children’s Hospital, Akron General Medical 
Center, Summa Health Services, Cleveland Clinic and Akron Public Schools, as well as law 
enforcement. METRO will continue to work closely with IIA and other organizations and 
agencies in the community to assist the LEP community and assist in evaluating if any persons 
with new language are brought to the community to ensure we assist in breaking down 
transportation barriers. 
  
Task 2: Language Assistance Measures  
Through partnerships with the agencies above, METRO has been able to provide transit system 
information to their staffs, which they have used to help their LEP clients to access their 
services using transit through their own translators (routes, destinations, fares) and/or clients 
with higher level English skill who can share it with family members and/or other clients. The 
effectiveness of this activity has been evident by the incidence of LEP persons using METRO’s 
route system efficiently without contacting METRO personnel directly for additional assistance. 
That is, the language survey METRO conducted with operators and Customer Service staff in 
February 2016 indicates numerous interactions; LEP customers are obviously using the bus 
regardless of their lack of language skill. Also, a few of the responses to the “Other” question in 
the survey suggested that even with limited language skill, and some difficulty communicating 
with our staff, most people manage enough key words to get the information that they need. 
These data points lead us to believe that METRO’s travel training with partner agencies has 
been quite effective. 
 
 1) Travel Trainers, Customer Service Clerks, Outside Agencies and riders alike, can access 
  METRO’s website with language translation on the home page.  
 2) METRO will contract with a phone language translation service to assist in a three  
  way call if our representative deems that they do not possess the skills to assist  
  the passenger.  
 3) Instructions will be shared with bus operators on how to properly work with persons  
  in the LEP community.  
 4) METRO Customer Service Clerks at the Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center (RKPTC) are all  
  equipped with the “I Speak” card, as well as the Receptionist in our main offices.  
  METRO will keep an on-going monthly tally of the number of persons we assist at 
  the RKPTC and a separate tally of the persons who fall into the LEP category that  
  we are unable to assist. This data will give METRO information going forward as  
  to the frequency and  percentage of LEP persons METRO is unable to assist.  
 
 

105



 
Task 3: Training of Staff  
METRO provides a travel training program that is designed to provide bus riding skills to 
individuals that have previously been uncertain about the process. These trainings are 
individually planned and can vary in length, based on the person’s abilities. Our travel trainers 
have effectively trained staff at our partner agencies who work directly with the LEP 
population, thereby improving information about, and access to, our fixed route transit 
services.  
 
Customer Service Clerks have at their disposal, “I Speak” cards containing 38 different 
languages. If they are unable to properly give information in English to the passengers, Clerks 
can reference the “I Speak” card and reach out to the IIA for immediate assistance. Operations 
Supervisors will also possess the “I Speak” cards, as they often interface with customers or are 
contacted via radio by operators who may need assistance. As METRO’s website contains 
language translation for 22 languages, Customer Service Clerks also have access to it as well as 
Google Translate for additional language translation.  
 
Task 4: Providing Notice to LEP Persons  
As 2015 Census data indicates, within Summit County, METRO’s service area, 1.97% of the 
population speaks English “less than well.” Considering that as well as the success of our travel 
training partnerships and website electronic translation capabilities, METRO has no current 
plans to publish multi-lingual notices.  
 
Task 5: Monitoring and Updating the Plan  
In the near future, METRO will begin tracking the number of persons we assist at RKPTC 
including a separate tally of the persons who fall into the LEP category that we believe we were 
unable to assist. This data will give METRO information going forward as to the frequency and 
percentage of LEP persons METRO is unable to assist. METRO will conduct an annual LEP 
survey, somewhat more robust than our most recent one, and will continue to work closely 
with the IIA to train and support their travel trainers who work directly with their clients. The 
IIA presented a seminar in the past few months as an informational session on persons 
relocating from the Congo area, in anticipation of some families moving to Akron. We will 
continue to participate these sorts of sessions by IIA and our other partners who serve those 
events as well. 

106



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

LANGUAGE IDENTIFICATION FLASHCARD

1. Arabic

2. Armenian

3. Bengali

4. Cambodian

5. Chamorro

6. Simplified
Chinese

7. Traditional
Chinese

8.Croatian

9. Czech

10. Dutch

11. English

12. Farsi

Mark this box if you read or speak English.

2010

Motka i kahhon ya yangin ûntûngnu' manaitai pat ûntûngnu' kumentos Chamorro.

QUmbJÇak'kñ¨g®b/b'enH ebI/ñk/an …niXaXPasa e‡oµe .

Kruis dit vakje aan als u Nederlands kunt lezen of spreken.

Zaškrtněte tuto kolonku, pokud čtete a hovoříte česky.

Označite ovaj kvadratić ako čitate ili govorite hrvatski jezik.

2004 
Census 

Test

.á«Hô©dG çóëàJ hCG CGô≤J âæc GPEG ™HôŸG Gòg ‘ áeÓY ™°V

107



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

14. German

15. Greek

16. Haitian
Creole

17. Hindi

18. Hmong

19. Hungarian

20. Ilocano

21. Italian

22. Japanese

23. Korean

24. Laotian

25. Polish

13. FrenchCocher ici si vous lisez ou parlez le français.

Kreuzen Sie dieses Kästchen an, wenn Sie Deutsch lesen oder sprechen.

Make kazye sa a si ou li oswa ou pale kreyòl ayisyen.

Markaam daytoy nga kahon no makabasa wenno makasaoka iti Ilocano.

Marchi questa casella se legge o parla italiano.

Jelölje meg ezt a kockát, ha megérti vagy beszéli a magyar nyelvet.

Kos lub voj no yog koj paub twm thiab hais lus Hmoob.

Prosimy o zaznaczenie tego kwadratu, jeżeli posługuje się Pan/Pani 
językiem polskim.

108



DB-3309 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economics and Statistics Administration

U.S. CENSUS BUREAU

27. Romanian

28. Russian

29. Serbian

30. Slovak

31. Spanish

32. Tagalog

33. Thai

34. Tongan

35. Ukranian

36. Urdu

37. Vietnamese

38. Yiddish

26. PortugueseAssinale este quadrado se você lê ou fala português.

Označte tento štvorček, ak viete čítať alebo hovoriť po slovensky.

Markahan itong kuwadrado kung kayo ay marunong magbasa o magsalita ng Tagalog.

Marque esta casilla si lee o habla español.

�ометьте этот квадратик, если вы читаете или говорите по-русски.

Maaka 'i he puha ni kapau 'oku ke lau pe lea fakatonga.

�ідмітьте цю клітинку, якщо ви читаєте або говорите українською мовою.

Xin ñaùnh daáu vaøo oâ naøy neáu quyù vò bieát ñoïc vaø noùi ñöôïc Vieät Ngöõ.

109



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

110



 

 

 

 

Attachment G 

Board Representation 

  

111



Attachment G 
Board Representation 

as of April, 2016 
 

Board of Trustees 
White   8 66% 
African-American   3 25% 
Hispanic   1 8% 
Total  12 100% 
 

112



 
 
 
 
 

Attachment H 
 

Transit System Evaluation Procedures 
  

113



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

114



Transit System Evaluation Procedures 
For the 

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August, 1999 
(UMTA Grant #OH-09-0078) 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  
METRO Regional Transit Authority 

416 Kenmore Boulevard 
Akron, Ohio 44301 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report was prepared in cooperation with the US Department of Transporation, Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration, Federal Transit Administration, and the Akron Metropolitan Area 
Transportation Study. The contents of this report reflect the views of METRO RTA, which is responsible 
for the facts and accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not reflect the official view and 
policies of the FTA and/or AMATS. The report does not constitute a standard, specification, or 
regulation.  

115



INTRODUCTION 

Improvements in METRO services must be planned as part of the comprehensive planned development 
of the urban area. In order for FTA to approve the programming of projects in the AMATS 
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP), and subsequently approve project funding, a planning guidance 
and documentation process must be followed. Part of this process includes development of a 
Transportation Systems Management Plan (TSM). The TSM plan, including the TDP, must be submitted 
to FTA prior to submission of the TOP in order to keep the project planning support documentation 
current.  

TRANSIT SYSTEM OBJECTIVES 

The overall goal of the METRO Regional Transit Authority is to develop and maintain an effective and 
efficient network of public transporation services for the benefit of all residents and visitors within the 
Authority area. Service objectives designed to accomplish this should be consistent with service 
standards in the following area:  

 1.) Accessibility 
  a.) Provide regular-route public transportation service to satisfy the major travel desires  
  of the majority of residents in the METRO service area.   
  b.) Provide supplementary services to satisfy the needs of the elderly, handicapped, and  
  other special market groups.  
 
 2.)  Convenience and Speed 
  a.) Provide service that is reasonable, direct, and effective in transporting passengers 
  b.) Provide service that minimizes: 
   i. Travel time by transit 
   ii. Aggregate “access time” related to walking to and from transit services 
   iii. Transferring 
  c.) Provide service that is competitive with automobile travel in terms of overall travel  
  times and cost.  
  d.) Provide clear and readable schedules that are easily remembered by customers  
  when headways exceed 10 minutes.  
 
 3.) Safety and Comfort 
  a.) Offer safe public transportation service 
  b.) Provide clean and comfortable equipment and facilities 
  c.) Provide shelters and benches for passengers at major boarding points.  
 
 4.)  Efficiency 
  a.) Provide peak and off-peak services that make the best use of manpower, vehicles  
  and other resources while encouraging maximum use of the entire network of public  
  transportation.  

116



  b.) Minimize underutilized and/or inefficient services that are a drain on transportation  
  resources without sufficient offsetting benefits. 
  c.) Maximize average operating speeds within the limits of safe, comfortable operation 
  d.) Minimize recovery time in relation to revenue-producing time 
   e.) Minimize operation of redundant or competitive services 
 
 5.)  Responsiveness 
  a.) Conduct a continuing probe of opportunities for increasing ridership and service  
  effectiveness. 
  b.) Adjust service to coincide with changes in travel desires of residents and visitors.  
  c.) Adjust services to improve METRO’s competitive advantage to the private   
  automobile.  
  d.) Develop service improvements cooperatively with the communities within the  
  METRO Authority.  
 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 

A performance evaluation process is essential for improving the efficiency and effectiveness of METRO 
operations. This process provides a means of assessing how well METRO is meeting the gfoals and 
objectives set for the service and financial performance.  
 
This process, in effect, establishes the framework for management policy which: 
 
 1.) Provides a uniform and effective basis for evaluating the relative costs, benefits, and overall 
 performance for individual services.  
 2.) Provides a responsive and effective means for establishing new services and improvements  
 to existing services.  
 3.) Provides a consistent basis for determining the operating responsibility for individual services 
 and supplemental financing arrangements for these services.  
 4.) Provides a basis by which to provide sound input to AMATS for preparing and updating the 
 TIP. 
 
In addition, this process: 
 1.) Identifies those services which are a “drain” on METRO resources without sufficient 
 offsetting benefits.  
 2.) Evaluates proposals for service improvements on the basis of market potential/public benefit 
 and their impact on METRO’s resources.  
 3.) Provides a mechanism for evaluating the reporting service performance to Management, an 
 Advisory Board, or individual communities to determine the best allocation of resources.  
 4.) Provides information which can be used to identify possible experimental services.  
 

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

117



The objectives of METRO’s planning and evaluation procedure is to develop and implement service plans 
which are effective in improving the “quality of service” and are efficient in their use of availale 
resources. The tools for measuring services and plans for improved services against this objective will be 
the performance criteria and standards presented in Part One, Service Design Standards and Part Two, 
Operating Performance Standards.  
 
Part One – Service Design Standards 
 
1.) Standard for Route Spacing 
To a great extent, the attractiveness of transit service is influence by its accessibility. One measure of 
accessibility is the distance between routes. Route spacing is a function of population density and 
topography of the operating area.  
Recommended: 
 A.) For regular-route service (all service other than express), the spacing function should 
 consider: 
  - population density per square mile 
  - adequate street access/street configuration constraints 
  -  contiguous development of land use 
  - demographic characteristics of the target population 
  - residential design 
 B.) Generally, route spacing should reflect the parameters shown in the table below.  

Route Spacing Guide 
Area Type Population per Square Mile Average Route Spacing 

Urban 4,000+ Up to ½ mile 
Suburban 1,000 – 4,000 ½ to 3 miles 

Rural > 1000 Greater than 3 miles 
 

 C.) Operation of competitive, overlapping, or redundant regular-route services should be 
 avoided except on thoroughfares where additional service is warranted or where junctions of 
 routes occur due to street design or the need to service a major activity center.  
 D.) The location of service types other than regular-route service should be determined by 
 studies of market potential (see #13, #14). 
 
2.) Maximum Walking Distance for Transit User to a Bus Stop 
 
Surveys have shown that only 12% of METRO riders walk more than 3-4 blocks to get to a bus stop. This 
figure is not surprising considering the severe weather conditions which often prevail in our area. 
Therefore, keeping walking distances to bus stops to a minimum is crucial to attract and retain transit 
riders.  
Recommended: 
 
 

118



Maximum Walking Distance 
Average Route Spacing Maximum Walking Distance (Feet) 

½ mile or less 1,000 – 1,300 
½ to 3 miles 1,300 – 2,500 

Greater than 3 miles* 5,300 – 7,900 
 

* In rural areas, where average route spacing is greater than three (3) miles, or where population per 
square mile is less than 1,000, park-and-ride access is assumed.  
 
3.) Percentage of the Population to Whom Service is Directly Accessible 
Recommended:  
- Urban Areas, 90% (population density > 4,000/mi2 ) 
- Suburban, 75% (population density 1,000 - 4,000/mi2 ) 
- Rural, 50% (population < 1,000/mi2 ) 
 
4.) Route Layout 
Recommended: 
 A.) The alignment of a route should be as direct as possible avoiding circuitous paths, in order to 
 minimize travel time.  
 B.) Service should be operated only over streets having at least ten (10) foot wide lanes. Safety 
 considerations should always prevail in the final determination.  
 C.) Service should not be operated over streets which continually exhibit dangerous situations 
 such as steep grades, poorly plowed or sanded roadways, or streets where illegal parking 
 habitually encroaches on the roadway reducing passageways to less than ten (10) feet.  
 
5.) Frequency of Service 
Recommended: 
 A.) Service frequency (headways) should be established to provide a sufficient number of 
 vehicles past the maximum load point(s) on a route to accommodate the passenger volume.  
 B.) Headways on all regular-route services should correspond with clockface values to the 
 maximum extent possible when frequencies exceed ten (10) minutes.  
 C.) In instances where passenger loads are so light as to require excessive time intervals 
 (headways) between vehicles to conform with loading standards, a “policy headway” (or 
 minimum service level) should be used. Policy headways are needed only for regular-route 
 services. Other services are special in nature because they are generally operated to serve a 
 specific market; as such, headways should be determined by demand. Policy headways for 
 regular route service are shown in the table below:  
  

119



Policy Headways (Minutes) 
Type of Service Peak Off-Peak Evening/Weekend 

Main Route (above 
average efficiency*) 

10 – 20 30 -60  45 – 70 

Secondary (below 
average efficiency*) 

30 – 45  45 - 80  60 – 90 

Express Route Demand Based Demand Based Demand Based 
* Efficiency is defined in terms of passengers by revenue mile. 
 
 D.) For new services, frequency of service should be determined by applying loading standards 
 to projected ridership or by comparing the service with similar types and functions in proximity 
 to the proposed service. In no case should the headways assigned to a new service exceed the 
 policy headways in Table 3.  
 E.) For school services, school hours which are staggered outside the normal commuting peak 
 hours are desirable to ease manpower and vehicle requirements. Schools with hours that 
 conflict with this guideline should be given a lower service priority.  
 F.) The exact hours and days that a new service is to be operated should be determined by the 
 characteristics of the target market and/or comparison with services of similar type and/or 
 function.  
 
6.) Minimum and Maximum Spacing Acceptable between Bus Stops by Category 
Recommended: 

 No Less Than No More Than 
CBD Area 150’ 300’ 

Urban / Suburban 300’ 600’ 
Industrial / Commercial As Required As Required 

 
7.) Location of Bus Stops in Relation to Intersections 
Choices: 
 1.) Farside 
 2.) Nearside 
 3.) Mid-Block 
Recommended: 
Location decision-making should be based on the following criteria:  
 1.) Safety 
  a.) Passenger Movements 
  b.) Bus Movements 
  c.) Traffic Movements 
  d.) Pedestrian Movements 
 2.) Effect on Traffic 
  a.) Bus-Vehicle Conflicts 
  b.) Right-Turn-on-Red Movements 
 3.) Impact on Adjacent Land Use and Development 

120



  a.) Commercial Activities 
  b.) Land Use 
 4.) Estimated Load Factors and Transfer Points 
  a.) Farside stops are preferable to all other locations when situations permit 
  b.) Sufficient right-of-way at stops should be established when the combined headways  
  of routes using the same stop are in five (5) minute or less duration or the terminal  
  point of routes is at the same location. 
 
Part Two – Operating Performance Standards 
 
8.) Criteria for Transit System Operating Speed 
There are several factors affecting the amount of recovery time built into a route’s schedule. These 
factors include the relationship of frequency and round trip running time and traffic variations 
throughout the day. The ability f an operator to maintain his/her schedule through variable traffic 
conditions during the day is the key consideration. Because of this, each route must be analyzed 
individually to assess circumstances which may make a route’s average speed substandard.  
Recommended: 
 Total mileage divided by platform hours: 
  - Main Line, 12 MPH 
  - Feeder Line, 15-17 MPH 
  - Limited Stop or Express, 20 MPH 
  - CBD Area, 8 MPH 
  - Total Fleet Average, 12, MPH 
 
9.) Schedule Adherence 
Recommended: 
 A.) No trip should leave a terminal or intermediate time point ahead of the scheduled time (no 
 “running hot”) 
 B.) A bus is operating “on time” if it arrives at intermediate and terminal points no later than 
 four (4) minutes after its scheduled arrival 
 C.) At least 75% of total trips should be operated “On Time” 
 
10.) Acceptable Load Factors for Line Service During Different Periods of the Day 
Recommended: 
 A.) Peak periods – 150% of seated capacity 
 B.) Off-Peak periods – 100% of seated capacity 
 
11.) Vehicle Cleanliness – Interior and Exterior Appearance Criteria 
Recommended: 

Vehicle Cleanliness (Interior) Vehicle Cleanliness (Exterior) 
- Washed Daily 

- Vacuumed Daily 
- Washed Daily 

- No visible collision damage 

121



- Vandalism & Graffiti to receive immediate 
attention 

- Advertising contracts should reserve 10% of 
advertising space on each bus for METRO public 

service information 
Infractions of these standards will be forwarded to the manager of the vehicle service department.  
 
12.) Transfer Policy 
The percentage of transfers made on a transit system provides a measure of how direct the service is. 
The more direct service is, the lower passenger travel time will be. While it is financially unfeasible to 
provide all customers with direct non-transfer transportation, through-routing of passengers is 
desirable.  
Recommended: 
 A.) A linkage of routes which correspond to travel patterns must consider schedule ramifications 
 but not necessarily be controlled by them.  
 B.) No more than 25% of our passengers should have to transfer to complete their trip.  
 
13.) Criteria to Modify Existing or New Service 
Recommended:  
Failure to meet the performance standards below should result in service evaluation to identify the 
problem(s) and recommend a solution. After a comprehensive review period of six (6) months, 
recommendation should be made concerning the substandard service.  
  
 A.) Revenue to Direct Cost Ratio 
 The table below shows the minimum revenue to direct cost standards: 

Type of Service Minimum Percentage of System-wide Average 
Regular Route 50% 

Express 60% 
School 100%** 

Contract 100%** 
* Revenue to direct cost is a ratio of farebox revenue generated on a route to the total operating cost of 
that route.  
** As negotiated 
 
 B.) Passengers per Revenue Mile 
 A service should maintain or exceed the passenger per revenue mile average shown below: 

Time Period Minimum Percentage of System-wide Average 
AM Peak 70% 
Mid Day 60% 
PM Peak 70% 
Off-Peak 50% 

Total 70% 
 
 C.) Passengers per Revenue Vehicle Hour 
 Standards for passengers per revenue vehicle hour appear below: 

122



Time Period Minimum Percentage of System-wide Average 
AM Peak 70% 
Mid Day 60% 
PM Peak 70% 
Off-Peak 50% 

Total 70% 
 
 D.) Cost per Passenger 
 Generally, service should not exceed the following cost per passenger parameters.  

Time Period Minimum Percentage of System-wide Average 
AM Peak 175% 
Mid Day 200% 
PM Peak 175% 
Off-Peak 225% 

Total 175% 
 

INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

The data base from which accurate and reliable information can be drawn as needed can be provided 
through internal sources. Information can be provided from the annual system survey and Section 15 
route sampler survey material. For the purpose of comparability, the annual system survey should be 
undertaken in the months of March and/or April. Productivity measurements are not necessarily 
creating new data, but making use of information already gathered for accounting and management 
purposed.  
 
Procedures that address the quality and quantity of information, the specific data elements required, 
the format for initial reporting, and the critical timeliness for the collection of data are important. These 
procedures should include:  
 - Administrative procedures requiring departmental units to report information in a specific 
 format on a specific date. This should stress the importance of deadlines in order to ensure that 
 the administrative body has timely information. 
 - Administrative procedures identifying the importance that must be placed on achieving 
 standards and targets. Accountability in this respect is essential to the credibility, and hence 
 utility, of the program.  

123



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

124



 

 

 

 

Attachment I 

Load Factor Analysis 

  

125



Load Factor Analysis 

Method 
Along with the Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) system installed in 2014 and 2015, METRO installed 
Automatic Passenger Counters on its entire line service fleet. The counters establish an on-board count 
by keeping a running total of boards and alights through each door. The software provided by the AVL 
supplier can generate a report which gives the load factor of each recorded trip by hour of the day. 
 
All weekday trips during the month of April 2016 were sampled. Trips in the 4AM to 6AM hours, and the 
10AM to 3PM hours were classified as “Base” trips. The 7-9AM hours were classified “AM Peak”. “PM 
Peak” trips were in the 4PM to 6PM hours. Trips beginning after 7PM were classified as “Evening.” The  
 
AVL system records which vehicle operated each trip, the average onboard count, and the maximum 
onboard count for the trip. These records were compared to the seated capacity of the bus and the total 
capacity of the bus. The program defines total capacity as 130% of seated capacity, while METRO’s 
Service Standards give total capacity as 150% of seated capacity. So, this analysis is a more conservative 
interpretation of overcrowding than the accepted standard.  
 
There were four buses that were known to have over-counting issues with their APCs at this time. As a 
result, trips from buses 1702, 2101, 2127, and 2129 were removed from the dataset. Given that all of 
METRO’s routes draw from the same pool of buses dispatched from the same facility, the impact of 
removing these buses was small. 6.9% of the trips were removed from the #4 dataset, 6.6% from the 
#24 dataset, and 6.8% from the #103 dataset. Overall, 3.3% of the trips in the dataset were removed 
because they were performed by these buses with over-counting issues.  
 
Analysis 
After grouping the routes into “Minority” and “Non-Minority” status using the route miles travelling 
through Census Block Groups with greater than the average minority population for Summit County, we 
analyzed how often the maximum onboard count exceeded the number of seats on the bus and how 
often it exceeded the maximum capacity (130% of seated capacity).  

27,148 of the total 35,642 (76%) of the total trips were performed on Minority routes. In total, Minority 
routes exceeded the seated capacity of the bus on 1.59% of trips and exceeded total capacity on 0.28% 
of trips. Non-Minority routes exceeded seated capacity on 0.6% of trips and total capacity on 0.06% of 
trips. It is more likely that a bus will be overcrowded on a Minority route, but overcrowding overall is a 
very occasional problem.  

  

126



The table below gives the results of a similar analysis broken out by time of day:  

Base % 
Exceeds 
Seats 

% 
Exceeds 
Max 

AM 
Peak 

% 
Exceeds 
Seats 

% 
Exceeds 
Max 

PM 
Peak 

% 
Exceeds 
Seats 

% 
Exceeds 
Max 

Evening % 
Exceeds 
Seats 

% 
Exceeds 
Max 

Minority 
Trips 

1.29% 0.13%  0.47% 0.12%  3.18% 0.67%  2.39% 0.58% 

Non-
Minority 
Trips 

0.77% 0.06%  0.21% 0%  0.71% 0  0.56% 0.16% 

 

The following pages give the same analysis broken out by route. Time periods with greater than 1% 
overcrowded trips are highlighted in yellow, time periods with greater than 5% overcrowded trips are 
highlighted in red. It is clear that providing additional capacity in the PM Peak and Evening hours, 
especially on priority corridors such as the #1, #2, #3, and #8, would relieve overcrowding and provide 
for a more equitable system.  

  Minority Route Base AM Peak PM Peak Evening Total Trips 

Route Census % % % % % % % % % % 

1 Minority 3.27% 0.40% 0.90% 0.00% 12.90% 3.23% 10.66% 3.23% 5.13% 1.00% 

2 Minority 2.30% 0.41% 0.85% 0.00% 7.54% 1.51% 6.10% 1.69% 3.36% 0.67% 

3 Minority 1.71% 0.53% 0.25% 0.25% 1.30% 0.65% 3.48% 1.49% 1.50% 0.60% 

4 Minority 0.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

5 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

6 Minority 1.20% 0.00% 0.28% 0.00% 0.33% 0.00% 1.17% 0.00% 0.83% 0.00% 

7 Minority 3.31% 0.37% 0.00% 0.00% 3.16% 0.00% 1.86% 0.62% 2.34% 0.24% 

8 No 3.67% 0.28% 0.94% 0.00% 4.35% 0.00% 2.91% 0.97% 3.09% 0.27% 

9 Minority 0.18% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.35% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.37% 0.00% 

10 Minority 2.06% 0.00% 0.27% 0.00% 2.07% 0.59% 0.43% 0.00% 1.42% 0.12% 

11 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

12 Minority 1.12% 0.00% 0.66% 0.66% 2.00% 1.60% 0.00% 0.00% 1.05% 0.45% 

13 Minority 1.13% 0.00% 0.76% 0.76% 3.43% 1.72% 0.00% 0.00% 1.39% 0.52% 

127



 Minority Route Base AM Peak PM Peak Evening Total Trips 

Route Census % % % % % % % % % % 

14 Minority 0.37% 0.00% 0.30% 0.30% 3.30% 0.30% 0.31% 0.00% 0.88% 0.11% 

17 Minority 0.56% 0.00% 2.34% 0.39% 5.93% 0.74% 1.99% 0.00% 2.29% 0.24% 

18 Minority 0.60% 0.00% 1.40% 0.00% 3.62% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.21% 0.00% 

19 Minority 0.77% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.39% 0.00% 

21 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00% 

24 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

26 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

28 Minority 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00% 

30 Minority 0.35% 0.00% 0.41% 0.00% 1.35% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.00% 

33 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.70% 0.00% 0.22% 0.00% 

34 Minority 0.70% 0.00% 0.32% 0.00% 1.91% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.77% 0.00% 

50 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

51 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.68% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.35% 0.00% 

53 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00% 

59 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00% 

60 No 1.45% 0.00% 0.88% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.65% 0.00% 

61 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

101 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

102 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

103 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

104 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

110 No 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

128



 

 

 

 

Attachment J 

Headway Analysis 

  

129



Headway Analysis 

Method 

METRO’s Headway standards are defined for peak, off-peak, and weekend service. Policy headways are 
defined for “major” and “minor” routes. A minor route is defined as a route with less than average 
productivity (measured via Passengers per Revenue Mile). METRO’s service is not heavily oriented to 
commute peaks, because demand for the system is spread throughout the day. Therefore, we have 
evaluated the average headway between 6AM and 7PM as the “peak.” After 7PM, METRO service 
operates on 70 minute headways tied to pulses from the downtown transit center. Headways longer 
than the policy headway are highlighted in orange, headways shorter than policy are highlighted in red, 
and headways falling within the policy range are highlighted in green. In some cases, there were too few 
trips to establish an average headway.  

Analysis 

Generally, METRO routes do not meet or exceed their policy headway. During the daytime, two minority 
routes meet their policy headway and two do not. During the evening, two minority routes and four 
non-minority routes meet or exceed their policy headway. On Saturday, one minority route and two 
non-minority routes meet or exceed their policy headway. On Sunday, six minority routes and two non-
minority routes meet or exceed their policy headway.  
 

Route Minority 
Route? 

Pass. 
per 
Rev. 
Mile 

Policy 
Headway 

Peak 

Average 
Daytime 
Headway 

Policy 
Headway 
Off-Peak 

Average 
Evening 

Policy 
Headway 
Weekend Saturday Sunday 

  
    

(6AM-
7PM) 

 

(after 
7PM)       

1 Minority 2.41 10 to 20  24 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 55 
2 Minority 2.3 10 to 20  23 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 55 
3 Minority 2.08 10 to 20  34 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 66 
4 Minority 1.66 10 to 20  43 30 to 60 None 45 to 70 90 90 
5 Minority 0.79 30 to 45 56 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 90 None 
6 Minority 1.3 10 to 20  36 45 to 80 70 60 to 90 90 90 
7 Minority 1.73 10 to 20  36 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 90 90 
8 No 1.82 10 to 20  40 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 55 
9 Minority 1.62 10 to 20  40 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 90 90 

10 Minority 1.66 10 to 20  38 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 57 
11 Minority 0.79 30 to 45 77 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 None None 
12 Minority 1.67 10 to 20  35 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 94 94 
13 Minority 2.01 10 to 20  40 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 95 95 
14 Minority 1.2 30 to 45 34 45 to 80 70 60 to 90 80 57 
17 Minority 1.9 10 to 20  38 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 90 90 

130



Route Minority 
Route? 

Pass. 
per 
Rev. 
Mile 

Policy 
Headway 

Peak 

Average 
Daytime 
Headway 

Policy 
Headway 
Off-Peak 

Average 
Evening 

Policy 
Headway 
Weekend Saturday Sunday 

  
    

(6AM-
7PM)  

(after 
7PM)       

18 Minority 1.62 10 to 20  36 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 90 90 
19 Minority 2.02 10 to 20  44 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 95 95 
21 Minority 1.39 10 to 20  40 30 to 60 None 45 to 70 None None 
24 Minority 1.89 10 to 20  37 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 90 None 
26 Minority 1.11 30 to 45 43 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 90 None 
28 Minority 0.83 30 to 45 57 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 None None 
30 Minority 1.27 10 to 20  40 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 95 100 
33 No 0.96 30 to 45 143 45 to 80 70 60 to 90 4 Trips None 
34 Minority 1.33 10 to 20  36 30 to 60 70 45 to 70 80 70 
50 No 0.34 30 to 45 27 45 to 80 44 60 to 90 50 46 
51 No 0.17 30 to 45 37 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 None None 
53 No 0.34 30 to 45 62 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 None None 
59 No 0.47 30 to 45 56 45 to 80 30 60 to 90 65 None 

101 No 0.23 30 to 45 60 45 to 80 1 Trip 60 to 90 None None 
102 No 0.15 30 to 45 57 45 to 80 67 60 to 90 None None 
103 No 0.25 30 to 45 66 45 to 80 3 Trips 60 to 90 None None 
104 No 0.15 30 to 45 51 45 to 80 70 60 to 90 None None 
110 No 0.38 30 to 45 99 45 to 80 None 60 to 90 None None 

 

131



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

132



 

 

 

 

Attachment K 

On-Time Performance Analysis 

  

133



On Time Performance 

Method 
METRO buses are “On Time” if they depart a 
timepoint not ahead of schedule or not more 
than 4 minutes behind schedule. The service 
standards state that 75% of the trips should be 
operated “On Time.” “On Time” status has 
traditionally been determined via spot checks 
by road supervisors and reported on a system 
level.  

In April 2016, METRO’s Operations 
Department reported that line service buses 
were “On Time” 91% of the time. This figure is 
based on 591 recorded observations by road 
supervisors during the month of April.  

In December 2014, METRO began installing an 
Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) system. By 
summer of 2015, AVL units had been installed 
on 100% of the fleet. Final shakedown and full 
implementation of the system has not yet 
been completed at the time of this report; 
however, we believe that the Schedule 
Adherence Report for April 2015 is worth 
reporting, since it gives the schedule 
adherence values by route and uses over 
100,000 samples for the month of April. 

Overall, the AVL system reports that METRO 
line service is “On Time 81.4% of the time. 
Several routes individually fall below the 75% 
threshold. Additional study of both On-Time 
performance and the performance of the Avail 
system is required for these routes to 
determine if “false early” or “false late” 
readings are being recorded or if a true 
schedule adherence problem is present.  

 

Schedule Adherence via AVL, April 2016 

  
% 
OnTime 

% 
Late 

% 
Early 

Total 
Departures 

1 WEST MARKET 79.9 14.7 5.3 5506 
10 HOWARD/PORTA 78.3 16.3 5.3 3879 
101 RICHFIELD/B 82.6 11.7 5.7 1555 
102 NORTHFIELD 79.2 18.6 2.2 1268 
103 STOW/HUDSON 75 17.1 7.9 1618 
104 TWINSBURG/C 72.3 14.5 13.2 3082 
11 SOUTH AKRON 83.3 5.6 11 1435 
110 GREEN/SPRIN 74.7 15.8 9.5 1949 
12 TALLMADGE HI 92.1 5.6 2.2 3609 
13 GRANT/FIREST 92.5 4.4 3.2 2844 
14 EUCLID / BAR 82.6 9.3 8.1 6519 
17 BROWN/INMAN 76.9 17.3 5.8 3999 
18 THORNTON/MAN 82.7 12.4 4.9 3093 
19 EASTLAND 80.8 11.2 7.9 4031 
2 ARLINGTON 83 14.4 2.6 7951 
21 SOUTH MAIN 97.9 0.8 1.3 1177 
24 LAKESHORE 67.2 11.3 21.5 926 
26 WEST EXCHANG 86.5 8 5.5 2264 
28 MERRIMAN VAL 85.2 5.1 9.7 1373 
3 COPLEY ROAD/H 77.9 9.3 12.8 4369 
30 GOODYEAR/DAR 85.5 8 6.5 3241 
33 STATE/WYOGA 87.4 8.3 4.4 1744 
34 CASCADE VALL 75.3 15.3 9.4 4879 
4 DELIA / NORTH 82.5 7.2 10.3 2736 
5 JOY PARK/GILC 74.6 17.1 8.2 3368 
50 MONTROSE CIR 84.8 3.7 11.5 2728 
51 STOW CIRCULA 83.9 9.8 6.3 2966 
53 PORTAGE/GRAH 81.6 8.8 9.6 1514 
59 CHAPEL HILL 60.6 22.4 17 1561 
6 EAST MARKET/L 78.2 16.4 5.3 5053 
7 CUYAHOGA FALL 90 5.3 4.7 2093 
8 KENMORE/BARBE 86.2 7.6 6.2 4298 
9 VERN ODOM BLV 85.3 10.5 4.2 2625 
Total 81.4 11.6 7 101253 

 

134



 

 

 

 

Attachment L 

Transit Amenities Analysis 

  

135



%2

%2

%2
%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2
%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

%2

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂ _̂_̂_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂ _̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂̂_

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂
_̂_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂̂_
_̂
_̂̂_

_̂

_̂̂_

_̂
_̂

_̂̂_
_̂

_̂AKRON

GREEN

BATH

HUDSON

STOW

COPLEY

NORTON

BOSTON

NEW FRANKLIN

CUYAHOGA FALLS

SPRINGFIELD

TWINSBURG

TALLMADGE

RICHFIELD
RICHFIELD

COVENTRY

MACEDONIA

BARBERTON

RICHFIELD

SAGAMORE HILLS

TWINSBURG

FAIRLAWN

CLINTON

BOSTON HEIGHTS

PENINSULA

LAKEMORE

NORTHFIELD CENTER

MUNROE FALLS

REMINDERVILLE

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

NORTHFIELD

This map displays all of METRO's shelters and
benches for bus stops within the service area
and if they serve a minority or non-minority area
defined by the Census Blocks.  

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K
0 2.5 51.25

Miles

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Stop Shelters & Benches

Bus Stop Amenities
_̂ Minority Area Shelters

_̂ Non-Minority Area Shelters

%2 Minority Area Benches

%2 Non-Minority Area Benches

METRO Fixed Routes

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

136



St
op

 ID
Ci

ty
St

op
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Bo
ar

di
ng

s 
/ 

Da
y

Ro
ut

es
 S

er
ve

d
Bl

oc
k 

G
ro

up
M

in
or

ity
 B

lo
ck

 
G

ro
up

?
06

33
AK

RO
N

N
. M

AI
N

 @
 S

T.
 T

HO
M

AS
 H

O
SP

47
.4

7,
 1

2,
 3

3
50

11
00

-1
Ye

s
19

02
AK

RO
N

E.
 N

O
RT

H 
ST

 &
 S

PR
IN

G 
ST

4.
8

34
50

11
00

-1
Ye

s
09

08
AK

RO
N

EA
ST

 A
VE

 &
 M

AN
CH

ES
TE

R 
RD

51
.2

9
50

18
00

-1
Ye

s
09

11
AK

RO
N

V.
 O

DO
M

 B
LV

D 
@

 V
. O

DO
M

 L
IB

RA
RY

23
.4

9
50

18
00

-1
Ye

s
13

63
AK

RO
N

TH
O

RN
TO

N
 S

T 
&

 A
M

HE
RS

T 
ST

64
.6

18
, 2

4
50

19
00

-2
Ye

s
13

66
AK

RO
N

TH
O

RN
TO

N
 S

T 
&

 S
. M

AI
N

10
.7

18
, 2

4
50

19
00

-2
Ye

s
06

27
AK

RO
N

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D 

@
 N

IM
M

ER
 A

PT
S

37
.4

7,
 1

2,
 1

9,
 5

9
50

21
02

-1
Ye

s
06

29
AK

RO
N

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D 

&
 T

AL
LM

AD
GE

 A
VE

44
.2

7,
 1

2,
 1

9,
 5

9
50

21
02

-1
Ye

s
06

18
AK

RO
N

IN
DE

PE
N

DE
N

CE
 T

U
RN

AR
O

U
N

D
55

5.
6

7,
 1

0,
 1

2,
 1

9,
 3

4,
 5

1,
 5

3,
  5

9
50

21
02

-2
Ye

s
10

31
AK

RO
N

BR
IT

TA
IN

 R
D 

@
 N

IM
M

ER
 A

PT
S

4.
1

7,
 1

2,
 1

9,
 5

9
50

21
02

-2
Ye

s
19

96
AK

RO
N

CH
AP

EL
 H

IL
L 

M
AL

L
0.

7
59

50
21

02
-2

Ye
s

10
37

AK
RO

N
TH

E 
JO

B 
CE

N
TE

R
84

.6
12

50
22

00
-5

Ye
s

18
09

AK
RO

N
GO

O
DY

EA
R 

BL
VD

 &
 P

IO
N

EE
R 

ST
19

.0
30

50
26

00
-1

Ye
s

01
56

AK
RO

N
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 &
 7

TH
 A

VE
24

.5
2

50
32

00
-3

Ye
s

01
70

AK
RO

N
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 P
LA

ZA
18

.6
2

50
33

00
-7

Ye
s

13
21

AK
RO

N
VI

RG
IN

IA
 A

VE
 &

 E
LL

ER
 A

VE
13

.6
17

50
33

00
-7

Ye
s

02
15

AK
RO

N
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 &
 7

TH
 A

VE
42

.7
2

50
35

00
-5

Ye
s

04
91

AK
RO

N
W

ED
GE

W
O

O
D 

DR
 &

 A
BI

N
GT

O
N

 R
D

17
.4

5
50

37
01

-4
N

o
01

96
AK

RO
N

S.
 A

RL
IN

GT
O

N
 &

 D
ER

BY
DA

LE
 R

D
30

.6
2

50
38

00
-2

Ye
s

01
99

AK
RO

N
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 @
 H

ER
ZI

G 
CO

LL
EG

E
9.

3
2

50
38

00
-2

Ye
s

01
42

AK
RO

N
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 &
 JO

N
AT

HA
N

 A
VE

43
.5

2
50

38
00

-3
Ye

s
02

00
AK

RO
N

S.
 A

RL
IN

GT
O

N
 P

LA
ZA

62
.0

2
50

38
00

-3
Ye

s
02

01
AK

RO
N

S.
 A

RL
IN

GT
O

N
 &

 R
O

SE
M

AR
Y 

BL
VD

69
.8

2
50

38
00

-3
Ye

s
11

43
AK

RO
N

GR
AN

T 
ST

 &
 E

. S
O

U
TH

 S
T

55
.4

13
50

42
00

-2
Ye

s
23

33
AK

RO
N

S.
 M

AI
N

 @
 D

JF
S

35
.3

21
50

44
00

-2
Ye

s
12

72
AK

RO
N

BR
O

W
N

 S
T 

&
 L

O
VE

RS
 L

AN
E

22
.3

17
50

46
00

-1
Ye

s
14

48
AK

RO
N

TH
O

RN
TO

N
 S

T 
@

 W
IL

LI
AM

S 
TO

W
ER

16
.6

18
50

52
00

-1
Ye

s
08

34
AK

RO
N

ED
IS

O
N

 A
VE

 &
 W

. M
IL

LE
R 

AV
E

18
.7

8
50

53
00

-2
Ye

s
07

34
AK

RO
N

LA
KE

SH
O

RE
 B

LV
D 

&
 L

AK
E 

ST
7.

5
8,

 2
4

50
53

00
-3

Ye
s

16
45

AK
RO

N
LA

KE
SH

O
RE

 B
LV

D 
&

 L
O

N
G 

ST
3.

0
24

50
53

00
-3

Ye
s

08
91

AK
RO

N
EA

ST
 A

VE
 @

 A
CM

E
14

.0
9

50
54

00
-4

N
o

137



St
op

 ID
Ci

ty
St

op
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Bo
ar

di
ng

s 
/ 

Da
y

Ro
ut

es
 S

er
ve

d
Bl

oc
k 

G
ro

up
M

in
or

ity
 B

lo
ck

 
G

ro
up

?

07
37

AK
RO

N
LA

KE
SH

O
RE

 B
LV

D 
&

 K
EN

M
O

RE
 B

LV
D

20
.7

8,
 2

4
50

56
00

-2
Ye

s
07

54
AK

RO
N

KE
N

M
O

RE
 B

LV
D 

&
 L

AK
ES

HO
RE

 B
LV

D
6.

6
8

50
56

00
-2

Ye
s

14
23

AK
RO

N
CA

RN
EG

IE
 A

VE
 &

 H
AN

CO
CK

 A
VE

4.
7

18
50

58
00

-3
Ye

s
16

59
AK

RO
N

W
HI

TE
 P

O
N

D 
DR

 &
 P

AR
KG

AT
E 

AV
E

19
.0

26
50

61
00

-2
Ye

s
00

23
AK

RO
N

W
. M

AR
KE

T 
@

 A
CM

E 
#1

73
.9

1,
 2

6
50

61
00

-6
N

o
03

40
AK

RO
N

S.
 H

AW
KI

N
S 

AV
E 

&
 M

AR
LO

N
 A

VE
6.

0
4

50
61

00
-6

N
o

03
32

AK
RO

N
W

. E
XC

HA
N

GE
 S

T 
&

 S
. P

O
RT

AG
E 

PA
TH

26
.5

4,
 2

6
50

65
00

-1
Ye

s
00

98
AK

RO
N

W
. M

AR
KE

T 
&

 R
HO

DE
S 

AV
E

35
.7

1,
 6

1
50

66
00

-2
Ye

s
12

47
AK

RO
N

DI
AG

O
N

AL
 R

D 
&

 B
IS

SO
N

 A
VE

26
.5

14
50

67
00

-1
Ye

s
00

01
AK

RO
N

RK
P 

TR
AN

SI
T 

CE
N

TE
R

59
15

.7
Al

l (
Ex

ce
pt

 C
irc

ul
at

or
s)

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

02
31

AK
RO

N
W

. C
ED

AR
 @

 A
KR

O
N

 G
EN

ER
AL

 H
O

SP
.

27
.6

3,
 4

, 1
4

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

02
32

AK
RO

N
W

. C
ED

AR
 &

 P
IN

E 
ST

31
.5

3,
 4

, 1
4

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

02
62

AK
RO

N
S.

 M
AI

N
 @

 C
AN

AL
 P

LA
CE

6.
8

3,
 1

4,
 1

7,
 2

6
50

68
00

-1
Ye

s
08

55
AK

RO
N

LO
CU

ST
 S

T 
@

 B
EL

CH
ER

 A
PT

S
13

.0
9

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

09
15

AK
RO

N
LO

CU
ST

 S
T 

@
 B

EL
CH

ER
 A

PT
S

19
.3

9
50

68
00

-1
Ye

s
09

16
AK

RO
N

O
PP

O
RT

U
N

IT
Y 

PK
W

Y 
&

 D
AR

T 
AV

E
1.

1
9

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

11
03

AK
RO

N
W

O
LF

 L
ED

GE
S 

PK
W

Y 
&

 E
. T

HO
RN

TO
N

 S
T

15
.1

11
, 1

3
50

68
00

-1
Ye

s
11

06
AK

RO
N

GR
AN

T 
ST

 &
 M

O
RG

AN
 A

VE
1.

1
13

50
68

00
-1

Ye
s

09
53

AK
RO

N
N

. H
O

W
AR

D 
ST

 @
 L

AU
ER

 A
PT

S
38

.3
10

, 3
4

50
75

00
-4

Ye
s

00
05

AK
RO

N
S.

 M
AI

N
 &

 B
U

CH
TE

L 
AV

E
10

3.
4

1,
 3

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 2
6,

 2
8,

 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

00
11

AK
RO

N
S.

 M
AI

N
 &

 B
O

W
ER

Y
41

.5
1,

 1
0,

 2
6,

 2
8,

 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

00
14

AK
RO

N
S.

 M
AI

N
 &

 U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
VE

69
.0

1,
 3

, 1
0,

 1
4,

 2
6,

 2
8,

 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

00
15

AK
RO

N
S.

 M
AI

N
 @

 M
AI

N
 L

IB
RA

RY
14

9.
9

1,
 1

0,
 2

6,
 2

8,
 3

4
50

83
01

-1
Ye

s
00

16
AK

RO
N

S.
 M

AI
N

 @
 F

IR
ST

 E
N

ER
GY

 B
LG

97
.5

1,
 1

0,
 2

6,
 2

8,
 3

4
50

83
01

-1
Ye

s
00

17
AK

RO
N

S.
 M

AI
N

 &
 M

IL
L 

ST
54

.6
1,

 1
0,

 2
6,

 2
8,

 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

02
59

AK
RO

N
W

. B
O

W
ER

Y 
@

 C
HI

LD
RE

N
'S

 H
O

SP
IT

AL
10

.0
3,

 1
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

03
99

AK
RO

N
S.

 B
RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 B
U

CH
TE

L 
AV

E
32

.5
5,

 6
, 7

, 1
2,

 1
9,

 3
0,

 3
3,

 1
02

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

04
01

AK
RO

N
S.

 B
RO

AD
W

AY
 @

 Q
U

AK
ER

 S
Q

U
AR

E
53

.2
5,

 6
, 7

, 1
2,

 1
9,

 3
0,

 3
3,

 1
02

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

04
02

AK
RO

N
S.

 B
RO

AD
W

AY
 &

 S
TA

TE
 S

T
33

.5
5,

 6
, 7

, 1
2,

 1
9,

 3
0,

 3
3,

 1
02

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

04
38

AK
RO

N
E.

 M
AR

KE
T 

&
 S

U
M

M
IT

 S
T

4.
2

5,
 6

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

09
45

AK
RO

N
N

. M
AI

N
 &

 E
. M

AR
KE

T
4.

4
10

, 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

138



St
op

 ID
Ci

ty
St

op
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Bo
ar

di
ng

s 
/ 

Da
y

Ro
ut

es
 S

er
ve

d
Bl

oc
k 

G
ro

up
M

in
or

ity
 B

lo
ck

 
G

ro
up

?

09
46

AK
RO

N
N

. M
AI

N
 &

 E
. M

AR
KE

T
7.

6
10

, 3
4

50
83

01
-1

Ye
s

12
40

AK
RO

N
V.

 O
DO

M
 B

LV
D 

&
 S

. H
AW

KI
N

S 
AV

E
22

.2
14

50
83

99
-1

Ye
s

02
45

AK
RO

N
RO

LL
IN

G 
AC

RE
S 

TR
AN

SI
T 

CE
N

TE
R

18
4.

8
3,

 9
, 1

4
50

83
99

-4
Ye

s
02

54
AK

RO
N

21
83

 R
O

M
IG

 R
O

AD
16

.2
3,

 1
4

50
83

99
-4

Ye
s

03
08

AK
RO

N
CO

PL
EY

 R
D 

&
 S

. P
O

RT
AG

E 
PA

TH
39

.2
3

50
86

00
-2

N
o

02
77

AK
RO

N
FR

ED
ER

IC
K 

BL
VD

 &
 C

O
PL

EY
 R

D
54

.7
3

50
88

00
-4

Ye
s

02
78

AK
RO

N
CO

PL
EY

 R
D 

&
 S

. H
AW

KI
N

S 
AV

E
5.

0
3

50
88

00
-4

Ye
s

01
50

AK
RO

N
E.

 E
XC

HA
N

GE
 @

 D
AV

E'
S 

M
AR

KE
T

67
.4

2,
 1

10
50

89
00

-1
Ye

s
04

11
AK

RO
N

E.
 M

AR
KE

T 
&

 A
DA

M
S 

ST
16

.9
5,

 6
, 3

0
50

89
00

-1
Ye

s
04

12
AK

RO
N

E.
 M

AR
KE

T 
&

 B
U

CH
TE

L 
AV

E
17

.5
5,

 6
, 3

0
50

89
00

-1
Ye

s
04

09
AK

RO
N

E.
 M

AR
KE

T 
@

 C
IT

Y 
HO

SP
IT

AL
91

.8
5,

 6
, 1

9,
 3

0
50

89
00

-4
Ye

s
04

17
AK

RO
N

E.
 M

AR
KE

T 
&

 B
U

CH
TE

L 
AV

E
82

.3
5,

 6
, 3

0
50

90
00

-1
Ye

s
07

23
BA

RB
ER

TO
N

N
W

. 2
N

D 
ST

 &
 W

. T
U

SC
AR

AW
AS

 A
VE

74
.4

8,
 1

4
51

01
00

-2
N

o
07

29
BA

RB
ER

TO
N

N
W

. 2
N

D 
ST

 &
 W

. T
U

SC
AR

AW
AS

 A
VE

12
2.

6
8,

 1
4

51
01

00
-2

N
o

26
64

BA
RB

ER
TO

N
N

O
RT

O
N

 A
VE

 @
 S

TA
RK

 S
TA

TE
2.

1
8

51
01

00
-3

N
o

11
84

BA
RB

ER
TO

N
SE

. 5
TH

 S
T 

&
 P

O
RT

SM
O

U
TH

 S
T

16
.0

14
51

03
01

-4
N

o
12

30
BA

RB
ER

TO
N

5T
H 

ST
 N

E.
 @

 B
AR

BE
RT

O
N

 H
O

SP
IT

AL
6.

2
14

51
03

02
-2

N
o

12
27

BA
RB

ER
TO

N
5T

H 
ST

 S
E.

 @
 A

LP
ET

ER
 A

PT
S

15
.5

14
51

03
02

-4
N

o
11

98
BA

RB
ER

TO
N

W
O

O
ST

ER
 R

D 
&

 N
W

. 2
3R

D 
ST

1.
0

14
51

05
00

-4
N

o
06

38
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

HO
W

E 
AV

E 
@

 T
AR

GE
T

65
.7

7,
 3

4,
 5

1,
 5

3
52

01
03

-1
N

o
10

13
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

PO
RT

AG
E 

TR
AI

L 
&

 C
O

O
K 

ST
10

.0
10

52
01

04
-2

N
o

09
94

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
PO

RT
AG

E 
TR

AI
L 

&
 C

O
O

K 
ST

3.
8

10
52

01
04

-3
N

o
07

01
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

BA
IL

EY
 R

D 
&

 K
EN

N
ED

Y 
BL

VD
0.

0
7,

 5
9

52
01

06
-1

N
o

09
27

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
ST

AT
E 

RD
 &

 F
AL

LS
 A

VE
12

.0
10

, 3
3

52
02

01
-2

N
o

09
31

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
ST

AT
E 

RD
 &

 H
IG

H 
BR

ID
GE

 R
D

2.
6

10
, 3

3
52

02
01

-2
N

o
15

49
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

ST
AT

E 
RD

 @
 G

IA
N

T 
EA

GL
E

9.
5

33
, 5

3
52

03
01

-1
N

o
09

24
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

ST
AT

E 
RD

 @
 A

CM
E

13
.8

10
, 3

3
52

03
01

-2
N

o
09

21
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

ST
AT

E 
RD

 &
 M

AI
TL

AN
D 

AV
E

22
.8

10
, 3

3
52

03
01

-3
N

o
09

39
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

ST
AT

E 
RD

 &
 N

. H
AV

EN
 B

LV
D

7.
6

10
, 3

3
52

03
02

-3
N

o
09

91
CU

YA
HO

GA
 F

AL
LS

PO
RT

AG
E 

TR
AI

L 
&

 F
RO

N
T 

ST
9.

6
10

52
04

00
-3

N
o

10
17

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
PO

RT
AG

E 
TR

AI
L 

&
 2

N
D 

ST
36

.6
10

52
04

00
-3

N
o

139



St
op

 ID
Ci

ty
St

op
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Bo
ar

di
ng

s 
/ 

Da
y

Ro
ut

es
 S

er
ve

d
Bl

oc
k 

G
ro

up
M

in
or

ity
 B

lo
ck

 
G

ro
up

?

20
06

TW
IN

SB
U

RG
CR

EE
KS

ID
E 

PA
RK

 N
 R

ID
E

41
.8

60
, 1

04
53

01
05

-1
N

o
21

53
TW

IN
SB

U
RG

 T
W

P
HA

DD
EN

 R
D 

&
 R

AY
 C

T
11

.3
10

4
53

01
05

-2
Ye

s
23

40
TW

IN
SB

U
RG

HA
DD

EN
 R

D 
&

 E
. H

IG
HL

AN
D 

RD
0.

9
10

4
53

01
05

-2
Ye

s
18

22
ST

O
W

FI
SH

CR
EE

K 
RD

 &
 C

RE
EK

SI
DE

 C
T

1.
5

51
53

05
01

-3
N

o
16

18
ST

O
W

ST
O

W
 C

O
U

RT
HO

U
SE

3.
8

53
53

06
03

-1
N

o
19

84
TA

LL
M

AD
GE

N
O

RT
H 

AV
E 

&
 E

. H
O

W
E 

RD
2.

6
59

53
08

00
-1

N
o

05
81

LA
KE

M
O

RE
CA

N
TO

N
 R

D 
&

 S
AN

IT
AR

IU
M

 R
D

10
.5

6
53

10
02

-2
N

o
01

86
SP

RI
N

GF
IE

LD
S.

 A
RL

IN
GT

O
N

 @
 W

AL
M

AR
T

11
1.

3
2

53
11

03
-2

N
o

13
95

CO
VE

N
TR

Y
M

AN
CH

ES
TE

R 
AC

M
E

69
.0

18
53

18
01

-2
N

o
12

04
N

O
RT

O
N

W
O

O
ST

ER
 R

D 
@

 JR
 W

HE
EL

26
.8

14
53

20
01

-4
N

o
00

76
FA

IR
LA

W
N

W
. M

AR
KE

T 
@

 F
AI

RL
AW

N
 T

O
W

N
 C

EN
TE

R
39

.6
1

53
22

02
-2

N
o

00
43

FA
IR

LA
W

N
W

. M
AR

KE
T 

&
 M

ER
Z 

BL
VD

61
.4

1,
 6

1,
 1

01
53

22
02

-4
N

o
01

11
FA

IR
LA

W
N

W
. M

AR
KE

T 
@

 R
O

SE
M

O
N

T 
CO

M
M

O
N

S
56

.5
1

53
22

02
-6

N
o

20
10

AK
RO

N
JA

M
ES

 F
IS

HE
R 

PA
RK

 N
 R

ID
E

77
.7

61
, 1

01
53

23
02

-2
N

o
21

47
TW

IN
SB

U
RG

EN
TE

RP
RI

SE
 P

KW
Y 

&
 B

AV
AR

IA
 R

D
5.

0
10

4
53

27
01

-2
Ye

s
21

80
TW

IN
SB

U
RG

 T
W

P
BO

YL
E 

PK
W

Y 
&

 E
. H

IG
HL

AN
D 

RD
2.

1
10

4
53

27
01

-2
Ye

s
23

39
TW

IN
SB

U
RG

BO
YL

E 
PK

W
Y 

&
 E

N
TE

RP
RI

SE
 P

W
KY

0.
6

10
4

53
27

01
-2

Ye
s

18
68

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
ST

AT
E 

RD
 &

 C
HA

RT
 R

D
22

.0
33

53
29

02
-1

N
o

15
47

CU
YA

HO
GA

 F
AL

LS
GR

AH
AM

 R
D 

&
 P

RA
N

GE
 D

R
3.

9
33

, 5
3

53
29

02
-4

N
o

140



 

 

 

 

Attachment M 

Vehicle Assignment Analysis 

  

141



Vehicle Assignment 

Method 

In order to measure the distribution of equipment among 
minority and non-minority routes, we generated tables of 
farebox entries by route and by bus from April 2016. For 
each route, we calculated the number of rides on each 
bus, and grouped these by the age of the bus.  

In order to get an average bus age by ride, each ride was 
multiplied by the age of the bus it occurred on. We divided 
the total number of rides by the sum of all the (Ride x Bus 
Age) figures.  

Analysis 

METRO’s fixed-route bus fleet is all dispatched from one 
facility. The majority of the fleet consists of 40-foot transit 
buses. These buses are assigned on a mostly 
interchangeable basis. One exception are the six high-
capacity articulated buses, which are only assigned to 
Routes 1 and 2. In April 2016 the average age of the 
METRO line service fleet was 4.8 years.  

Eight of the eleven non-minority routes had an average 
bus age older than 4.8. 13 of 22 minority routes had an 
average bus age older than 4.8 years.  

Looking at the issue using a different metric, there were 10 
routes where more than 60% of the rides occurred on 
buses five years or older. Four of these were minority 
routes and six were non-minority routes.  

It is more likely that a customer would ride on an older bus 
on a non-minority route than a minority route. Largely, this 
is because METRO’s older or smaller buses are often 
assigned to suburban routes which perform fewer trips per 
day.  

 

Vehicle Assignment Table 

Route Minority 

Avg. 
Age of 
Bus 
(years) 

% Rides 
New 
Bus 

% Rides 
Old Bus 

1 Minority 3.8 85.2% 14.8% 
2 Minority 3.7 84.6% 15.4% 
3 Minority 4.6 67.5% 32.5% 
4 Minority 7.2 45.0% 55.0% 
5 Minority 6.0 23.1% 76.9% 
6 Minority 4.5 67.6% 32.4% 
7 Minority 4.7 61.4% 38.6% 
8 No 4.6 62.1% 37.9% 
9 Minority 4.8 50.3% 49.7% 

10 Minority 5.2 52.4% 47.6% 
11 Minority 5.9 5.0% 95.0% 
12 Minority 4.8 58.4% 41.6% 
13 Minority 5.9 60.5% 39.5% 
14 Minority 5.0 58.0% 42.0% 
17 Minority 5.0 52.5% 47.5% 
18 Minority 5.1 50.9% 49.1% 
19 Minority 5.0 54.5% 45.5% 
21 Minority 3.7 96.1% 3.9% 
24 Minority 5.9 49.8% 50.2% 
26 Minority 5.4 39.3% 60.7% 
28 Minority 8.1 30.1% 69.9% 
30 Minority 4.7 51.5% 48.5% 
33 No 7.8 18.2% 81.8% 
34 Minority 5.1 54.5% 45.5% 
50 No 6.5 8.0% 92.0% 
51 No 5.2 53.3% 46.7% 
53 No 6.8 21.0% 79.0% 
59 No 4.0 78.7% 21.3% 

101 No 5.4 44.0% 56.0% 
102 No 4.5 61.8% 38.2% 
103 No 5.3 38.2% 61.8% 
104 No 5.7 35.4% 64.6% 
110 No 5.7 30.6% 69.4% 

 

142



 

 

 

 

Attachment N 

Demographic / Service Profile 

  

143



To
ta

l 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
Se

rv
ed

Pe
rc

en
t

M
in

or
ity

 
Po

pu
la

tio
n

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
Se

rv
ed

Pe
rc

en
t

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

n
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

Se
rv

ed
Pe

rc
en

t

Su
m

m
it 

Co
un

ty
 T

ot
al

54
1,

96
8

13
3,

83
0

24
.7

%
11

1,
10

3
70

,0
26

63
.0

%
72

,6
24

55
,3

53
76

.2
%

Ak
ro

n
19

7,
85

9
12

2,
69

4
62

.0
%

74
,7

90
66

,0
17

88
.3

%
52

,8
28

46
,1

34
87

.3
%

Ba
rb

er
to

n
26

,2
34

1,
43

3
5.

5%
2,

41
3

69
2

28
.7

%
4,

85
3

3,
23

1
66

.6
%

Cu
ya

ho
ga

 F
al

ls
49

,1
46

1,
20

8
2.

5%
3,

24
4

49
0

15
.1

%
5,

60
3

3,
43

1
61

.2
%

Ba
la

nc
e 

of
 C

ou
nt

y
26

8,
72

9
8,

49
5

3.
2%

30
,6

56
2,

82
7

9.
2%

9,
34

0
2,

55
7

27
.4

%

Tr
an

si
t C

ov
er

ag
e

144



AKRON

GREEN

BATH

HUDSON

STOW

COPLEY

NORTON

BOSTON

NEW FRANKLIN

CUYAHOGA FALLS

SPRINGFIELD

TWINSBURG

TALLMADGE

RICHFIELD
RICHFIELD

COVENTRY

MACEDONIA

BARBERTON

RICHFIELD

SAGAMORE HILLS

TWINSBURG

FAIRLAWN

CLINTON

BOSTON HEIGHTS

PENINSULA

LAKEMORE

NORTHFIELD CENTER

MUNROE FALLS

REMINDERVILLE

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

NORTHFIELD

Commuter Service

Other Line Service

Minority Routes

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Minority Blocks

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Area & Census Block Minority

Cleveland

0 3 61.5
Miles

Defined as Non-White above the average 
population percentage of Summit County: 19.4%

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K
0 2.5 51.25

Miles145



AKRON

GREEN

BATH

HUDSON

STOW

COPLEY

NORTON

BOSTON

NEW FRANKLIN

CUYAHOGA FALLS

SPRINGFIELD

TWINSBURG

TALLMADGE

RICHFIELD
RICHFIELD

COVENTRY

MACEDONIA

BARBERTON

RICHFIELD

SAGAMORE HILLS

TWINSBURG

FAIRLAWN

CLINTON

BOSTON HEIGHTS

PENINSULA

LAKEMORE

NORTHFIELD CENTER

MUNROE FALLS

REMINDERVILLE

MOGADORE

SILVER LAKE

NORTHFIELD

Commuter Service
Other Line Service
Minority Routes
METRO Service Area
Political Subdivisions
Poverty Blocks
Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Cleveland

0 3 61.5
Miles

Defined that by Census Blocks above Summit
County’spercentage, where 13.4% of the
population is considered living in poverty.  

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K
0 2.5 51.25

Miles

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Area & Census Poverty Blocks

146



n£n£n£n£n£

n£n£

n£

n£n£n£

n£

n£

n£ n£
Rail Storage

Facility
North Train

Platform

Creekside
Park n' Ride Lot

Rolling Acres
Transit Center

James Fisher
Park n' Ride Lot

Robert K Pfaff
METRO Transit Center &

Park n' Ride Lot

Independance
Turnaround

Transfer Station

Maintenance& Garage
Administration

Public Clean Energy 
Fueling Station

n£ Metro Owned Property

Metro Line Service

METRO Service Area

Political Subdivisions

Census 2014 5 yr Block Group

Cleveland

0 3 61.5
Miles

Data Source: ESRI, METRO RTA, U.S. Census Bureau

K
0 2.5 51.25

Miles

METRO Regional Transit Authority 
Service Area & Owned Property

147



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

148



 

 

 

 

Attachment O 

2013 On-Board Survey Summary Report 

  

149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

150



 

 

 

 

 

 

METRO Survey Results (Fall 2013) 

DRAFT Summary Report 
 

 

 

February 2014 
 

151



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND KEY FINDINGS 

The Akron Metropolitan Regional Transit Authority (METRO) sought to conduct a survey to 

understand the characteristics and travel patterns of its passengers. After determining sample 

sizes to reach statistical significance by route, estimating response rates, estimating the cost of all 

materials, and creating a one-page survey, the project team conducted the survey in Akron the 

first full week of November 2013. An online and telephone survey supplemented the on-board 

paper form, focusing on customer satisfaction. METRO used the contact information from the on-

board survey to contact the same respondents for the online and telephone survey.  

Former METRO staff and METRO affiliates acted as the crew of on-board surveyors. Due to their 

connections with METRO, knowledge of the system, and overall positive energy, the surveyors 

brought in nearly 3,400 survey responses. All routes reached their targeted statistical 

significance, and bias was kept at a minimum. After temporary staff entered that data, it was 

cleaned and each route assigned a weight to reduce over- or under-representation. Most questions 

had a 94 percent response rate or greater. The project team then conducted an analysis by 

question for the whole system and by route. Though results vary and caveats exist, key 

observations include:    

 METRO riders have few other transportation options. Ninety percent of 

respondents state that they do not have regular access to a private vehicle. Roughly 90 

percent of riders have a yearly income less than $20,000. METRO plays a critical role in 

allowing Akron citizens to access jobs, healthcare, schools, and other day-to-day needs. 

 Riders do not walk far to their stops. Nearly 90 percent of riders walk to the stop, 

and about 85 percent of these respondents walk three blocks or fewer. The online survey 

indicates that many are happy with how close the stops are to their destinations. 

 METRO riders use the bus for more than work commuting. Work is the most 

common purpose of trip, but the majority of trips occur for other reasons. Shopping, 

medical appointments, and school are other common responses. Coverage along 

commercial corridors, hospitals, and schools is very important to riders. 

 Young adults are frequent users of METRO. Over a third of respondents were 

between the ages of 19 and 34. Theses riders are an asset that METRO should hold on to 

through listening to customer needs and making necessary improvements. 

 Increasing frequency, providing later evening service, and adding more 

weekend service are the most desired service improvements. These three 

improvements are the most commonly cited desires among riders on nearly every fixed-

route system, and METRO is no exception. However, many agencies find them the most 

difficult to put place because they are often costly to implement. Depending on budget, 

METRO should explore these service improvements but should also explore other options 

that boost satisfaction, e.g., real-time schedule information.  

 Trips can be long and crosstown trips may not be well served. With many trips 

originating or ending in surrounding communities, and a downtown-based radial route 

structure focused on coverage, riders often travel long distances. The average trip length 

is 4.0 miles as the crow flies not including trips to or from Cleveland.  

METRO staff and board members can use the results of the survey effort to make informed “next 

step” decisions as they develop and improve the bus system in the Akron metropolitan area.   

152



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 3 

INTRODUCTION 

The Akron Metropolitan Regional Transit Authority (METRO) provides local transit services 

throughout the city of Akron and Summit County, OH, and operates commuter services to 

Cleveland, roughly 35 miles to the north. Charged with providing "safe, dependable, cost-

effective, and customer-focused" transportation services for the community, METRO sought to 

study its nearly 40 routes and 11,000 unique riders per day through an on-board survey. This 

report summarizes the results of that survey conducted on METRO buses in November 2013.  

One of the on-going challenges faced by all transit agencies is fully understanding the 

characteristics and travel patterns of their customers. Recent federal legislative updates for Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 have also increased the importance and priority of collecting and 

maintaining this data. However, the data required to achieve this level of statistical validity is in 

excess of what agencies typically collect. The goal of this survey effort was to give METRO a 

statistically valid understanding of riders and trips both on a system-wide and route level. 

METHODOLOGY 

As with many surveys, the objectives of careful planning and preparation by the project team were 

to minimize sampling and non-response error, determine an appropriate sample size, and 

minimize sample and question bias. Various factors influenced the design and implementation of 

the METRO on-board survey, including the stated goals, project budget, daily and weekly 

ridership levels, schedules, and weather. To meet the goals and objectives, the project team took 

numerous steps to ensure a successful survey effort while working within the project constraints.  

Survey Design 

Often the first question of survey design is whether the study population is riders or trips. For 

various reasons, it is frequently necessary and desirable to capture both socio-economic, 

demographic, and behavioral information of riders, and origin-destination and characteristics of 

trips on the same survey instrument. This was the case here. 

Drawing from experience and other examples, the project team carefully crafted a survey 

instrument, paying attention to wording, meaning, importance, and overall survey length. Since 

this was an on-board survey, the survey had to be long enough to capture salient information but 

short enough to finish on a typical bus ride. Thus, the team designed a single-sided, 8.5" x 11" 

survey with 13 multiple-choice questions and 5 short fill-ins. The survey was printed on cardstock 

to aid in survey completion while on-board a moving bus. 

 The first seven questions on the survey instrument collected information on the respondent's 

trip, while questions 16 and 17 collected origin and destination information. Origin and 

destination information is commonly the most difficult to collect since it can be confusing for the 

rider, especially when the trip requires transfers or long "first-mile"/"last-mile" distances. For this 

reason, the origin and destination questions were placed at the end of the form, reducing the 

possibility of partial responses.   

Questions 8 through 15 asked socio-economic, demographic, and behavioral information about 

the respondent. The final question on the form asked the respondent to enter their name, phone, 

and email for a chance to win a 31-day METRO pass. METRO randomly chose names and handed 

out 25 passes to respondents. See Appendix A for the entire survey instrument. 

153



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 4 

Due to the desire to keep the paper on-board survey relatively short, METRO and the project 

team agreed to create a separate online survey asking customer satisfaction questions. This 

survey, hosted on Survey Monkey, included a broad array of questions, as shown in Appendix B. 

The first five questions of the online survey, as well as questions 9 through 11, asked behavioral 

and socio-economic information similar to the paper form to establish baseline information about 

the respondent. Questions six through eight asked respondents if METRO serves the correct 

areas, if any destinations are difficult to reach by bus, and to rank potential service improvements 

by importance. Questions 12 through 16 focused on customer satisfaction of various aspects of the 

bus service, why the respondent rides METRO, and what would encourage him or her to ride 

more frequently. The final substantive questions, 17 through 20, asked about the usefulness of 

METRO’s website, potential improvements to the website, and if the respondent had any 

additional comments to share. The final question asked again about contact information for a 

chance to win one of six additional 31-day METRO pass. Winners were drawn randomly.  

On-Board Survey Sampling Plan 

Ridership typically drops after mid-November due to weather and the holidays. Therefore, the 

project team chose the week of November 4th for data collection to give the team enough time to 

prepare yet ensure that the week was as close to a typical work-week as possible. To help prevent 

bias, the project team planned to survey every weekday trip on all routes from 6:00 AM to 6:00 

PM where bus and surveyor schedules allowed. Surveyors did not repeat a trip unless the number 

of collected surveys was falling far short of the target sample.  

To guarantee statistical significance, the project team calculated a minimum target sample or 

sample size for each route. These sample sizes, based on ridership and an acceptable level of 

statistical confidence and margin of error, are shown in Appendix C. Various sources describe in 

detail the calculations used to determine sample size.1 Most METRO routes were sampled to 

reach a 90 percent confidence level with a +/- 5 percent margin of error; only routes with the 

highest ridership could reach a higher confidence level and/or margin of error. Our goal was to 

collect a little over 2,200 surveys over the five days of surveying.  

Response rates between 20 and 40 percent are typical of on-board surveys. The project team used 

an initial response rate (the ratio of returned surveys to distributed surveys) of 30 percent to help 

determine printing needs and costs. Since surveyors were instructed to approach every boarding 

passenger about taking the survey, the actual response rate is the ratio of returned surveys to 

boarding passengers, though this can often only be estimated. The surveyors did not discard the 

paper survey if the passenger refused to participate.  

Sample bias, where some members of a population are more or less likely to participate than 

others, occurs in at least small amounts in nearly every survey. By sampling every trip and 

approaching all boarding passengers, sample bias was significantly reduced for this survey. 

Common types and sources of bias are discussed in more detail in Appendix D.   

A respondent could fill out more than one survey, but only if he or she was making a different or 

unique trip (e.g. answering about the same trip on different days was not allowed). In reality, 

riders often do not care to take the same survey twice, as it can seem repetitive and disrupt their 

ride. Many transit agencies will weigh the responses by route, direction, and/or time of day to 

                                                             

1 e.g. Page 6-7 of the University of Wisconsin-Madison 2012 On-board Campus Bus Survey, 
http://transportation.wisc.edu/files/2012_BusSurveyResults.pdf 

154



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 5 

account for this self-selection bias, especially with origin and destination data. We discuss 

weighting in further detail later in this section.   

Implementation 

Prior to the survey week, METRO alerted operators to the survey and hired former employees or 

METRO affiliates to act as the surveyors during the week. In addition, one former METRO 

employee helped the project team manage the fieldwork and surveyors. All of the temporary staff 

hired for the survey contributed significantly to the success of the week-long effort. On Monday of 

the survey week, the project team led a half-day training session, and surveying commenced that 

afternoon. The team provided surveyors with a METRO pass, apron, pencils, a shift assignment, 

and survey forms. Many also brought additional bags to carry the completed forms.  

The Robert K. Pfaff Transit Center, METRO's downtown hub, served as the survey administration 

headquarters. Surveyors had to arrive at the transit center 15-30 minutes before their shift 

started. They dropped off collected surveys during any lengthy breaks and at the end of their shift, 

and provided valuable verbal feedback to the team throughout the process. Surveyors collected all 

surveys on-board the buses or instructed the passenger to return it to the transit center where the 

team had set up a return box. A mailing address was also provided, but respondents had to 

provide their own postage. Only one surveyor was on-board for most trips; a few trips on the 

articulated buses required two surveyors.  

Pre-determined shifts for the first day and a half of surveying allowed for the project team to set 

up and acquaint themselves with METRO facilities and survey staff. As survey responses came in, 

the team sorted and counted the responses by route and day and checked for completion or 

abnormalities. The team also created shifts for the following day based on the number of collected 

surveys and the trips not yet surveyed.  

Survey staff passed out small business cards (Appendix E) with the online survey information at 

the transit center and to people who took the on-board survey. In order to reach riders who do not 

have access to a computer, METRO conducted a telephone survey in December and January using 

the contact information collected on the paper forms and had operators fill out the online tool.  

Data Entry and Cleaning 

The raw data was transcribed into an MS Access form created specifically for the METRO survey. 

Once complete, the database was converted into Excel for cleaning and analysis. Though the 

Access form reduced data entry errors, the data still had to be cleaned for responses that were 

impossible, clearly incorrect, or otherwise erroneous.    

Data Weighting 

The client and project team decided that the best course of action for the METRO survey was to 

weight the data by route to help correct for over- or under-representation of some routes. Weights 

are typically applied to segmented data to give a more accurate representation of responses as a 

proportion of the total. Weights are determined by comparing the percentage of total system 

ridership on each route to the percentage of responses on that same route. A weight equal to one 

represents a route that had a proportionate number of responses to ridership, a weight above one 

indicates a route that was under-represented, and a weight below one indicates a route that was 

over-represented. The distance from one is the amount of over- or under-representation.  

155



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 6 

ON-BOARD SURVEY RESULTS 

During the survey week, surveyors collected 3,397 responses, and all but 10 surveys indicated a 

route number. All routes reached the targeted statistical significance, and Route 31 reached a 95 

percent confidence level despite a target of 90 percent. See Figure 1 and Figure 2 for the number 

of responses by question and by route. The weights and adjusted number of responses by route 

are also included in Figure 2.  

The number of responses to each individual question was over 94 percent for most questions, 

which is very high. The passenger boarding time received fewer responses, and the sub-questions 

for Questions 3, 4, 5, and 6 received the least amount of responses. Surprisingly few respondents 

indicated a transfer route, though the survey team believes this can most likely be attributed to 

how the question was worded. METRO has been heavily marketing the Day, 7-day, or 31-day 

passes, which has greatly reduced the number of "transfer" passes used by riders. Respondents 

may have taken the question too literally as a result.  

Figure 1 Number of responses by question 

Question Count % of Total 

1 Route 3,387 99.7% 

2 Board time 2,868 84.4% 

3a Transfer from (yes or no) 3,392 99.9% 

3b Route transferred from2 196 16.0% 

3c Minutes waited2 1,088 78.3% 

4a Transfer to (yes or no) 3,392 99.9% 

4b Route transfer to2 40 2.7% 

5a Origin mode 3,348 98.6% 

5b Blocks walked2 2,201 74.4% 

5c Auto mode2 202 95.5% 

6a Destination mode 3,325 97.9% 

6b Blocks walk2 2,068 69.2% 

6c Auto mode2 136 86.8% 

7 Trip purpose 3,367 99.1% 

8 Weekly frequency 3,332 98.1% 

9 Years riding 3,351 98.6% 

10 Vehicles available 3,348 98.6% 

11 Sex 3,339 98.3% 

12 Age 3,343 98.4% 

13 Employment status 3,342 98.4% 

14 Race/Ethnicity 3,321 97.8% 

15 Income 3,205 94.3% 

                                                             

2 The percentages reported for these sub-questions are out of the total who indicated they transferred, walked, etc. For 
example, the percentage for “Blocks walked” is the number of people who entered a number of blocks out of the 
number of people who walked, not out of the total number of responses to the question. 

156



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 7 

Figure 2 Number of responses by route, including weight and adjusted number of responses 

Route  Count % of Total Weight Adj. Count 

1 West Market 322 9.5% 1.15 369 

2 Arlington 282 8.3% 1.17 331 

3 Copley Road/Hawkins 240 7.1% 0.99 237 

4 Delia/North Hawkins 94 2.8% 0.93 88 

5 Joy Park/Gilchrist 47 1.4% 1.19 56 

6 East Market/Lakemore 181 5.3% 1.01 183 

7 Cuyahoga Falls Avenue 95 2.8% 1.25 118 

8 Kenmore/Barberton 153 4.5% 1.02 155 

9 Vern Odom Blvd/East Avenue 124 3.7% 0.89 111 

10 Howard/Portage Trail 155 4.6% 1.00 155 

12 Tallmadge Hill 136 4.0% 0.94 128 

13 Grant/Firestone Park 112 3.3% 1.28 143 

14 Euclid/Barberton Express 142 4.2% 1.47 208 

17 Brown/Inman 116 3.4% 1.31 151 

18 Thornton/Manchester 141 4.2% 0.99 139 

19 Eastland 155 4.6% 0.89 138 

23 Portage/Graham 25 0.7% 0.80 20 

24 Lakeshore 39 1.2% 1.04 41 

26 West Exchange/White Pond 66 1.9% 0.92 61 

28 Merriman Valley 37 1.1% 1.06 39 

30 Goodyear/Darrow 112 3.3% 0.73 82 

31 Stow Express 45 1.3% 0.28 13 

33 State/Wyoga Lake 55 1.6% 0.72 39 

34 Cascade Valley/Uhler 131 3.9% 0.97 127 

50 Montrose Circulator 20 0.6% 0.71 14 

59 Chapel Hill Circulator 14 0.4% 0.92 13 

X60 North Coast Express 48 1.4% 0.47 23 

X61 North Coast Express 42 1.2% 0.99 42 

101 Richfield/Bath 31 0.9% 0.45 14 

102 Northfield/Twinsburg 45 1.3% 0.73 33 

103 Stow/Hudson 43 1.3% 0.50 22 

110 Green/Springfield 29 0.9% 0.56 16 

111 South Main/Waterloo 32 0.9% 0.65 21 

90s Grocery Routes 78 2.3% 0.76 59 

 TOTAL 3,387   3,387 

157



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 8 

System-wide, an estimated response rate of around 31 percent was achieved, though this varied 

widely by route. Excluding Route 31 as an outlier, the estimated response rates ranged from 21 

percent to 70 percent across all routes. 

It should be noted that Routes X60 and X61, as express/commuter routes to Cleveland, provide a 

very different service than all other METRO routes. Thus, these two routes are often exceptions, 

and riders do not show the same characteristics as the “average” or typical METRO rider. A 

breakdown of each question for both of these routes is included in the route-by-route analysis 

spreadsheet provided to METRO. X60 and X61 are still included in the system-wide results 

reported in the following sections. 

Trip Characteristics 

The typical trip of a METRO rider requires walking fewer than three blocks to the bus stop and 

making at least one transfer. The rider can expect to wait around ten minutes to make the 

transfer, but twenty minutes or more is not uncommon. Once the rider reaches his or her stop, he 

or she typically walks three blocks or fewer to reach the final destination.  

Time of Day 

When charted for all routes, travel on METRO is strongest during the lunch hour and afternoon 

until about 2:30 PM. During the standard commuting times, only the morning shows a peak. 

However, these results are likely biased towards the morning and afternoon. Though surveying 

occurred until 6:00 PM every day, many respondents likely took the survey earlier in the day and 

were unwilling to take it again or unsure if they could. It is common for surveys to show this bias.  

 

Figure 3 What approximate time did you get on this bus? 

 

Transfers 

Thirty-six percent of respondents report that they need to transfer from another bus to reach the 

one they are on (Figure 4). Of these respondents, 23 percent had to wait 20 minutes or more. 

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5
:0

0
 A

M

5
:4

5
 A

M

6
:3

0
 A

M

7
:1

5
 A

M

8
:0

0
 A

M

8
:4

5
 A

M

9
:3

0
 A

M

1
0

:1
5
 A

M

1
1

:0
0
 A

M

1
1

:4
5
 A

M

1
2

:3
0
 P

M

1
:1

5
 P

M

2
:0

0
 P

M

2
:4

5
 P

M

3
:3

0
 P

M

4
:1

5
 P

M

5
:0

0
 P

M

5
:4

5
 P

M

6
:3

0
 P

M

7
:1

5
 P

M

8
:0

0
 P

M

8
:4

5
 P

M

9
:3

0
 P

M

1
0

:1
5
 P

M

1
1

:0
0
 P

M

n = 2,868 

158



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 9 

However, more than 60 percent of respondents who transfer wait less than 15 minutes (Figure 5). 

Respondents on Routes 23 and 102 reported the longest wait times. Forty-one percent of 

respondents state that they had to transfer to reach their destination (Figure 6). Overall, 64 

percent of respondents indicated that they either made or will make (or both) a transfer to 

complete their trip. Again, the number of transfers is likely an undercount due to respondents' 

misinterpretation of the question.  

 

Figure 4 Did you transfer to this bus from another bus? 

 

 

Figure 5 If you made a transfer, how long did you wait for the bus you are on?  

 

No 
64% 

Yes 
36% 

n = 3,392 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Fewer than 5
minutes

5-9 minutes 10-14 minutes 15-19 minutes 20 minutes or
more

n = 1,088 

159



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 10 

Figure 6 Will you transfer to another bus to get to your final destination? 

 

Origin Mode 

Close to 90 percent of respondents reach the bus stop on foot (Figure 7). Of these respondents, 

nearly half walk one block or less to the stop. Only about four percent of respondents walk more 

than six blocks to a stop (Figure 8). Of the respondents who arrive to the stop by auto, 71 percent 

are dropped off and the remainder drive themselves (Figure 9). Bicycling to or from a METRO 

bus stop is not common, but Routes 102 and 103 show a higher percentage than other routes, 

with nine percent and five percent of respondents arriving by bicycle, respectively. 

 

Figure 7 How did you get to the bus stop where you started your trip? 

 

No 
59% 

Yes 
41% 

n = 3,392 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Walked Bicycle By auto Multiple Other n = 3,348 

160



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 11 

Figure 8 Number of blocks from origin to bus stop 

 

 

Figure 9 Arrival mode by respondents arriving by auto 

 

Destination Mode 

Similar to the origin mode, 90 percent of respondents state that they walk to reach their final 

destination (Figure 10). Of the respondents who walk, half walk a block or less to reach the 

destination. Less than four percent of these respondents walk more than six blocks (Figure 11). 

Sixty-four percent of the respondents who take an auto to their destination are picked up, and the 

remaining 36 percent drive themselves (Figure 12). 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

0-1 Blocks 2-3 blocks 4-6 blocks 7-9 blocks 10-14 blocks 15 or more
blocks

n = 2,201 

Drove 
29% 

Got dropped 
off 

71% 

n = 208 

161



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 12 

Figure 10 How will you get to your final destination from the bus stop? 

 

 

Figure 11 Number of blocks to destination from bus stop 

  

Trip Purpose 

Although work is the most common purpose of METRO trips, commutes only account for 39 

percent of trips overall (Figure 13). Transit experts typically estimate that around 50 to 60 percent 

of transit trips are for work commuting, indicating that METRO has a low percentage of work 

commutes out of the total trips. Whether this indicates that riders find it difficult to use METRO 

for their commute or especially useful for other trip purposes is hard to say with certainty from 

this survey, but further analysis on this question is included in the “Cross Tabulations” section. 

Trip purposes have a considerable amount of variation by route, with Routes 33, 59, 101, 103, and 

110 showing a high proportion of work commuters. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Walk Bicycle By auto Multiple Other n = 3,325 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

0-1 Blocks 2-3 blocks 4-6 blocks 7-9 blocks 10-14 blocks 15 or more
blocks

n = 2,073 

162



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 13 

Figure 12 Destination mode for respondents arriving by auto 

 

  

Figure 13 What is the purpose of your trip? 

 

  

Drive 
36% 

Get picked up 
64% 

n = 160 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

n = 3,367 

163



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 14 

Rider Characteristics 

The riders of METRO are racially and economically diverse, but the majority comes from low-

income households, communities of color, and English speakers. Despite the fact that 48 percent 

are employed at least part-time, more than half of respondents live on less than $10,000 per year. 

Considering 59 percent of respondents do not have access to a private vehicle, METRO service is 

critical to access jobs, shopping, healthcare, and other destinations. The “typical rider” varies by 

route, but most respondents are frequent users of METRO, riding five or more days per week. 

Moreover, more than 50 percent of respondents report riding METRO for more than four years. 

Ridership rates are particularly high among younger adults, with more than half of respondents 

under the age of 45. 

Sex 

About fifty-six percent of respondents on local bus routes were female (Figure 14), though many 

routes reflect a nearly 50-50 split among genders. The commuter express routes, X60 and X61, 

have more of an imbalance, with about two-thirds male respondents and one-third female. Route 

102 is the only route with more than 70 percent of respondents answering male. The grocery 

routes (90s) and Route 50 show the most unbalanced results, with at least a 3:1 ratio of females to 

males.  

 

Figure 14 Sex of respondents 

 

Age 

More than a third of METRO riders are between the ages of 19 and 34, indicating a relatively 

young ridership base. About half of respondents are between the ages of 35 and 64 (Figure 15). 

Young people between 18 and 34 account for just over 22 percent of the Akron metropolitan area 

population, while those aged 35 to 64 account for 41 percent, one indication that young people are 

disproportionately more likely to take transit than those aged 35 or over. Those under 19 and 65 

or over are not well represented in this survey for various reasons. These reasons include a 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Female Male

Local

Express

n = 3,339 

164



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 15 

general unwillingness to take the survey or distrust of the surveyor by those under 19 (based on 

surveyor feedback and previous experience), some children are too young to understand the 

survey, and those 65 and over often have a hard time using regular fixed-route service.  

 

Figure 15 Age of respondents 

 

On express routes, the age distribution among respondents is much different compared to the 

local bus routes. Over 75 percent of express route respondents are between the ages of 35 and 64, 

indicative of a ridership base commuting to work.  

Employment Status 

Twenty-eight percent of respondents on local bus routes are employed full time, and another 24 

percent of respondents are employed part-time (Figure 16). More than a fifth are unemployed. Of 

the remaining 32 percent, most either are a student (16 percent) or retired (10 percent). Over 92 

percent of respondents on express routes are employed full-time or part-time. On Routes 12, 13, 

and 30, more than thirty percent of respondents were unemployed. The most popular routes for 

students are Routes, 3, 4, 24, and 31. Retirees account for 60 percent of riders on the 90s, and 

make up close to a fifth of riders on Routes 18, 23, and 26. 

Race/Ethnicity 

Over 90 percent of respondents indicated that they are African American or white, though African 

Americans make up over 50 percent. Hispanics and Asians/Pacific Islanders each make up about 

one percent of respondents (Figure 17). Routes have substantial variation, however. As shown in 

the figure, more than two-thirds of respondents on X60 and X61 indicated that they are white, 

while about 27 percent indicated African American. More than 60 percent of respondents on 

Routes 2, 3, 4, 9, 12, 22, 34, and 50 state they are African American. White respondents make up 

more than half of the respondents on Routes 6, 8, 10, 23, 59, and 110, as well as the 90s routes. 

Hispanic riders have the greatest share of responses on Routes 31 and 33 with 5 percent and 4 

percent, respectively. Asian/Pacific Islander respondents have the highest rate on Route 50 with 6 

percent. 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Under
16

16 - 18 19 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 65 or
over

Local

Express

n=3,343 

165



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 16 

Figure 16 Employment status of respondents 

 

 

Figure 17 Which of the following best describes your ethnic or racial origin? 

 

Household Income 

Though over half of respondents are employed full- or part-time, 55 percent report a household 

income lower than $10,000 per year (Figure 18). Another 25 percent state a household income 

between $10,000 and $19,999 per year. Only 5 percent of respondents make more than $40,000 

per year. On the commuter express routes to Cleveland, more than 70 percent of respondents 

make over $50,000 per year, again indicating the very different ridership bases of the local and 

express routes. As shown in Figure 19, 11 routes have more than 60 percent of respondents 

reporting a household income of less than $10,000 a year. 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Employed
full-time

Employed
part-time

Unemployed Student Retired Other

Local

Express

n = 3,342 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

African
American

White Asian/Pacific
Islander

Hispanic Other

Local

Express

n = 3,321 

88% 

166



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 17 

Figure 18 What is the annual income of your household? 

 

 

Figure 19 Routes with highest rate of low-income respondents 

Route 

% of respondents 

with household 

income <$10,000 

Total Responses 

(weighted) 

2 61.9% 320 

3 60.5% 225 

4 61.6% 80 

5 65.2% 55 

9 63.9% 106 

13 67.9% 139 

14 60.8% 191 

19 68.9% 131 

24 65.7% 36 

30 62.4% 80 

59 61.5% 12 

 

Weekly Frequency 

Around 60 percent of respondents use transit services five or more days per week (Figure 20). 

Respondents on express routes indicate a higher use of METRO between three and four days per 

week compared to respondents on local routes, though approximately a fifth of local respondents 

still indicate the same weekly frequency. Only about six to ten percent of respondents are casual 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Under
$10,000

$10,000 to
$19,999

$20,000 to
$29,999

$30,000 to
$39,999

$40,000 to
$49,999

$50,000 or
over

Local

Express

n=3,205 

167



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 18 

riders, using transit services two or fewer days per week. Few METRO riders use the system less 

than one day per week. Online results for this question show nearly the exact same pattern.  

 

Figure 20 How many days per week do you usually ride the bus? 

 

Years Riding 

A majority of METRO customers are long-time users of the bus system, but 18 percent of local bus 

route respondents and 34 percent of express route respondents have started riding METRO in the 

12 months prior to the survey. Fifty-three percent of respondents have been a METRO customer 

for more than four years (Figure 21). Online results suggest a similar pattern with most customers 

riding METRO for more than four years, followed by 1-2 years, 3-4 years, and 1-6 months. A 

turnover rate of 20 percent of riders per year is typical for transit systems across the country. 

Understanding customer needs and responding to them quickly and effectively builds a loyal 

ridership base that can provide long-term benefits for the system.  

Vehicles Available and Valid Driver’s Licenses 

Most respondents on local bus routes would not have had a vehicle available to make their trips 

without METRO. Only nine percent report that they would definitely have a vehicle available, and 

31 percent stated that a private vehicle might have been available (Figure 22). The responses by 

route are similar to the overall responses except for routes X60 and X61, also shown in Figure 22. 

For the express routes, 83 percent of respondents have a vehicle available all of the time or some 

of the time to make their trip. Online results show a slightly different breakdown, yet over 87 

percent of respondents still indicated that they would never or only sometimes have access to a 

vehicle. When asked if they have a valid driver’s license, 58.5 percent of online respondents said 

that they do not. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Less than 1 day
per week

1-2 days 3-4 days 5-7 days

Local

Express

n = 3,332 

168



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 19 

Figure 21 How long have you been a METRO rider? 

 

 

Figure 22 If METRO were not available, would you have a vehicle available? 

 

 

 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Less than a
month

1-6 months 7-12 months 1-2 years 3-4 years More than 4
years

Local

Express

n = 3,351 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Local Express

No

Sometimes

Yes

n = 3,348 

169



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 20 

Origins and Destinations 

Over 1,200 responses had an origin and destination that were different from one another, and 

could be geocoded and mapped. Since there were fewer records for the origins and destinations, 

the data had to be reweighted based on the responses by route for the roughly 1,200 records. To 

map the most common connections, origins and destinations were grouped together based on 

Census block group, and the weight of each repeating pair was added together. Two connections 

in the opposite directions (A to B and B to A) were added together; direction did not matter for 

this analysis. To estimate the number of daily connections between block groups, the total weight 

of each line was scaled upwards to be in proportion with daily ridership (~20,000 riders/day).  

The origins and destinations of trips stretch from Cleveland to Canton, with the vast majority 

clustered in Akron (Figure 23). As is often the case, trips radiate from downtown with a high 

number of trips beginning or ending to the west, northwest (Fairlawn), northeast (Tallmadge and 

Cuyahoga Falls), and south of downtown. The University of Akron is a popular destination and 

origin, as is Cleveland for those in Fairlawn.  

The strongest connections shown on Figure 24 are often connecting residential areas to 

employment or retail, with many industrial areas and shopping centers showing up as origins and 

destinations. Trips to Rolling Acres, a shopping district located southwest of the city, generates its 

highest activity from Barberton and the residential area around Summit Lake. To the south of 

Akron, Arlington Plaza Shopping Center, Lockheed Martin, and surrounding industrial land uses 

show significant connections to downtown and near-by residential areas. Residential areas near 

Tallmadge and Cuyahoga Falls show high activity into the downtowns Akron and Tallmadge. 

The University of Akron generates or attracts just over 600 estimated trips per day based on 

origin and destination data obtained from the survey. Six areas account for 25 percent (~150) of 

those trips:  Fairlawn, a residential area northwest of downtown (bounded by Edgerton Road, 

Merriman Road, and W Market Street), the Chapel Hills area, the Arlington Plaza area, tje 

Firestone Golf Course area southwest of I-77 and I-76; and a residential area immediately 

southwest of campus (bounded by Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard, W Bartges Street, E 

Thornton Street, and S Main Street). It is likely that students account for a majority of the 

ridership as they travel to reach jobs and off-campus housing, but the top origins and destinations 

suggest that faculty and staff also play a part. Figure 26 and Figure 27 show where University of 

Akron students, faculty, and staff travel from campus. Routes 1, 6, and 17 appear to be the top 

routes for the university. 

The radial nature and coverage of the METRO bus network means that many of the most common 

connections within Akron are a single seat ride, though the ride may be lengthy. As Figure 23 and 

Figure 24 show, there are numerous popular crosstown connections not served well by the radial 

network, such as those to or from Rolling Acres, and the areas north and south of Akron that do 

not need to connect to downtown. The average trip length, excluding commuter trips to 

Cleveland, was 4.0 miles as the crow flies, which is a long trip when considering that few transit 

trips are direct between the origin and destination. When considering all trips, including those to 

Cleveland, the average trip length increases to 4.8 miles as the crow flies. 

Total activity (origins + destinations for all block groups) as displayed in Figure 25 shows similar 

results to the previous two figures, with most activity in downtown but significant activity in the 

surrounding communities. Transit demand remains centrally located in Akron, at least on one 

end, but now reaches a minimum of 10 miles (as the crow flies) from the core, and much farther 

in some cases. The challenge remains to serve these areas cost-effectively.    

170



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 21 

Figure 23 Metro Akron top origin-destination pairs (trips) by Census block group 

 

 

 

171



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 22 

Figure 24 Downtown Akron top origin-destination pairs (trips) by Census block group 

 

172



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 23 

Figure 25 Daily activity (origins + destinations) by Census block group 

 

  

173



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 24 

Figure 26 Origins and Destinations based at the University of Akron (metro area) 

 
  

174



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 25 

Figure 27 Origins and Destination based at the University of Akron (downtown area) 

 

  

175



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 26 

ONLINE SURVEY RESULTS 

Responses collected online totaled 730. METRO collected 458 out of the 730 responses utilizing 

temporary staff to make over 1,900 telephone calls. METRO also sent separate email notifications 

and other reminders to surveyed riders, which increased the number of online survey responses 

during the same period. This likely accounts for the remaining 272 online surveys collected. A 

majority of this sample population is the same as the sample population from the on-board 

survey. Some online questions were also very similar to the paper survey, and so the results 

provided a good crosscheck.  

Customer Satisfaction 

METRO’s regular bus service received an overall rating of either excellent or good by almost 87 

percent of online respondents. Nearly all of the remaining responses indicated that the bus 

service was fair. Most customers of METRO are also satisfied with the system’s coverage, with 

nearly 72 percent of online respondents stating that there are no destinations particularly difficult 

to reach by bus. Green, Stow, Copley, Cleveland, Tallmadge, and Cuyahoga Falls had the highest 

number of comments (five or more) of all destinations mentioned. Similarly, nearly 91 percent of 

respondents said that METRO serves the right areas. Those who said that METRO does not serve 

the right areas mentioned Copley most frequently, though only five did so.  

Important service improvements for METRO include more frequent service, later evening service, 

and more weekend service. Nearly three-quarters of respondents ranked some combination of 

these three improvements as most or second most important to them (see Figure 28). Nearly a 

quarter of those who marked “Other” indicate that longer hours and weekend and holiday service 

are important, aligning with the most important improvements marked on the choices provided. 

 

Figure 28 Relative importance of potential service improvements 

 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

More frequent service

More weekend service

Later evening service

More direct service

Better service information

Reduced travel times

Route closer to my home

Improved transfer connections

Route closer to my job

Other

1 Most Important 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Least Important

176



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 27 

The amenities available and cleanliness of the bus shelters or stops, and the behavior of other 

passengers on the bus, caused the most dissatisfaction among online respondents. Over 60 

percent of respondents were at least somewhat dissatisfied with both the lack of a shelter at their 

stop and the lack of an available bench at their stop. Respondents were most satisfied with the 

distance between their home and the nearest stop and the courteousness of the drivers (Figure 

29). Respondents seem happy in general with the service itself but would like METRO to improve 

the conditions of their infrastructure (not including the downtown transit center).  

 

Figure 29 Satisfaction with METRO 

 

 

Overall, respondents indicate that METRO should focus on increasing frequency, adding more 

weekend service, running later into the evening, and improving the bus stop conditions to 

encourage more frequent use of the system. Passenger behavior, especially of youths and high 

school kids, was also pointed out in question responses and numerous fill-in comments. Though 

real-time information has not shown up in the top results for concerns or major improvements 

needed, recent research suggests that investing in top tier real-time information systems can be a 

powerful, and often much less expensive, substitute for increasing frequency. METRO does not 

currently offer real-time information, but is in the process of implementing such a system. The 

agency has contracted with Avail Technologies to implement an automatic vehicle location (AVL) 

system with automatic passenger counters (APCs) and real-time schedule information over the 

next year. This is important since METRO has a relatively young customer base.  

When asked why they ride METRO (multiple answers allowed), over three-quarters of 

respondents indicated that they simply have no other way to travel. Nearly 60 percent also said 

that the bus system is convenient, while around 40 percent said that it is less expensive than 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Availability of benches at the bus stop

The availability of bus shelter at your stop

Behavior of other passengers on the bus

The cleanliness of bus shelters

The time you have to wait for the next bus

Getting a seat on the bus

Cleanliness of the bus interior

The time it takes to make a trip by bus

Buses arriving at your stop on time

Safety and security while waiting at bus stops

Congestion and crowding at bus stops

Getting information on Metro services

The number of transfers you have to make

The convenience of making a transfer

Safety and security while on the bus

Bus routes that take you where you want to go

The courtesy of bus drivers

The distance between home and closest stop

Very satisfied Somewhat satisfied Somewhat dissatisfied Very dissatisfied

177



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 28 

owning a personal vehicle, and it is high quality service. For the few people who answered the 

online survey and who are not METRO customers, most prefer to use their own vehicle for their 

transportation needs. Around 38 percent (three responses) said that METRO does not go where 

they need to go. 

Website and Schedule Information 

About two thirds of respondents had used METRO’s website for route and schedule information, 

and nearly all of them obtained the information they needed. Less than five percent indicated that 

they had not. Of the comments received on how to improve the website experience, most said that 

no improvement is needed. Ten percent would find an app or better mobile site beneficial, and 11 

percent would like METRO to improve their route and stop maps.  

 

CROSS TABULATIONS 

Cross-tabulations can help METRO gain a much deeper understanding of their riders than 

looking at each question individually. While one must be careful not to assume causation, 

correlations between many factors exist that can give METRO an indication of worthwhile service 

improvements or changes to try. We present four of the more interesting ones below, but with so 

much data, a great number of cross-tabulations are possible that may provide valuable insights. 

Sex by Age 

On most transit systems in the U.S., females make up a larger number of riders than males, and 

METRO is no different. This is often due to the traditional roles of females as caregivers and 

homemakers necessitating a greater number of trips throughout the day compared to two daily 

trips to and from work. In Figure 30, one can see these patterns occur at METRO. Females are a 

greater percentage of ridership starting at age 16 until around age 45, when more females may be 

returning to work or taking fewer trips as caregivers and homemakers. At age 45, females and 

males equalize and remain so even after reaching age 65. 

Length of Time Riding METRO by Age 

Figure 31 demonstrates that capturing users when they first start riding METRO can provide a 

long-term ridership base and create growth. Of those METRO riders aged 16-18, nearly 35 percent 

have been riding for more than four years. This figure grows with every age group, peaking at 

nearly 75 percent of those aged 65 or over. However, in nearly every age group, approximately ten 

percent have been riding for six months or less. In those aged under 16, over 30 percent have 

been riding for six months or less. Retaining these riders can be a cost-effective strategy for future 

development.  

Trip Purpose by Employment Status 

METRO has a lower number of work trips as a percentage of all trips than a similarly positioned 

transit system. Given this, one may question whether people who are employed are actually taking 

the bus for work purposes or for other reasons. As shown in Figure 32, about 77 percent of full-

time employees said that the purpose of their trip was to go to or from work. Predictably, a lower 

amount (only about 56 percent) of those who are employed part-time indicated “to/from work” as 

178



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 29 

their trip purpose. Since the on-board survey occurred during the traditional weekday working 

hours but not all work days or shifts occur during these hours, these results seem reasonable. 

Therefore, though Figure 32 does not help answer why work trips make up a lower percentage of 

METRO trips overall, it indicates that employees find the system useful for reaching work.   

 

Figure 30 Sex by Age 

 

 

 

Figure 31 Length of Time Riding METRO by Age 

 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Under
16

16 - 18 19 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 65 or
over

Female

Male

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Under
16

16 - 18 19 - 24 25 - 34 35 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 65 or
over

More than 4 years

3-4 years

1-2 years

7-12 months

1-6 months

Less than a month

179



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 30 

Figure 32 Trip Purpose (work or non-work trip) by Employment status (full-time or part-time) 

 

 

Trip Purpose by Wait Time for Transfers 

With many respondents waiting more than 10 or 15 minutes to transfer, investigating whether 

wait times are longer or shorter for certain trip purposes may be an indicator of how difficult it is 

to make those trips. Figure 33 below shows that respondents waited approximately the same 

amount of time, 12.4 - 12.8 minutes, for all trip types except medical and college trips. College 

trips required a wait about one minute shorter, possibly because the University of Akron is 

located in downtown, while medical trips required a wait of about one minute longer. Though this 

is not much, medical trips may be more difficult to take on METRO than other types of trips, 

likely due to the wide geographic dispersal of medical facilities around the region. 

 

Figure 33 Trip Purpose by Average Wait Time to Transfer 

Trip Purpose 
Avg. Transfer 

Wait Time (min) 

Work 12.8 

School 12.8 

College 11.8 

Shopping 12.4 

Medical 14.0 

Recreation 12.6 

Other 12.8 

  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Employed full-time Employed part-time

Non-work

Work

180



METRO RTA Survey Results (Fall 2013) | DRAFT Summary Report 

 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 31 

SURVEY CONCLUSIONS 

Several conclusions from the survey data may guide future METRO service design: 

 More than 57 percent of METRO riders who transfer wait more than 10 minutes and 35 

percent wait more than 15 minutes for a transfer. Industry experience shows that longer 

transfer waits, even in a nicer facility, reduce ridership potential for service. METRO 

should examine opportunities to reduce transfer wait times. 

 The data suggests that at least 45 percent of respondents walk less than 0-1 blocks to or 

from their origin and destination. While this can be seen as providing a great service to 

existing customers, it also suggests stop spacing that is close. Close stop spacing improves 

some passengers convenience but it makes all passengers bus rides longer. METRO 

should consider whether consolidating bus stops in select corridors is warranted.  

 A 20 percent annual turnover rate of passengers is typical for transit systems the size of 

METRO’s. Retaining existing riders longer is the most cost effective way for METRO to 

grow ridership. In addition, the turnover rate suggests that on-going marketing to ensure 

a steady stream of new customers should continue.  

 Though work trips remain the most common type of trip, METRO riders tend to use the 

system for work less than similar systems. This suggests that the system should facilitate 

a broad range of trips types to the extent that effectiveness and efficiency allow. 

 METRO’s route structure allows for one-seat rides to many common connections. 

However, crosstown service gaps exist. Radial routes with broad coverage often mean that 

crosstown trips are extremely long and impractical. METRO should consider whether 

shifting some of its routes to connect non-downtown origins and destinations might 

better serve their users. 

 With the exception of the commuter routes to Cleveland, METRO has a strongly transit 

dependent population base. The survey also suggests that about 16 percent of riders are 

students, which, given the fact that this includes both college and secondary school riders, 

appears low compared to similar systems. METRO should consider opportunities to reach 

out to educational institutions to begin attracting more of a student / choice population.  

 

181



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

182



 
 
 
 
 

Attachment P 
 

Service Provided by Census Block Group 
  

183



Tract Block
Percent of Minority 

Population
Serviced by Metro 

Line Service
Routes

501100 1 60.17% YES 7, 10, 12, 33, 34
501700 1 42.53% YES 17
501700 2 29.31% YES 13
501800 1 94.91% YES 9, 14, 18 
501900 2 69.54% YES 8, 11, 14 , 18, 21 , 24, 103, 104
501900 1 68.94% YES 8, 14, 18, 21, 24, 
502101 1 58.73% YES 7, 10, 33, 34
502101 2 43.83% YES 7, 12, 34, 53
502102 1 44.24% YES 7, 10, 12, 19, 34, 51, 53, 59 (ITA)
502102 2 39.02% YES 7, 10, 12, 19, 34, 51, 53, 59
502102 3 20.88% YES 12, 34
502200 1 46.76% YES 7, 10, 12, 33, 34
502200 3 45.00% YES 7, 12, 33, 34
502200 4 40.58% YES 12 , 34
502200 5 24.90% YES 7, 12, 19, 34, 59
502300 6 61.34% YES 19
502300 4 60.67% NO * #19 within 1/4 mile
502300 5 55.84% YES 19
502300 3 38.05% YES 19
502300 1 37.16% YES 19
502300 2 30.94% YES 19
502500 2 61.17% YES 6, 19, 30, 110
502500 1 35.49% YES 5, 6, 19, 30, 110
502600 1 40.78% YES 30
502600 3 30.97% YES 30
502700 4 39.91% YES 30
502700 1 33.77% YES 19
502700 3 23.68% YES 30
502800 3 41.28% YES 30
503100 1 60.94% YES 2, 5, 110
503100 2 40.14% YES 2, 5, 17, 110
503200 1 74.61% YES 2, 5, 17, 110
503200 3 73.71% YES 2, 5
503200 2 61.95% YES 17
503300 1 82.68% YES 2, 11
503300 6 57.27% YES 2, 17
503300 5 55.86% YES 2, 17
503300 2 47.45% YES 2, 11
503300 4 28.92% YES 2, 11
503300 7 19.54% YES 2, 17
503400 1 85.89% YES 2, 5, 6, 19, 110
503500 5 85.41% YES 2, 5
503500 4 72.49% YES 2
503500 1 66.07% YES 5, 110

184



Tract Block
Percent of Minority 

Population
Serviced by Metro 

Line Service
Routes

503500 3 31.90% YES 2
503500 2 31.36% YES 5, 110
503800 3 57.13% YES 2, 17, 110
503800 2 34.62% YES 2 ,17, 110
504100 1 22.32% YES 2, 11, 17
504200 3 51.11% YES 11, 13
504200 2 32.20% YES 11, 13
504200 1 24.16% YES 17
504400 1 48.53% YES 13
504400 2 45.86% YES 11, 13, 21
504500 2 56.28% YES 11, 17
504500 1 50.36% YES 11, 13, 17
504500 3 36.30% YES 13
504600 4 71.84% YES 11, 17
504600 1 57.49% YES 11, 17
504600 2 24.95% YES 11
504700 6 58.79% YES 11, 13, 21
504700 4 38.57% YES 11, 13, 17
504700 1 23.30% YES 11, 17
504700 2 19.49% YES 11, 13, 17
504800 3 39.83% YES 11, 13, 17
505200 1 68.24% YES 9, 14, 18
505300 3 75.99% YES 8, 24
505300 2 70.30% YES 8, 21
505300 1 60.33% YES 8, 21, 24
505400 2 36.09% YES 9, 14
505500 3 21.44% YES 9
505600 2 65.40% YES 8, 24
505600 1 43.77% YES 8, 18, 21, 24
505700 1 20.65% YES 8, 18
505800 2 46.38% YES 18
505800 3 29.31% YES 18
506100 6 67.97% YES 1, 4, 26, 61
506100 2 43.85% YES 1, 26
506100 1 37.29% YES 4, 26
506100 5 33.46% YES 4
506200 2 90.87% YES 3
506200 4 90.22% YES 3, 4
506200 5 89.41% YES 3, 4
506200 3 82.22% NO *#3 within 1/4 mile
506200 1 76.65% YES 3, 4
506400 5 67.06% YES 4, 26
506400 4 45.68% YES 4, 26
506400 1 28.76% YES 1, 26

185



Tract Block
Percent of Minority 

Population
Serviced by Metro 

Line Service
Routes

506500 2 97.74% YES 3, 4
506500 1 94.18% YES 3, 4, 26
506500 3 69.68% YES 3, 4
506600 2 57.87% YES 1, 28, 61
506600 3 38.75% YES 3, 4, 26
506600 1 32.53% YES 1, 28
506700 1 99.46% YES 9, 14
506700 2 96.23% YES 9, 14
506800 2 92.10% YES 3, 4, 9, 14, 26

506800 1 60.43% YES
(RKP) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 

14, 17, 18, 19, 21, 24, 26, 28, 30, 33, 34, 61, 
101, 102, 103, 104

507101 2 52.78% YES 1, 4, 26
507101 1 51.33% YES 4
507102 2 23.13% YES 1, 26
507201 1 32.58% YES 4, 28
507202 2 30.02% YES 1
507203 2 43.70% YES 28
507203 4 33.37% YES 28
507203 1 29.96% YES 28, 53
507400 1 51.94% YES 1, 10, 26, 28, 34
507500 4 85.87% YES 10, 34
507500 6 69.78% YES 34
507500 3 61.48% YES 10, 34
507500 5 48.71% YES 34
507500 1 41.99% YES 10, 33, 34, 53
507500 2 36.65% YES 7, 10, 33, 34
507600 3 47.26% YES 7, 33
507600 4 29.08% YES 33
508000 2 33.26% YES 53
508000 1 29.98% YES 53
508301 2 70.86% YES 1, 3, 4, 26, 28, 61

508301 1 41.90% YES
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 

26, 28, 30, 33, 34, 61, 102

508399 2 97.60% YES 9, 14
508399 1 91.56% YES 3, 9, 14
508399 4 64.54% YES (RATC) 3, 9 ,14
508600 1 97.27% YES 3
508600 3 95.93% YES 3, 14
508600 2 86.63% YES 3, 14
508800 3 100.00% YES 3, 14
508800 1 99.45% NO *#14 within 1/4 Mile
508800 2 98.72% YES 14

186



Tract Block
Percent of Minority 

Population
Serviced by Metro 

Line Service
Routes

508800 6 93.03% YES 3, 14
508800 5 87.42% YES 3, 14
508800 4 74.25% YES 3
508900 4 75.60% YES 5, 6, 19, 30
508900 1 41.42% YES 2, 5, 6, 19, 30, 110
508900 3 34.35% YES 2, 13, 17, 110
508900 2 21.01% YES 2, 5, 6, 13, 17, 19, 30, 110
509000 2 71.68% YES 19
509000 1 59.51% YES 5, 6, 19, 30
509000 3 56.50% YES 19
510301 3 56.90% YES 14
510301 2 43.93% YES 14
530101 1 32.90% NO None
530103 2 25.24% YES 60, 102, 104
530104 1 35.43% NO None
530105 2 84.58% YES 102, 104
530108 2 43.27% NO None
530108 1 21.61% NO None
530901 1 27.32% YES 7, 59
532202 1 34.20% YES 1
532202 3 25.17% YES *#1 within 1/4 Mile
532701 2 29.53% YES 102, 104
532702 1 25.04% YES 102
532702 2 22.37% YES 102
532703 1 29.87% NO None
532708 2 25.21% NO None
532902 3 40.53% YES 33
533400 4 41.99% YES 26
533400 1 25.72% NO None
533400 3 25.64% NO None
533501 3 36.09% YES 1, 50
533501 2 23.33% YES 50

187



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

188



 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Q 
 

Service Monitoring Summary 
 
 

189



Route
Minority 
Route?

Load Factor - 
Total Trips 
over 130% 
Seated 

On-Time 
Performance

Px per 
Revenue 
Mile

Px per 
Revenue 
Hour

Cost per 
Px

Average 
Bus Age

Meets 
Base 
Policy 
Headway?

1 Minority 1.00% 79.9% 2.41 25.7 $3.48 3.8 No
2 Minority 0.67% 83.0% 2.30 26.6 $3.56 3.7 No
3 Minority 0.60% 77.9% 2.08 20.1 $4.72 4.6 No
4 Minority 0.00% 82.5% 1.66 19.0 $6.29 7.2 No
5 Minority 0.00% 74.6% 0.79 11.0 $10.13 6.0 No
6 Minority 0.00% 78.2% 1.30 17.3 $6.50 4.5 No
7 Minority 0.24% 90.0% 1.73 18.1 $5.98 4.7 No
8 No 0.27% 86.2% 1.82 21.6 $4.45 4.6 No
9 Minority 0.00% 85.3% 1.62 17.9 $5.59 4.8 No

10 Minority 0.12% 78.3% 1.66 19.3 $4.90 5.2 No
11 Minority 0.00% 83.3% 0.79 24.1 $12.37 5.9 No
12 Minority 0.45% 92.1% 1.67 14.6 $7.00 4.8 No
13 Minority 0.52% 92.5% 2.01 18.9 $5.48 5.9 No
14 Minority 0.11% 82.6% 1.20 13.4 $7.09 5.0 Yes
17 Minority 0.24% 76.9% 1.90 19.5 $5.28 5.0 No
18 Minority 0.00% 82.7% 1.62 20.4 $4.77 5.1 No
19 Minority 0.00% 80.8% 2.02 19.2 $4.82 5.0 No
21 Minority 0.00% 97.9% 1.39 11.3 $8.43 3.7 No
24 Minority 0.00% 67.2% 1.89 13.5 $7.68 5.9 No
26 Minority 0.00% 86.5% 1.11 12.4 $8.38 5.4 Yes
28 Minority 0.00% 85.2% 0.83 8.8 $14.01 8.1 No
30 Minority 0.00% 85.5% 1.27 14.2 $6.99 4.7 No
33 No 0.00% 87.4% 0.96 13.0 $8.92 7.8 No
34 Minority 0.00% 75.3% 1.33 14.3 $7.02 5.1 No
50 No 0.00% 84.8% 0.34 3.7 $31.30 6.5 Exceeds
51 No 0.00% 83.9% 0.17 2.8 $43.40 5.2 Yes
53 No 0.00% 81.6% 0.34 5.0 $27.83 6.8 No
59 No 0.00% 60.6% 0.47 4.6 $26.11 4.0 No

101 No 0.00% 82.6% 0.23 5.3 $27.70 5.4 No
102 No 0.00% 79.2% 0.15 4.3 $31.10 4.5 No
103 No 0.00% 75.0% 0.25 6.6 $22.04 5.3 No
104 No 0.00% 72.3% 0.15 3.9 $39.09 5.7 No
110 No 0.00% 74.7% 0.38 6.5 $19.91 5.7 No

Commuter Service
60 No 0.00% N/A 0.41 11.4 $16.63 N/A Yes
61 No 0.00% N/A 0.39 9.4 $14.72 N/A Yes

190



 

 

 

 

Attachment R 

Disproportionate Burden Policy / Disparate Impact Policy 

  

191



Disparate Impact / Disproportionate Burden Policy 
Adopted May 2013, (Resolution 2013-17) 

 
METRO RTA is obligated to implement Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200d) 
which states that “No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color or national origin, 
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving Federal Financial assistance.” 
 
New guidance issued by the Federal Transit Administration, effective October 1, 2012 requires that 
transit agencies, including METRO RTA, conduct equity analyses of planned major service and fare 
changes, prior to implementation, to determine whether the planned changes will have a disparate 
impact on the basis of race, color or national origin, or will cause a disproportionate burden on low 
income populations. Disparate impacts are defined as unintentional discrimination against a protected 
class.  
 
A disparate impact and disproportionate burden policy is required as a basis for determining whether 
planned changes would adversely affect minority as compared to non-minority populations, and low 
income as compared to non-low income populations.  
 
METRO RTA’s policy will be to conduct equity analyses of major planned service and fare changes prior 
to implementation. The evaluation will include: a) a comparison of the minority population served 
before and after the planned change; b.) a comparison of the low income population served before and 
after the planned change; and c.) comparisons of transit service quality before and after the planned 
change, as measured by service headway, directness of service, span of service, and vehicle load factors. 
A major service change should not adversely affect (loss) or benefit (gain) a minority or low-income 
population twenty percent (20%) more or less than non-minority or non-low income populations as 
determined by demographic analysis of proposed changes and U.S. Census data and/or transit rider 
survey data. This level of impact will be considered a disparate impact on minority populations, or a 
disproportionate burden on low income populations.  

[Staff note: The determination of adverse impact is based on the federal standard 
described in Uniform Guidelines published by the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC) known as the “four-fifths rule.” This standard requires benefits to 
accrue to unprotected populations at a rate at least four fifths (or 80%) of the rate for 
protected populations. The maximum acceptable difference (positive or negative) in 
level of benefit between protected and unprotected populations is 20%.] 
 

If a major service change would result in a disparate impact or disproportionate burden, METRO 
RTA will: a.) Consider modifying the proposed service change; and b.) Analyze the modification 
to evaluate whether the potential disparate impact or disproportionate burden has been 
removed.  

192



 

 

 

 

Attachment S 

Service and Fare Equity Policy 

  

193



METRO RTA 
Service and Fare Equity Analysis 

Adopted May 2013 (Resolution 2013-18) 
 
 
Goals: 

• Assess the effects of proposed fare or service changes 
• Assess the alternatives available for people affected by the change 
• Determine if proposals would have a disproportionately high and adverse effect on 

minority and low-income riders 
• Describe the actions proposed to minimize, mitigate or offset any adverse effects 

(Adverse effects shall include both intentional – Disparate Treatment – and 
unintentional – Disparate Impact.) 

 
Purpose: 

• Determine benefits to and potential negative impacts on minority and low-income 
populations 

• Quantify expected effects 
• Determine appropriate course of action, whether avoidance, minimization or mitigation. 

 
A Service and Fare Equity Analysis should be performed for: 

• Any change effecting 25% or more of service hours or revenue miles; 
• The elimination of a route or portion of a route resulting in an area having no alternative 

service within one-quarter of a mile; 
• The creation of a new transit route;  
• Any increase or decrease of any amount to the fare. 

 
Equity Analysis shall consist of one of two (2) methodologies: 

• Prescriptive 
• Narrative/Other 

 
Prescriptive Methodology will: 

• Create maps 
• Measure service spans and modes 
• Assess alternatives, travel times, costs 
• Determine if disproportionate impact 
• Mitigate 

 
Narrative/Other Methodology will: 

• Evaluate changes during service or fare change planning 
• Explain the methodology 
• Determine if impacts are disproportionate  
• Identify alternatives and mitigate 

 
 
All Service and Fare Equity Analysis will measure 

• Headway 

194



• Span of Service 
• Route Impacts 
• Vehicle Types (eg. Bus Capacities) 
• Load Factors 
• Cost 
• Location changes 

 
METRO RTA shall attempt to identify and to mitigate all adverse effects of any and all major 
service and fare changes to line service bus routes.  Service and fare equity analysis shall be 
conducted by the Department of Planning and Development during the service planning stages. 
 
 
 
 

195



 

 

 

 

Attachment T 

Board Resolutions 

196



RESOLUTION 2016-19        COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT: 
    Marketing & Service Planning 

 
 
A resolution recognizing the METRO RTA has performed Service Monitoring based on 
its Transit System Evaluation Procedures and Service and Fare Equity Policy 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI Report is a triennial report to the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) of compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, dated September 28, 2016; 
 
WHEREAS, METRO RTA has a Service and Fare Equity Analysis Policy, a Disparate 
Impact Policy, and a Disproportionate Burden Policy 
 
WHEREAS, the Service and Fare Equity Analysis Policy is designed to assess the 
effects of proposed fare or service changes and assess the alternatives available for 
people affected by the changes; 
 
WHEREAS, the analysis must determine if the proposed changes would have a 
disproportionately high and adverse affect upon minority and low-income riders; 
 
WHEREAS, that policy is designed to minimize, mitigate or offset negative impacts 
upon minority and low-income riders; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI report requires a copy of Board meeting minutes or a resolution 
demonstrating the Board’s consideration, awareness, and approval of the Service 
Monitoring in relation to these policies. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of METRO 
Regional Transit Authority that, 
 

1. The Board has considered and recognizes the METRO RTA Service Monitoring 
and authorizes its submittal to FTA. 

 
 
DATE ADOPTED: September 28, 2016 
 
 
 
_________________________        _________________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER               RICHARD M. ENTY 
PRESIDENT                                   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/                                      

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
  

197



RESOLUTION 2016-20        COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT: 
    Marketing & Service Planning 

 
 
A resolution recognizing the results of METRO RTA’s Equity Analysis. 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI Report is a triennial report to the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) of compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, dated September 28, 2016; 
 
WHEREAS, METRO RTA has a public engagement policy; 
 
WHEREAS, that policy is designed to reach minority and low-income population; 
 
WHEREAS, METRO has a Service and Fare Equity Policy; 
 
WHEREAS, the Service and Fare Equity Analysis Policy is designed to assess the 
effects of proposed fare or service changes and assess the alternatives available for 
people affected by the changes; 
 
WHEREAS, service changes must consider impacts to minority and low-income 
populations; 
 
WHEREAS, METRO has a Disparate Impact Policy and a Disproportionate Burden 
Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, disparate impacts of service changes affecting minority and low-income 
riders must be mitigated;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of METRO 
Regional Transit Authority that, 
 

1. The Board has considered the METRO RTA Equity Analysis and authorizes its 
submittal to the FTA. 

 
 
DATE ADOPTED: September 28, 2016 
 
 
 
_________________________        _________________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER               RICHARD M. ENTY 
PRESIDENT                                   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/                                      

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 
 

198



RESOLUTION 2016-21        COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT: 
    Marketing & Service Planning 

 
 
A resolution adopting and authorizing submittal of the METRO RTA Title VI Report to 
the Federal Transit Administration for 2016.  
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI Report is a triennial report to the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) of compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, dated October 12, 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, METRO RTA is reporting its compliance as a public transit provider 
serving an urbanized area with a population exceeding 200,000 people; 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI Report presents various measures of service and fare impacts 
upon minority and low-income riders; 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI Report measures METRO’s compliance with Title VI 
requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Title VI report requires a copy of Board meeting minutes or a resolution 
demonstrating the Board’s awareness and approval of the Title VI Report. 
 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of METRO 
Regional Transit Authority that, 
 

1. The Board has considered the METRO RTA Title VI Report for 2016; is adopting 
it for the METRO RTA service area; and authorizes its submittal to FTA. 

 
DATE ADOPTED: September 28, 2016 
 
 
 
_________________________        _________________________________________ 
SAUNDRA M. FOSTER               RICHARD M. ENTY 
PRESIDENT                                   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/                                      

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 

199



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

200



Rail O
perations Com

m
ittee

201



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

202



Safety Com
m

ittee

203



204



205



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

206



H
um

an Resources 
Com

m
ittee

207



208



209



210



O
ther

211


	COVER page
	Executive Director's Report September 2016
	Executive Director Report September 2016
	METRO Maintenance September 2016
	September 2016 Board Report Customer Service

	MONTHLY BOARD COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDAS - September 2016
	September 2016 Board Agenda
	METRO RTA Board Minutes Aug 31 2016
	Board Minutes-August 31, 2016
	Becky Deger Handouts Aug 31 2016
	TWU Comments to METRO Board 8_31_16
	Tri-County Independent Living Letter to METRO  7_22_16
	Reply to Tami Gauger Tri-County Independent Living 7_28_16

	FINANCE cover
	FINANCE tables
	Resolution - Radio Console (09-28-2016)
	FINANCE
	RESOLUTION 2016-17
	PRESIDENT      EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/


	Resolution - Fare policy (09-28-2016)
	PRESIDENT      EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/

	MARKETING PLANNING cover
	PAGE LEFT BLANK
	August_2016_Performance
	Aug -MB
	Aug - DR
	Aug - All
	OPS.pdf
	Report_of_Ops
	Ridership_by_Route

	Category.pdf
	August


	PLANNING report letter
	TitleVI_092116_Revised_skk
	Appendix L Amenities.pdf
	Stops_On_Location_W_Shelters

	Attachment P - Service by Block.pdf
	Export

	Attachment Q - Level of Service.pdf
	Sheet1

	ServiceCoverage.pdf
	Sheet1

	Attachment T - Resolutions092016.pdf
	Marketing & Service Planning
	Marketing & Service Planning
	Marketing & Service Planning


	RAIL OPERATIONS cover
	PAGE LEFT BLANK
	SAFETY cover
	Aug 2016 Safety and Security Board Report
	PAGE LEFT BLANK
	HR cover
	August 2016 HR Board Report
	OTHER cover



